
15.1024.07000 

Amendment to: HB 1476 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/23/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels an d d d I appropnatt0ns anticipate un er current aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $35 ,000,000 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Engrossed HB 1476, with Senate Finance and Tax Committee amendments, replaces oil extraction tax "triggered" 
rate reductions with a single, permanent tax rate of 5 percent. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 3 of Engrossed HB 1476, with Senate Finance and Tax Committee amendments, imposes a 5 percent oil 
extraction tax rate and removes the triggered incentive provisions. 

Section 4 removes the triggered 24 month exemption for new horizontal wells. 

Section 5 removes additional oil extraction tax exemptions. 

Section 6, along with the effective date clause in Section 9, allows for the triggered incentive (which would eliminate 
the oil extraction tax on new wells and reduce the rate to 4 percent on most other wells) to be in effect for production 
through November 30, 2015. Beginning December 1, 2015, the triggered incentives would no longer apply. The 
existing oil extraction tax rate of 6.5 percent would be in effect through December 31, 2015. Beginning January 1, 
2016 , the rate would be reduced to 5 percent. 

The March 2015 revenue forecast assumes the triggered incentives will be in place for 11 months, beginning with 
June 2015 through April 2016. Based on the official oil price forecast , this bill would allow the triggered incentives to 
be in place for 6 months , June through November 2015. Because this bill eliminates the triggered incentive 
beginning December 1, 2015, December production would be taxed at the 6.5 percent rate provided in current law. 
Beginning January 1, 2016, the new rate of 5 percent would apply. 

The removal of the triggered incentives and imposition of the rates provided in this bill is expected to increase oil 
extraction tax revenue by approximately $301 million in FY 2016 and reduce oil extraction tax revenue by $266 
million in FY 2017, consistent with the provisions of the official March forecast. The fiscal impact is estimated to total 
+$35 million for the 2015-17 biennium. This increase in revenues will be distributed among the legacy, common 
schools trust , foundation aid stabilization , resources trust , and strategic investment and improvements funds. 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 701-328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/23/2015 



15.1024.05000 

Revised 
Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1476 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/21/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d · r r · td d ti eves an appropna tons an 1c1pa e un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $76,000,000 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 8. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters) . 

HB 1476 replaces oil extraction tax "triggered" rate reductions with a single , permanent tax rate of 4.5 percent. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 3 of HB 14 76 imposes a 4.5 percent oil extraction tax rate and removes the triggered incentive provisions. 

Section 4 removes additional oil extraction tax exemptions. 

Section 6, along with the emergency clause in Section 7, would have made his bill effective on June 1, 2015 , 
assuming the triggered exemptions and incentives would otherwise become effective. The official March 2015 
revenue forecast assumes these incentives will be effective on June 1, therefore this bill , with the emergency clause, 
would also have become effective at that time. However, due to failure of the emergency clause in Section 7, the bill 
will become effective July 1, 2015. The 4.5 percent tax rate will apply to production beginning July 1, 2015, which 
will affect revenues collected in August 2015. Assuming the current law triggered incentive will be in effect for one 
month during the 2015-17 biennium as a result of failure of the emergency clause lowers the positive fiscal impact 
by an estimated $44 million . 

The removal of the triggered incentives and imposition of a 4.5% oil extraction tax rate is expected to increase oil 
extraction tax revenue by approximately $465 million in FY 2016 and reduce oil extraction tax revenue by $389 
million in FY 2017, consistent with the provisions of the official March forecast. The fiscal impact is estimated to total 
+$76 million for the 2015-17 biennium. This increase in revenues will be distributed among the legacy, common 
schools trust, foundation aid stabilization , resources trust , and strategic investment and improvements funds . 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 701-328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/21/2015 



15.1024.04000 

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1476 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0411712015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
d I levels and approoriations anticioated un er current aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $120,000,000 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters) . 

HB 1476 replaces oil extraction tax "triggered" rate reductions with a single , permanent tax rate of 4.5 percent. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 3 of HB 1476 imposes a 4.5 percent oil extraction tax rate and removes the triggered incentive provisions. 
Section 4 removes additional oil extraction tax exemptions. 

Section 6 makes this bill effective on June 1, 2015 , assuming the triggered exemptions and incentives would 
otherwise become effective. The official March 2015 revenue forecast assumes these incentives will be effective on 
June 1, therefore this bill is assumed to become effective at that time as well. 

The removal of the triggered incentives and imposition of a 4.5% oil extraction tax rate is expected to increase oil 
extraction tax revenue by approximately $509 million in FY 2016 and reduce oil extraction tax revenue by $389 
million in FY 2017, consistent with the provisions of the official March forecast. The fiscal impact is estimated to total 
+$120 million for the 2015-17 biennium. This increase in revenues will be distributed among the legacy, common 
schools trust, foundation aid stabilization , resources trust , and strategic investment and improvements funds . 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the re venue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each re venue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 701.328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/18/2015 
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2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Fi nance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room , State Capitol 

HB 1 476 
4/20/20 1 5  

26262 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature -rf'() 
Expla nation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A bi l l  re lating to oi l  extraction tax rates and exemptions. 

M i n utes: 

Chairman Head land: Opened hearing .  

1 ,  2 , 3 , 4 , 5, 6 

Representative Carlson: I ntroduced bi l l .  Distributed proposed restructuring of oi l  
extraction tax testimony; see attachment # 1 . This issue has been under d iscussion for the 
last three bienniums;  it isn't just a new topic today. This b i l l  puts a trigger on the trigger. 
The price of oi l  has been sign ificantly reduced in the last n umber of months. A great 
number of our rigs have left the state . There are very few wel ls being tracked compared to 
the number that were being tracked in the past. As we' re looking at the process and the 
effect of our oil triggers we thought it wou ld be beneficial to have a stable tax system for 
both the state of North Dakota and for the i ndustry. This is a tax increase on the ind ustry. 
If the big trigger were to h it on June 1 ,  which means five consecutive months of the price 
being below the trigger of $55 . 09 , the tax rate wou ld have gone on some wel ls down to four  
percent and zero on others .  By doing that there is a tremendous loss of revenue for the 
state but it is also a tremendous break for those people who were waiting for that lower rate 
to be able to track those wells and prod uce that oi l  at a lower rate to make it more 
economical for them. Our  responsibi l ity as legislators is to have a hearing to d iscuss the 
topic and decide if it's a good long term pol icy for the state. This issue becomes very 
pol itical and there are a lot of u nknowns. The real ity is that in the year 2009 we missed the 
trigger by two days and $.32 . I n  every instance these people were hoping against hope 
that the price wou ld stay down so they got the tax break on those triggers which means the 
oil wasn't very h igh at that point in time either. It would have cost the state $ 1 00 mi l l ion that 
we d idn't budget for in the 2009- 1 1 budget. Back then $ 1 00 mil l ion is a b it d ifferent than 
the level of spending that we have today. This b i l l  says that if that trigger h its the next day 
the oi l  tax goes to a rate of 4 .5% on extraction and the production tax sti l l  stays at 5% so 
that means it would be an effective rate of 9.5 percent. The bil l does not go into the 
exemptions. The exemptions are stripper wel ls which we dealt with last time. When we 
had our delayed bi l ls committee there was some d iscussion from the m inority leader and 
his assistant that they cou ldn 't support the b i l l  because it d idn't address strippers .  I thought 
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we addressed that p retty wel l  in the last biennium to make sure those low prod ucing wel ls 4) sti l l  had some tax breaks. This exemption does not affect the secondary recovery 
exemptions or the tertiary recovery efforts .  It leaves in p lace a reduction in the extraction 
tax for those wel ls located outside the Bakken-Three Forks formations. It automatical ly 
removes the smal l  trigger which is a l ready in p lace and the large trigger which would take 
effect after five consecutive months with the average being below our trigger price . This 
month on Friday the oi l  price was $55 . 87 range which would have been above our trigger 
price. It would have to be over $65-70 the rest of this month for the average not to apply 
for the month of Apri l .  It looks l ike the four  or five months wi l l  be h it but not unti l  after we 
leave here .  We bel ieve we should deal with the issue today, open it up for publ ic comment, 
have the hearings, and let it run as it is . We have a l ready experienced a 50% drop in  oi l  
tax revenue j ust because of the low prices . People l ike to ta lk about the long term effect of 
what happened to the rates and now we're going to lose a l l  th is revenue when it comes 
back. There's no question you're going to lose some revenue but there is never a 
d iscussion as to what you lose when the trigger is on .  If you're going to count one then you 
better count the other one because they are an offsetting n umber in a lot of cases . This 
trigger was previously on for about 1 7  years with this language. I wou ld hope it wou ld 
never happen to us aga in .  I understand we have a sweet spot and a lot of o i l  to  be 
produced but that's a good th ing .  Predictabi l ity has been a d ifficu lt process this time 
because of the uncerta inty with prices . We used our budget projections that have been 
based on us producing 1 . 1 mil l ion barrels a day with an average taxable price of $4 1 . 97 i n  
June 20 1 5  to $52 .56 i n  May 20 1 7 . When you look in  the market the price of WTI i f  you 
figure out what we actual ly tax on it's between 1 0  and 1 5% less than a WTI .  If the WTI is at 
$50 today you can take either $5 or $7 .50 off that number and that's what we tax. It was 
also based upon 1 00 r igs; there were 94 rigs the last time I checked and there were almost 
900 wells yet to be tracked that businesses are not tracking .  The market has changed 
sign ificantly s ince we've gone through this. Texas tax rate is 4.7% and they also charge on 
property tax. Oklahoma's tax when they are done is approximately 7 . 1  percent. We are 
probably in  the midd le zone on taxes . We've had meetings with the Three Affi l iated Tribes 
and one of the d iscussions included the minority leader from both parties . I n  that meeting 
there was d iscussion about what they want and they mentioned a flat rate with some 
certainty. We may have d isagreed on the rate but we talked about having a flat rate. They 
didn't want to participate in the triggers that were about to take place. We have a compact 
with them. It 's important to understand that they, as a sovereign nation ,  have opportun ities. 
If  the trigger h its then both triggers go away and the exemptions stay in  place.  No one 
knows if it wil l  happen or not; it 's a very volatile market we're deal ing with .  Your  decision 
today should not be based on pol itics or emotion but it should be based on what is a 
consistent, fair, equ itab le ,  and understandable tax rate for the o i l  that's extracted and 
produced in the state of North Dakota . 

Representative Haak: Why did we wait to hear this b i l l  on day 7 1  and not have the 
d iscussion for the past three months? 

Representative Ca rlson: We've been having this d iscussion for a long t ime. We brought 
a bi l l  forward two or three weeks ago on the first b i l l  because there were some changes 
and the market has become less stable. Timing is everyth ing . This has every opportunity 
for people to have their input in  both industry and ind iv iduals .  We have plenty of time to 
deal with this issue. I don 't regret having it on the 701h day. We've brought it forward the 
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last two bienn iums;  it's not a new topic to anybody. The t iming is right because of the 
market conditions and what has happened to our revenues.  

Representative Haak: Has there ever been a leg islative management study regard ing 
how al l  these triggers impact and things l ike that so that maybe there's a way to fix it? 

Representative Carlson: I can't tel l  you if there was a specific study. We have an energy 
and a tax committee that has dealt with a lot of those issues. We cou ld study it to death but 
the facts are the facts. When we're in session it is our job to make decisions and pass 
pol icy and that's why you have the b i l l  before you .  

Senator Wardner: Co-sponsor of the b i l l .  This bi l l  real ly doesn't affect the general fund 
un less we transfer money from the S l l F  fund over there and do it that way. The production 
tax is where the formula is and that's where the money is that goes out to the pol itical 
subd ivisions. It does not affect the formula that puts money in  the pol itical subd ivisions for 
impacts. The money that is cal led i n  l ieu of property tax is unaffected . It would affect the 
extraction tax, 6 . 5% down to 4 . 5%, if it triggers. There are constitutional funds that we do 
not spend out of at this point other than the revenue; the Legacy Fund ,  where not as much 
money would go i nto that as before but there is sti l l  going to be a lot of money. We don't 
spend out of that at this point and when we do it wi l l  probably be only the revenue stream 
so it doesn't affect our current spend ing .  The other fund is the Common Schools Trust 
Fund where we do spend the revenue out of. It is g rowing and is getting to be a more 
substantial fund but we don't spend the principle so that money isn't on the table. Next is 
the Foundation Aid Stabi l ization Fund which is a constitutional fund that I hope we wi l l  
change this session . That money is for schools and we haven't been spend ing the money 
out of that either. We have a constitutional fund that we spend out of and that's the 
Resource's Trust Fund .  We use that to fund water projects. I nstead of having $800 mil l ion 
it wi l l  end up being somewhere around $600 mil l ion on a normal revenue year. It's sti l l  a lot 
of money and we have gone a long way so far in taking care of a lot of the water needs. 
The last fund is cal led the S l l F ,  Strategic I nfrastructure and I nvestment Fund, which doesn't 
have as much money as it would normal ly have if it was at 6.5% versus 4 . 5  percent. We 
used it th is time in  the surge money for h ighways in  the western part of the state. The 
reason for this bi l l  is stab i l ity. The price of oil makes a d ifference. When the industry puts 
their money in  they look at the tax rate and the forecast on p rices. We now have a history 
as the price of oi l  came down they started stacking the rigs and taking them out of the state 
much sooner than they wou ld have had it been a flat 9 . 5% rate. By the time the triggers 
put the exemptions on the prices are so low that they are a l ready gone and they aren't 
coming back u nti l  the price gets h igher. When you get under $70 at a lower rate they wi l l  
stick around longer and there wil l  be more activity out there .  When an oi l  wel l  is d ri l led it's 
about $250,000 sales tax dol lars that comes to the state. The longer we keep that we keep 
the money coming into the general fund . This b i l l  provides stabi l ity. When I came into the 
leg islature we had 9% on existing wel ls and had a 1 5  month hol iday on tax for a l l  new 
wel ls .  It wasn't unti l  about 2004 or 2005 that we went to 1 1 . 5 percent. Nobody real ly 
knows that once the trigger triggers on the exemptions how long it wi l l  last. As we look to 
the future the oi l  market is very u nstable because of what is going on around the world so 
we don't know what that price wi l l  be. It could trigger for a long time or it may not. 
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Representative Haak: You talked about the reason for this b i l l  is stabi l ity. You said that 
under $70 they wi l l  stick around longer. Is this based on just your  gut feel ing or on activity 
that's happened in other states with their tax generation? 

Senator Wardner: That is on my own observations.  I 've l ived out there my whole l ife . 

Chairman Headland: The last time the trigger was i n  effect it triggered in  1 987 and d idn 't 
trigger off unti l  2004. I know at that t ime no one pred icted how long that would last just as 
no one can predict how long it would last if it triggers today. What do you th ink would 
happen to state budgets if the trigger were to go on and last in  the same 1 5-20 years , 
essential ly through the heart of the l ife of the Bakken production? It would be detrimenta l ,  
wou ldn't it? 

Senator Ward ner: I t  wou ld . We would a lso lose oi l  tax reven ues. It would a lso affect the 
other side, the genera l  fund . We wouldn 't have as much economic activity and our 
revenues would go down.  

Representative Sch neider: We haven't seen a fiscal note on th is  so maybe you can help 
me with some of the issues. How much would it have cost us to have this plan in  place for 
this bienn ium and last bienn ium? 

Senator Wardner: That is  hard to estimate although I wou ld say there would be more rigs. 
I wou ld say it would be more l ike 1 20 rigs working . 

Representative Schneider: You don't have figures on that? 

Senator Ward ner: We don't have figures on that. We wouldn't have d ropped from $8.5 
bi l l ion down to $3.4 bi l l ion but I would say we'd be around the $5 bi l l ion . 

Representative Sch neide r: When do you th ink we would have answers to that so we can 
evaluate the consequences on this and the impact to the state both in  the short term and 
the long term? 

Senator Wardner: I can g ive them to you right now. Any of us that have been involved in 
th is can g ive you a bal lpark figure .  We can br ing in Moody's Analytical but I th ink we have 
people here that can g ive you that number just as wel l  as they can .  I 'm told we do have a 
fiscal note . 

Chairman Head land:  There is a fisca l note i n  our file with the proposed change and the 
amount of additional revenue going into the coffers. 

Senator Wardner: We have one month to go. It may not trigger the incentives so then we 
just stay where we are at. 

Chairman Headla nd: You have to real ize there is a lot of speculation into your  question so 
no matter who you ask that question to the answer wil l  be speculative. 

Representative Sch neider: You said there would not be an impact on the legacy fund? 
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Senator Wardner: No, I said it would get less revenue. We don't spend money out of there 
so it doesn't affect our spending at th is time. 

Representative Sch neider: In the l ist of the d ifferent funds and how they're affected we 
d idn't have many specifics but it looks l ike the Water Resource Trust Fund wou ld have 
about a 30% loss; a 30% loss in the future to the S l l F  fund and a 30% loss to the Common 
Schools Trust Fund in  the futu re if this measure passes. 

Senator Wardner: Those numbers are also affected by price not just the tax rate . Those 
numbers are at a lower p rice so prices as wel l  as the change in the percentage are 
included in those n umbers .  If the price were h igher those numbers would get smal ler. 

Chairman Headland: You're also making the assumption that it doesn't trigger and our 
financial analyst, Moody's Analytica l ,  have ind icated that it is going to trigger. That's what 
we have to base our revenues off of. 

Representative Sch neider: I appreciate that but there are a lot of assumptions being 
made here and I 'd l ike it to be as clear as possible for both the committee and others 
impacted with this issue. Perhaps this is brought to us by the same people who thought the 
trigger was a good idea too. 

Representative Stri nden: I th ink there are two worries on this b i l l ;  we would h it the big 
trigger and we would be there for 1 7  years ,  and that we wou ld n't h it it or it would stay i n  
effect for a smal l  amount of time then we would be  a t  a much  lower tax rate for the next 1 7  
years . I 'm sorry I forgot my question.  

Senator Wardner: Her question probably is why don't you just get rid of the triggers and 
leave it at 1 1 .5 percent? The bottom line is what's good for North Dakota? A lower tax rate 
at a level pace wi l l  keep the whole economy going . We've got compan ies out there that l ive 
off these d ri l l ing activities . They are now laying off people and they are wondering when 
they are going back to work. This bi l l  stabi l izes the economy. This not on ly affects western 
North Dakota , we have a l l  k inds of axi l lary businesses that are supplying the oi l  patch with 
suppl ies, equipment, and so forth . 

Chairman Headland: You can look at this b i l l  as a hedge against risk. 

Representative Stri nden: If we find ourselves in  a situation as 1 987-2004 we could come 
in and address th is during any special session or leg islative session? We don't have to do 
it before the big trigger h its, if it does? 

Senator Wardner: That would be one possibi l ity. 

Representative Mitskog: At the beginn ing of the session we had a speaker that said we 
should be prepared for low prices for qu ite some time. Here we are nearing the end of the 
session and it seems l ike a last minute response with this leg is lation . When we're 
dependent on commod ities we have to be prepared for the peaks and val leys . Our 



House Finance and Taxation Committee 
HB 1 476 
Apri l 20, 201 5 
Page 6 

message throughout this whole session in this committee has been that we need to cut A back and tighten our belts . Why the last week? � 
Senator Wardner: We've been studying this since last session.  As we move through this 
session the price of oi l  has gone down and we're gett ing closer to the oi l  exemptions being 
triggered on. We have on ly one month to go. We've had d iscussions with Fort Berthold on 
the fact that they d id not want to be involved in  those exemptions. We've come to this point 
and it looked l ike it was time that we had to come up with some type of proposal to dea l 
with this. 

Representative Ca rlson: The Foundation Aid Stabi l ization Fund , the Common Schools 
Trust Fund , and the Resources Trust Fund that funds a l l  our  water projects not one penny 
of that money comes out of the extraction tax. Those funds wil l  get the same funds they 
always got. The Legacy Fund is shared so it's not a 30% reduction it's a 20% red uction 
because it's part of both taxes . The Three Affi l iated Tribes are part of both taxes . The Oi l  
and Gas Research Fund is part of both taxes. You have to understand where the money 
goes before you take a number of 30% because it's on ly going from 1 1 .5% to 9 .5%, it's not 
going down 30% on the whole tax. If the trigger goes into p lace and we fol low the revenue 
forecast the buckets don't fi l l; there is very l ittle if any money in the Resources Trust Fund 
because of low prices . There's very l ittle money that goes into the Property Tax Rel ief 
Fund because of low prices . The fiscal note you have is $ 1 20 mil l ion positive fiscal effect 
for the bienn ium.  That is a fai rly accurate number based on the projections we had in  
March. If al l the prices went up and the trigger went i nto effect then we cancel led the 
trigger at 9 .5% if prices went up $5 a barrel throughout our projection that's $48 1  m il l ion 

• more tax col lected . If we go back to our forecast of $7 4-82 you go back to $6 . 8  bi l l ion of 
revenue at 9.5% and if it goes up to the projection from the future for 1 .5 mil l ion barrels it's 
$7.7 bi l l ion ,  you go to 1 .6 mil l ion barrels a day with the market rol l i ng then its $8.2 bi l l ion a 
biennium. The positive effect is that there is a tremendous amount of money to be ra ised 
with some assuredly that the money wou ld be there.  

John Walstad,  Legislative Counci l :  When it  was created it  was a one way trigger. The 
red uced rates and exemptions never actual ly triggered on ;  they were set by law on and 
there was an off switch .  If o i l  prices rose above that level those exemptions and rate 
red uctions would go away. That was turned i nto a two way switch sometime after that. For 
1 7  years that in it ial legis lative provision for extraction tax, exemptions, and lower rates was 
in p lay. 

Cha irman Headland:  I n it ial ly when the trigger was first put in p lace do you recal l  that 
number? 

John Wa lstad: $33.  At that t ime in North Dakota oil prices were rid icu lously low. Thirty 
three dol lars was viewed as a pretty sign ificant increase from where the price was. 

Chairman Headland: With that being said , without leg is lation addressing the trigger it 
could continue to g row and cou ld outpace the price of oi l  on average and a lways be in  

•" 
effect. 
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John Walstad: That's one of the possibi l ities . The in it ial trigger said noth ing about 
horizontal wel ls .  Mr. Walstad reviewed the b i l l 's h igh l ights. If the trigger under this bi l l  does 
not come into p lay, if the big trigger in existing law never comes off, this bi l l  wil l  never do 
anyth ing .  The defin itions in  the extraction tax are being substantia l ly revised because a lot 
of those defin it ions are unnecessary without some of the triggered exemptions that would 
be el iminated if this b i l l  becomes effective . I n  section five l ine 1 3  is the rate change where 
the current extraction tax of 6.5% is reduced to 4 .5 percent. The rate is only 4% triggered if 
the big trigger becomes effective some of these 4% tax rates would kick in .  These 4% 
rates are a l l  triggered . This b i l l  would el iminate the big trigger and the l ittle trigger at the 
same instant. If this b i l l  becomes effective those 4% rates d isappear from the law. 
Beginn ing on page six the exemptions from the oil extraction tax has a lot of strike through .  
Representative Carlson d istributed the handout of proposed restructuring of o i l  extraction 
tax. The only exemptions that would remain in play if the big trigger goes off and this b i l l  
takes effect and e l iminates the effect of the big trigger and the l ittle trigger the remain ing 
exemptions would be anyth ing exempt from the production tax, stripper wel ls ,  secondary 
and tertiary enhanced recovery. I ncremental production is exempt from extraction tax and 
would remain that way after this bil l would become effective. The remain ing exemption is 
for d ri l l ing outside the Bakken and Three Forks. The n umber of rigs deployed for that 
purpose now is zero so it doesn't have a sign ificant effect. There are things that would 
d isappear if th is b i l l  wou ld take effect; a 1 5  month exemption for new vertical wel ls and a 24 
month exemption for new horizontal wel ls are the most s ign ificant. Th is bi l l  is written to 
become effective J une 1 ,  20 1 5; there is an emergency clause. The projection is that on 
that date the big trigger would become effective and if that happens and the emergency 
clause carries this b i l l  would become effective at the same instant e l iminating the big 
trigger, l ittle trigger, the exemptions and rate reductions, and reducing the rate of the tax to 
4.5 percent. If the projection does not come to pass or the emergency clause does not 
carry this bi l l  would become effective if subsection three of 57-5 1 . 1 03, which is the 24 
month horizontal exemption so that means the big trigger is on ,  if it becomes effective at a 
later date than June 1 then that date whenever that triggering happens or if the big trigger 
is in effect on Ju ly 1 ,  without the emergency clause, then this bi l l would become effective 
and el iminate the big and the l ittle trigger and the exemptions and the reductions going 
forward . It would not suspend them, it would el iminate them permanently (at least unti l next 
session) .  I n  the effective date clause it m ight be necessary to use the same phrasing as on 
the bottom of the page if that big trigger is or would become effective . There is a possibi l ity 
if th is legislation is approved it m ight be subject to referend um and it m ight be suspended 
or it m ight not if the emergency clause carries. If that period of suspension passes and the 
voters approve the measure the triggering should happen so a comma and one more word 
might take care of that possib i l ity. 

Chairman Headland: Over the past few bienniums how many b i l ls do you think you 
d rafted that have dealt with this problem? 

John Walstad: I cou ldn 't even guess . It's more than ten .  

Chairman Head land: You've had bi l ls that have been d rafted b y  both the minority and the 
majority either together or separately. 
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John Walstad: I 'd have to review that but my recollection is the d rafts are usual ly 
presented by one or the other of the parties . 

Representative Steiner: Do you remember who the governor was for the very first trigger 
in 1 987? 

John Walstad: Governor S inner. 

Representative Sch neider: If you've had ten d ifferent b i l ls on this and there have been a 
lot of d iscussions on the triggers ,  is this something that would benefit from study and 
carefu l consideration over a period of time? 

John Walstad: I th ink our oi l  tax pol icy is constantly under scrutiny because it is such a 
s ignificant engine for North Dakota's tax revenues and economy. I believe there are a 
couple proposals currently a l ive that would provide for study du ring the next interim .  

Representative Haak: If the b ig  trigger goes on this b i l l  goes into effect and i t  makes i t  an 
extraction of 4.5% but if the price of oi l  continues to cl imb it  never has another trigger that 
increases that back up to 6 .5%,  correct? 

John Walstad: If this b i l l  becomes effective 4 .5% would be the rate u nti l next session . 

Chairman Head land: We wi l l  take testimony in  support of H B  1 476 . 

Laney Herauf, G reater North Da kota Chamber: We are supportive of this legis lation .  
We l ike the stabi l ity and the rel iabi l ity this provides. 

Cha irman Head land: Further testimony in support? 

Brent Sa nford, mayor of Watford City: As a recipient of funds from the Resource Trust 
Fund it's terrifying to th ink of the trigger happening . With the things that are happening in 
the water commission hearings and the budget hearings for water I don't know if we can 
afford to have the trigger h it for a two year t ime period . This is a complex and controversial 
issue. Pred ictabi l ity would be a great thing when we are talking about losing more than one 
half of our reven ues as a state if this triggers .  The business people keeping our economy 
going on the oil ind ustry side would l ike some predictabi l ity and not be on the h igh end of 
the tax spectrum of where they can do business. I am in support of the b i l l .  

Chairman Headland: You're city is the fastest growing city in  North Dakota . You've been 
rel iant to a certa in degree with S l l F  dol lars .  If the trigger kicks in and we don't do anything 
to address this and if it wou ld happen to stay on for the whole bienn ium I don't th ink very 
l ittle money flows to the S l l F  fund . Can you add ress the impact to Watford C ity if that were 
to occur? 

Brent Sanford: The surge fund ing came from the S l l F  fund . Without excess funds in the 
S l l F  fund there would be no surge funding and we would be basically asleep on the 
construction season at this t ime in western North Dakota. With the surge spending there 
are qu ite a few projects going and it's helping to take some of the d isplaced oi l  workers and 
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put them in construction jobs for the time being u nti l it p icks up again .  Those dol lars were 
much needed . One of the future views for the S l l F  fund is leg is lation for the future uses of 
S l l F  and the opportun ity for a l location to the areas in  the west to be able to have some 
more dol lars flowing to us if the budget turns out on the positive side. If the oi l  revenues 
come back and there are dol lars in the S l l F  fund hopefu l ly we could share in some of those 
excesses because we know where they are generated from; the two d ifferent oi l  taxes. If it 
triggers there would be no chance for that. We hope that not only from the Resource Trust 
Funds and the water projects but also from the S l l F  any opportun ity to ask for infrastructure 
fu nding that there would be some excess dol lars in  the S l l F . 

Chairman Headland: You bel ieve it's a worthwhi le tradeoff to leave the possibi l ity of giving 
up j ust a l ittle b it of revenue under certain  scenarios versus having predictabi l ity for the 
future? 

Brent Sanford: I watch the industry every day. There is a cloud of anxiety with oil in the 
$50s and further anxiety if the trigger is going to happen . Our  neighbors to the east are 
going to have the same type of anxiety. To d rop the revenue by one half by June 1 is 
terrifying so I 'm g lad to see action being d iscussed and considered . 

Chairman Headland: I th ink there are a lot of leg islators that feel the same way about 
state budgeting and revenues. 

Representative Schneider: I can understand your  d iscomfort with the change in this 
volatile industry with prices and you need to have some stabi l ity. Have you been g iven 
figures that we don't have yet about the long term consequences to Watford City and the 
state of having this new proposal? 

Brent Sanford: I have not. I 've seen a lot of s imi lar summary i nformation that you have 
where we could end up with $ 1 .5  bi l l ion more revenues if the trigger is taken off. Over the 
long term we wou ld be col lecting 4 .5% instead of 6 .5% on the extraction tax. We could put 
a lot of formu las and p rojections together based on $75-1 00 oi l  but I don't have those 
specifics . I haven't had a lot of time either to d igest those impl ications.  

Representative Schneider: If you found out i t  would cost the state $ 1  m i l l ion a day a year 
down the road from this change would that mod ify your  opin ion about having stabi l ity 
versus taking some short term h its here to have long term gain to the state? 

Brent Sanford: Yes, I th ink it's a risk worth taking to have a pred ictable tax,  to have a flat 
tax, and not have the trigger situations. We don't know how long this wi l l  last. There are 
sti l l  going to be o i l  wel ls pumping in western North Dakota even if the price is in the $40s 
for ten years because those wel ls are d ri l led . We'd hate to see the revenues at 5% versus 
a potential 9 .5% if that were to happen. I 'm supportive of this legislation .  

Representative Schneider: I hope we both get the chance to make those decisions 
based on some projections and facts long term that are rel iable for us.  

Chairman Headland: Do you have any idea of the number of rigs d ri l l ing in McKenzie 
County right now? 
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Brent Sanford: There are 42 rigs d ri l l i ng right now out of 9 1  total .  

Representative Haak: What i s  the average price for a barrel of oi l  in Apri l? From your 
conversations with o i l  compan ies that come into your  community and d ri l l  do they tend to 
dr i l l  based on the price of oi l  or taxes? 

Brent Sanford: It was in  the low $50s for the first part of the month and the last week it 
was trickl ing above this trigger in the $56-57 dol lar range. A few years ago it was a rush to 
dr i l l  based on hold ing leases but now they have the inventory i n  the ground it can go 
somewhere else the leases are held . Now it is priced base; there's a lot of pressure on 
vendors in Watford C ity and Wil l iston .  We are trying to get efficient. I would say price more 
so than tax overal l . They are going to want to dr i l l  if it's $90 oi l  much more than if it's $30 
o i l .  

Representative Froseth: How many wells are d ri l led but haven't been tracked or put into 
production in your county? 

Brent Sanford: I know there are about 900 total rigs in the area . A large amount, around 
300-400, are i n  our county. 

Chairman Headla nd: I s  there further testimony in  support? Is there opposition to H B  
1 476? 

Senator Mac Schneide r: Distributed testimony in  opposition; see attachment #2 . 

Chairman Headland: You have numbers and you say $ 1 0s of bi l l ions of dol la rs .  If the 
trigger would go into effect and stay on for 1 7  years l ike it d id last time how much revenue 
are we ta lking about there? 

Senator Schneider: The fact that we don't have those numbers shou ld g ive us a l l  pause 
before we pass this .  On the fl ipside of that coin do we rea l ly th ink that as pol icy makers we 
are going to levy a 4 . 5% extraction tax for the 1 7  year period that prices are below $55.09? 
We th ink the oi l  ind ustry shouldn 't have an incentive at those times of low prices? I th ink 
not. I n  a lot of ways this presents the worst of both worlds; it's a sharp reduction in  the 
extraction tax when o i l  is at $80-1 00 a barrel and it takes away a meaningful incentive 
when prices are low. There has to be a middle ground here. 

Chairman Head land: If that happens I suggest you be prepared to budget at those 
numbers because you' l l  probably be in charge. 

Senator Schneider: I agree with you but I don't wish for it. I agree with the notion that if 
prices stay below that $55 .09 index for i nflation for 1 7  years we have bigger problems than 
the trigger. We reject the false choice here but we can reform the trigger. Al l  of us agree 
this is a blunt instrument and the o i l  industry should be incentivized to continue needed 
production and investment in our state during a trough in the market . There is a m iddle 
road here that th is b i l l  doesn't have to take us down . 
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Chairman Headland: Were you majority leader in 201 1 ?  

Senator Schneider: I 've never been majority leader. I aspire to that. 

Chairman Headland: Do you remember Representative Onstad and Representative Meier 
had a bil l that would lower the extraction tax to 4 .5%,  HB 1 420? 

Senator Schneider: I never saw it on my side. I bel ieve it was defeated in  the house. 

Representative Haak: Can you recal l  any instance of when we stud ied th is in  a leg islative 
management study? 

Senator Schneider: I don't th ink reforming the trigger has been stud ied intensely. We've 
stud ied the way we tax oi l  in North Dakota but there's never been a g rand bargain put 
together that says we're going to ease some of the impact on the two year  budget that the 
trigger wou ld impose on our state budget whi le also provid ing some meaningfu l incentive 
and leaving the top tax rate alone or anyth ing l ike that. I th ink the best study here is what's 
happening in real l ife . The industry has thrived under the 6 .5% extraction tax. We need to 
take a second look at a trigger but let's keep an incentive in  place and don't trade it for 30% 
red uced oil extraction tax revenue for the l ife of the Bakken;  that is a bad dea l .  

Chairman Headland: Are you suggesting we get rid of  the trigger and leave the extraction 
tax at 6.5 percent? 

Senator Schneider: Leave the 6 .5% extraction tax that was put in  place by a vote of the 
people. Let's take a look at that trigger that we put in  p lace as a legislature and take out 
some of the b luntness of it whi le sti l l  provid ing an incentive during these down times. This 
bi l l  is too extreme on both ends. A 30% cut is too much and taking away an incentive 
entirely is not wise either. I would ask that we focus on a bipartisan m iddle road wh ich is 
reforming the trigger; not getting rid of it. 

C hairman Headland: How do you come up with the fact that it's a 30% cut? 

Senator Schneider: You take the 6 .5% extraction tax down to 4 .5% and that is actual ly a 
l ittle bit over 30%; I rounded down for the sake of fai rness. 

Chairman Headland: You real ize that there are other things that come into the equation 
that would probably reduce that overa l l  number somewhat. 

Senator Schneider: I understand th is b i l l  leaves those exemptions u ntouched . That is 
going to resu lt in a lower effective rate than 6 .5  percent. 

Chairman Head land: Further opposition to HB 1 476? 

Mark Fox, Chairman of MHA Nation and Three Affi l iated Tri bes: This is our opportun ity 
to weigh in as this sign ificantly impacts our nation as wel l  as yourselves . You often hear us 
refer to ourselves as M HA Nation ;  we don't do that as a matter of semantics or because we 
are g rand iose in  who we are .  We ta lk about our tribal nation because the United States 
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Constitution says we are a nation .  We were a nation before the Un ited States became a 
nation . We remain that way. Un ited States Supreme Court sti l l  talks about that in the 
same way. We are going to add ress you as our nation and why we are here before you 
today. As a nation we have an open door pol icy. For the last fou r  years we have been 
here to d iscuss activities, events and choices that are going to impact both of us. We are 
also here because of o i l .  For us o i l  has been both a blessing and a curse. We have a tax 
agreement because the law says that on Fort Berthold lands with in our boundary the state 
has a right to tax in certain s ituations and the tribe has the ab i l ity to tax prod uction activities 
with in  our reservation .  To avoid dua l  taxation we as two governments come together and 
decide to spl it that tax so we don't d rive industry away. We could pu l l  out of the agreement 
and tax you separately and that would strictly be our revenue. The state and the tribe has 
benefited because we have a tax agreement in  place .  We are certa in ly not here to fight 
with state government or fight between parties . Our people want a change and part of that 
change is to be conservative . We are independent. If government does something that 
behooves or helps our tribal  nation we wil l  support you .  You do things against us and we 
wil l  be against you .  We need changes. Whatever the state chooses to do here we th ink 
there are a lternatives we cou ld put into place if  we had a MOU and MOA process that 
would g ive us that chance other than just saying this b i l l  or noth ing .  Our  basic position is 
that we don't support the b i l l  as proposed . We understand the di lemma the state is in as 
we are in the same one. A permanent cut that is being proposed puts us in even a more 
precarious position .  When we started this oi l  boom the tribes were sitt ing in  a position of 
not being prepared for that a lthough the state was prepared . Everybody is wel l  aware of 
the d ifficu lties we experience even before the oi l  boom . When the oi l  boom came in and 
despite the revenues it increased our problems by 1 00 fold; roads being torn up,  lack of 
affordable hous ing ,  cost of l iving , crime, violence, and pol lution to our environment. Part of 
that curse is what we've been forced to contend with by our development. The 1 1 .5% now 
has not been enough to address our concerns and problems. We've tolerated that n umber 
because it seems to be reasonable for the industry to not only move forward but for this 
state to become the number two leading producer. It isn't a problem at 1 1 .5% but it is a 
problem if you d rop the percent. Over the next 25 years as the boom contin ues to th ink 
that it's going to be enough reven ue to address our problems it  may or may not because we 
have about an $8- 1 0 bi l l ion need right now in  Fort Berthold for the next 1 0  years .  Based 
upon our numbers it wi l l  never reach that. The end resu lt is that we' l l  end up taxing and 
raising roya lties to offset that .  I nstead of increasing the standard of l iving for a l l  the people 
we wi l l  put a l l  that money towards this process of extraction oil to market outside of our 
boundaries. When that oi l  is gone we wi l l  be sitt ing in  a position l ike other tribal nations 
have suffered and we don't want that to occur. We've been in d iscussion with the state , 
with leadership and many of you s itting here. The two concerns we have right now with the 
way it is being proposed is the duration to make it permanent. We believe that if you're 
going to take a d rastic action l ike this that it is on ly for a b ienn ium and it sunsets . The other 
concern is the off switch .  If we're going to d rop down and the price of the bi l l  goes back up 
instead of design ing a boon for the industry, which they are going to continue anyway,  you 
h it that trigger or the amount and we go back to where we are at, the 1 1 . 5 percent. We are 
asking for leg is latu re to enable us to stay in  agreement and exempt us from both the big 
trigger as wel l  as this a lternative solution of if the trigger h its it d rops three percent. If you 
exempt us from that we wil l  sit down with industry and we wi l l  figu re out a formula for 
rebates and for taking other actions to ease the transition on this price of the bi l l  now to 
keep production rol l ing .  We want responsible development but we sti l l  want prod uction and 
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we want to do it i n  a way that when the price of the barrel of oi l  changes the price of the oi l  
wi l l  go back up  and we wi l l  be averaging $85 a barrel p lus.  If we cannot get these changes 
we wi l l  have to strongly consider whether we wil l  stay in the agreement and we wi l l  go from 
there. We are here for the best interest of our people. We calcu lated our numbers and we 
look down the l ine at our future and try to make the best decisions possib le .  We're not here 
to advocate for the oi l  industry but we are going to work with them as they are our partners. 
We're hoping that th is legislative branch wil l  look at these options and we wil l  go from there .  
It's a balance of industry development and taking care of our people in  our state . The best 
place to store oi l  is in the g round ; things change and as they change we can make 
changes. 

C hairman Head land:  Can you tel l  the committee when the compact between the Three 
Affi l iated and the state of North Dakota came into play? What was your  production prior to 
the compact going into effect? 

Mark Fox: The agreement that was put into place between our tribal nation and the state 
of North Dakota was i n  effect Ju ly 1 ,  2008 and was the same agreement unti l two years 
ago, 20 1 3 , when we changed it because of inequitable sharing . The state took two th i rds 
of the revenue but yet the majority of prod uction was on trust wel ls .  In 2008 there was very 
l ittle prod uction going on . Much production was on the outside. That was in part due to 
technology and because we had an industry that wasn't sure what was going to happen if 
they moved on to these vast and rich oi l  reserves on and beneath our reservation . It was 
between the state and the tribe that we entered into an agreement to erad icate an 
apprehension that existed with the industry at the t ime. Having an agreement and having 
one tax on Fort Berthold instead of dua l  taxation has been a positive thing for the industry. 

Representative Klein: At the present time what is your  approximate monthly income from 
oi l? 

Mark Fox: In taxation we are down to about $ 1 1 - 1 2  mi l l ion a month . We were up to $20 
mi l l ion a year ago. 

Representative Dockter: If we wouldn't do any amendments and the b i l l  passed and the 
trigger would go i nto effect wou ld you r  nation break the compact and do you r  own thing or 
would you stay in the compact? 

Mark Fox: We have to strongly consider separation . Our  i ncl ination is to stay in  the 
agreement but we have to cru nch our own numbers and figure out what the impact would 
be to our nation . If we put ourselves in  a position in  which we jointly agreed to reduce the 
tax we cou ld lose $700 mi l l ion to $1 bi l l ion in a cou rse of 25 years. For you that may not be 
such a significant number but for us it's a very big impact. If we al low industry to come in 
and extract th is oi l  and sel l  i t  to market we should have a standard of l iv ing that is  greater 
than where we sit today. 

Chairman Head land: I agree it wou ld be irresponsible of you not to do you r  due d i l igence 
i n  what is being proposed here .  Can you give us an idea of the percentage of tribal lands 
that have been developed? 
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Mark Fox: We are about a th i rd of the way into the dr i l l ing and  production that wil l occur on  
the reservation .  The majority of that production i s  going to  be  on trust lands with in  our  
boundaries main ly to  the west because of what current production is in  place now and  in  
the future.  

Representative Haak: A couple speakers have eluded that you had meetings with some 
of the sponsors of this b i l l .  When d id these meetings beg in? Who first approached your  
nation regard ing this tax proposa l? 

Mark Fox: Our pol icy is an open door pol icy. We met with the sponsor of the b i l l  and 
we've met with the Tribal  State Relations Committee. Beg inning in December and January 
we ta lked to the governor's office about our concerns. We met with leadership in  late 
January and beg inn ing of February on two things; we came forward and asked that we be 
exempt from the big trigger. The system of triggers is archaic; it doesn't work. We as a 
tribe think we can propose someth ing d ifferent. The second thing we said was that we 
need a MOU and MOA process that's in  existence and figure out an agreement and go 
from there. We haven't taken one dime of tax from pipel ine yet it is our r ight as a 
government but the state col lects it every day for the last seven years . We need MOA and 
MOU process to determine the spl it tax. 

Chairman Headland: Is there further opposition to H B  1 476? 

Tom Ricker, President of North Da kota AFL-C IO: I th ink reducing taxes on oi l  is a wrong 
move. There are on ly n ine days left in this leg islative session but here we are on the 7 1 s1 

day talking about a new bi l l  that was just introduced on Friday and Monday we get publ ic 
input on it. I th ink it is moving too fast; the sky isn't fal l ing . There are 70some conference 
committees sti l l  going on and a l l  those b i l ls have to be heard yet in the next n ine days . 
There's a lot of work left to do and I th ink this bi l l  th rows a wrench in a l l  the work that sti l l  
needs to be done. I th ink it's a solut ion to a problem that does not yet exist. I 'm going to 
respectfu l ly ask for a do not pass recommendation . Take care of the work that needs to be 
done. If and when the trigger comes i n  you sti l l  have time left where the senate and house 
can come back i nto session and take a look at it then . 

Chairman Headland: If we al low the trigger to go into effect and we come back next 
bienn ium and it's sti l l  in effect what happens to the jobs that are supported by S l l F ,  Surge, 
and d ifferent funds we have put into place that help pol itical subdivisions? What happens 
to the roughly 80,000 jobs that have been created by th is latest oi l  boom? 

Tom Ricker: It's my personal  bel ief that tax breaks don't create jobs; supply, demand , and 
prices are what create jobs. We've seen compan ies national ly that have negative tax 
numbers and they get money back but that doesn't help create jobs. 

C ha i rman Headland: You're saying that you don't believe that if our tax is 1 1 .5% total and 
Oklahoma's is 7% that in  the time of low prices for the commod ity you th ink the rigs wil l stay 
here and dr i l l  anyway or do you th ink  there is a risk of them leaving and going to a better 
tax environment? 
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Tom Ricker: I th ink it's a fin ite resource that wi l l  be here.  There could be some job loss 
but I don't th ink tax breaks are the answer to save al l  the jobs. 

Stuart Savelkou l ,  North Da kota U n ited: We rise in  opposition to HB 1 476 not necessari ly 
because we are 1 00% convinced that th is b i l l  is a bad idea but rather because we simply 
don't know enough right now. The problem is many people don't understand the way this 
works . There are an un l im ited number of scenarios. There are more than 50 bil ls that the 
leg islature has yet to take action on which are in conference committee. Those bi l ls 
obviously requ i re more than 70 days of debate and consideration .  The fact that we can 
take a bi l l  l ike this that has an unknown amount of fiscal impact for bienn iums to come and 
it seems l ike an unprecedented approach . We wou ld simply ask for a do not pass on the 
bil l in its present form u nti l  we have more answers to what are an apparent un l imited 
number of questions. 

Chairman Head land: You r  inference that we don't have the information and we don't 
understand the n umbers ,  I would take you to task on that. I th ink for most of us sitting here 
we have looked at those numbers and we've seen the impact of those numbers and the 
possibi l ities of what could occur if we don't make a change. That is the reason we are 
looking at this p iece of legislation today. We needed more information .  We were 
somewhat rel iant on the forecast that was presented to both chambers in March to make a 
decision in how to move forward with this .  I th ink it's a bit d isingenuous to say that we don't 
u nderstand the numbers because I th ink we do. I can understand how the average citizen 
may not and that it may appear this is something we are trying to sl ip through at the last 
m inute but I assure everyone that it isn't the case. 

Stuart Savelkoul:  I did n't say you don't understand,  I said we don't u nderstand.  When I 
said we I was speaking on behalf of the publ ic at large rather than you're specific 
knowledge base. If we're going to reference the fact that it was the last rea l  data we 
received on this was the Moody's report in March it is now April so this b i l l  could have come 
sooner that m ight have al lowed us to get a stronger grasp or a better g rasp on the numbers 
l ike you have. 

Randy Phelan, Vice C ha i rman of the MHA Nation: I l ive in  Mandaree which is in the 
heart of the Bakken . Our roads are being beat up .  In the last two years our council had put 
together $50 mi l l ion to repair  tribal roads because we don't get any money from the state of 
North Dakota. We don't get any money for dust control .  The majority of our roads are 
g ravel .  We can't afford to be taking any more cuts. McKenzie County doesn't g ive us 
anything for dust control and neither does Dunn County. Our l ivestock are getting sick from 
eating the dusty g rass. 

Kayla Pu lvermacher, North Dakota Farm's Union:  We are opposed to HB 1 476. Our 
member's pol icy states "We are opposed to exemptions to the o i l  extraction and production 
taxes. Additiona l ly, we oppose reductions in the rate of tax u nti l  the state replenishes and 
add resses unmet needs in  rura l  North Dakota to be forward looking and invest in  the future 
of the state. While we applaud the reform of the smal l  trigger we cannot support the 
decrease in the extraction tax."  

Chairman Head land: Is your  pol icy to oppose al l  exemptions? 
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Kayla Pu lvermacher: Yes. 

Chairman Headland: So you would oppose the big trigger as wel l? 

Kayla Pulvermacher: We do oppose exemptions to these taxes so yes . 

Jim Stenslie, resident of Na poleon: Distributed testimony in opposition; see attachment 
#3. 

Chairman Headland: We have a forecast that was presented to us in  March and it 
indicated that the big trigger would go into effect. It said they were pred icting it was going 
to be in  effect for ten months and we have a 24 month budget period . If we are certain the 
trigger goes into effect and there's a 50-50 chance it stays on for the whole bienn ium if I 
were to tell you we wou ld be faced with coming back if that were to occur with no money for 
property tax rel ief, no surge money, school budgets would have to be reduced because 
state funding would have to be reduced because we've put about $600 mi l l ion of oi l  tax 
money into that formu la ,  I wou ld suggest that every budget would look at a real red uction 
from current levels wh ich we haven 't faced in my leg islative career. Do you think you would 
sti l l  look at it the same that we should wait to see if that occurs before we take action or 
wou ld it not be more prudent to take an action that can always be changed i n  two years if 
we find out that the possib i l ity of the trigger going into effect doesn't occur? The bi l l  means 
that if the trigger kicks in  it becomes permanent. Permanent means you are assuring 

• 
money for those programs i n  a permanent tax versus one that is dependent on the price of 
a commodity. 

Jim Stenslie: I nsuring but at a reduced amount. 

Chairman Headla n d :  But substantia l ly h igher than the triggered price and the uncerta inty 
with the low price of the commodity. Al l  those programs we talked about could be funded 
at their current levels with a permanent tax. 

J i m  Stensl ie: I 'm not going to specu late.  So much of what we've heard today is 
specu lation . 

Chairman Headland: Do you think it is worth the risk? Are you wi l l ing to r isk that because 
as a leg islator I 'm not? 

J i m  Stensl ie: I 'm wi l l ing to take that risk. 

Chairman Headla nd: Is there further opposition? If not, is there anyone who would l ike to 
speak in a neutral capacity? 

Ron Ness , North Da kota Petroleum Council :  Distributed testimony; see attachments 4 
and 5 .  We're g lad you're having this d iscussion today. This is noth ing new to North 
Dakota . Chairman Fox and I had th is d iscussion shortly after he was elected . We have 
been meeting at their request since January. We understand their uncerta inties as wel l  as 
ours .  HB 1 476 as i t  stands today there are people who are very upset and bel ieve th is b i l l  
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is essentia l ly a n  insurance pol icy for the state on the backs of the o i l  operators and the 
mineral owners of North Dakota . The fact that it on ly triggers if the reduced rate triggers on 
in our estimation it j ust means that you're raising the tax on the ind ustry. We have 
amendments we've d istributed . We bel ieve you should lower the rate to 9% and if it's a 
good pol icy make it permanent and do it whether or not the trigger triggers. The big 
question we have is how do you have a $40 bi l l ion industry that employs over 80,000 
people in this state and represents 36% of our state's wages, 20% of a l l  of our jobs, 1 8% of 
the state's GVP ,  and a l l  these chemical and fert i l izer p lants are completely dependent on 
the stabi l ity of the del ivery of these products and commodities going forward . Forty days 
from today we have no idea what our tax rate is going to be. You've had compan ies since 
December try to determine if they should complete their wells or d ri l l  their wells or wait. We 
have no idea what oi l  is going to do .  We are a commod ity based business and now we 
have lost 1 00 dr i l l ing rigs and about 1 0, 000 to 1 5 ,000 employees. The surge cou ld n't have 
come at a better time because it's hedged some of the d ifficu lties out there.  We th ink this is 
going to continue; we don't see th is price deck changing for a whi le. Now we're looking at a 
$76 mi l l ion a month incentive . It wi l l  only be taken away if it h its . If the price goes up just 
enough to not trigger we' re going to keep it at 1 1 . 5 percent. We've been meeting with 
these gentlemen and I don't th ink we've been that far off on understanding what 
pred ictabi l ity means. The Bakken is a big ind ustry; it takes massive amou nts of capital and 
plann ing .  I n  my opin ion the five months was too long ; we needed something sign ificant to 
happen i n  February in  order to encourage the investors and the banks .  Now you have 
people sitt ing on 900-1 ,000 wells that haven't been completed . That's $6-8 bi l l ion of 
i nvestment that's going to be needed to complete those wel ls .  I t's the production that 
generates the revenues , creates the jobs, and pays the wages. Who would have thought 
that we'd come into th is session th inking we were going to have $8-9 bi l l ion of oi l  tax 
revenues? I have yet to hear anyone say, other than the chairman ,  what does industry 
need and how do we get this tra in back on the tracks? It's not j ust about industry; it's about 
the people who are going to invest in ind ustry, the smal l  businesses and entrepreneurs 
across the state and country,  it's about what the Bakken has done for the geopol itics of the 
world . We have exited the exploration phase; we are now in the development phase of the 
Bakken.  Now each company goes back and beg ins to look at where to deploy their capita l .  
The world now has our  technology; we' re not the only p lace that has a shale type oi l  play so 
we're going to be competing against the world i n  what we bel ieve is a h igher threshold of oi l  
production .  We can only hope that we return to $90-1 00 barrel of oi l  but I don't think the 
market analysts tel l  you we're going to get back there.  How are we going to make this work 
at $75 barrel of oi l? How do we ensure we have enough money to invest in the chal lenges 
the Bakken brings? Oi l  prod ucers pay 1 00% of sales tax. Find me another ind ustry in the 
state that pays 1 00% of the sales tax on a production basis. All of those 900 wel ls are 
going to pay $250 ,000 per wel l  in  sales tax. We a lso pay the h ighest wages. We think this 
b i l l  along with our amendment is a good pol icy. The chairman and I have had th is 
d iscussion along with his counci l  and my members .  We have to keep North Dakota 
competitive . We are looking at 1 30% tax reduction . On a Bakken wel l  you get half the oi l  
you're ever going to get out of that wel l  with today's technology in the first 24 months. It's a 
significant tax pol icy change. If it's good tax pol icy then let's just do it. We want the tribes 
consu lted as part of this. We agree with them on SB 2226 that they should be part of the 
consu ltation process. There are 400,000 barrels a day of the 1 .2 m i l l ion barrels produced 
today on the reservation . We have to keep that favorable business cl imate there. Many of 
our operators only operate there.  It's critical not only to the entire play but to the thousands 
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of people who work there .  This b i l l  i n  its current format takes away $76 mi l l ion i ncentive 
that is coming our way based upon what the month of May does. 

Chairman Head land:  Can you g ive us an updated number of rigs that are dr i l l ing today? 

Ron Ness : I bel ieve there are 93 at this current t ime; n ine in the boundaries of the Fort 
Berthold I nd ian  Reservation and 42 in McKenzie County. We have retracted to the better 
areas . We've seen a 50% reduction in our rig count and each one of those rigs accounts 
for about 1 77 jobs . We've a l l  been humbled and surprised by what can happen . We are at 
the mercy of the com mod ity market. 

Representative Froseth: Can you expla in when you said this b i l l  wou ld amount to $96 
mi l l ion revenue to the oi l  compan ies? 

Ron Ness: Your  fisca l note of $ 1 20 mi l l ion takes the Moody's budget forecast in the March 
forecast and amortizes it out across the $ 1 . 1  mi l l ion barrels.  When we look at this it 
immediately resu lts in about a $76 mi l l ion per month incentive. The revenues to the state 
in the month of October was over $200 mi l l ion a month in oi l  tax revenues to the state 
which equates to a l ittle over $ 1 1 m i l l ion a day. This is a big d iscussion . 

Chairman Headland: We understand the cause for the price of o i l  to d rop and it's a supply 
and the amount of increased production that is seen across the world and here we are .  
Can you speak to that a l ittle bit and g ive us an idea of what would make that change? 

Ron Ness: As consumers we l ike the price d rop in gasol ine.  Who would have expected 
that we cou ld turn around our al l iance on foreign oi l  this qu ick? I bel ieve we were at 67% 
before 2007 when the Bakken technology to how to produce oil from shale real ly took off. 
We have reversed that and we have now become the world leader in  energy prod uction as 
a whole. I th ink we are set to become the world leader in  oi l  prod uction . We've got to 
reba lance this whole supply of energy and what the new normal price wi l l  be is what we 
need to be concerned about. We need to figure out how we're going to make it work at $75 
a barrel rather than $90 a barrel because it wil l  work somewhere else at $75 a barrel and 
that's what you compete against .  

Representative Froseth : You're proposed amendment would place a tax at  9% effective 
immed iately if this b i l l  gets a n  emergency clause. 

Ron Ness: My amendment lowers the extraction tax from 4 .5% to 4% and it is not 
dependent upon whether or not the triggers hit . If its good pol icy for the state it should be 
good pol icy for the state J une 1 ,  not j ust if and when the trigger should h it. 

Representative Froseth: I f  the state lowers theirs to 9% and Fort Berthold say they need 
1 1 . 5% how wil l  that affect the prod uction in Fort Berthold if there are two rates? 

Ron Ness: I haven't heard the tribe say they need 1 1 .5% a l l  the t ime. I 've heard them say 
we should look at a floating rate where they do wel l  when industry does wel l .  
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Representative Froseth : If we exempted the Fort Berthold production from the triggers 
the effective rate as of now would be 1 1 .5% and then leave it that way and let the 
negotiations contin ue between the state and Fort Berthold . 

Ron Ness : I bel ieve that is the desire of the Three Affi l iated Tribes. They do not l ike the 
big trigger. They don't l ike triggers period . They want some type of tax structure that g ives 
them the flexib i l ity to be more adaptive to the current price and situation on the ground . 

Representative Haak: Do oi l  compan ies h i re their own speculators or those who pred ict 
future prices? If so, what do your  speculators pred ict for the next 24 months? 

Ron Ness: Compan ies employ all types of analysts all over the world . The expectation of 
ind ustry is we're looking at a 1 2  or 24 month cycle before you beg in to see significant 
recovery. By sign ificant recovery in the Bakken I th ink it takes $75 WTIOL in order to 
stimu late that investment. This is an investment play so you have to attract investment 
from the bankers and th i rd parties to get a return on your  dol lar. That's why taxes matter. 
Our belief is that we are sett l ing in to this new price deck for some period of time before we 
get back to a place where we th ink the economics across the Bakken are going to be 
substantial enough in order to see sign ificant activity uptick. 

Representative Steiner: Chairman Fox mentioned an exemption for the tribe off of HB 
14 76 .  What are you r  thoughts on that? If they negotiate at  10  and the state goes ahead 
with 1 476 do you see some confl ict there? 

Ron Ness : I th ink a un iform tax pol icy across the field is the best policy. You need to find 
a pol icy that works for everyone and keep the playing field as flat as possible. The last 
thing we want is for them to cancel the agreement in  my opin ion.  We would send ourselves 
back into pre-2007 chaos. 

Representative Trottier: If you were sitt ing on this side of the desk and you had a choice 
between what we currently have with the potential  that the big trigger is going to kick in  and 
if we put in a flat 9 .5% on June 1 ,  what are your  thoughts? 

Ron Ness: You have ten days so you need to make a decision . I th ink it's time to put this 
issue to rest and find something that you feel is the right rate . If our prod uction doubles you 
get $ 1 6  b i l l ion and on the other hand you end up with $2 bi l l ion so as policymakers you 
have to decide what the right n umber is. You're hedging your  bottom side by g iving up a 
l ittle bit on the top side. You have to be out looking today to get money next fal l  not next 
budget cycle. Barring any substantial increase in the price of oi l  today we are looking at 
trying to figure out what's going on in  20 1 6  very soon .  P red ictabi l ity is good . We don't 
think this bi l l  in its current form is real ly a pred ictable measure .  We need to set this thing in  
motion so we can beg in to plan for June 1 .  Put yourself in  the eyes of an oi l  producer and 
say out of those 900 wells sitt ing out there to be completed you've held off on 1 00 of them 
yourself. When are you going to know what your  tax rate on June 1 is going to be? Are 
you keeping you r  employees today or are you letting them go? Are you keeping your  track 
crews on hold or are you lett ing them go? I don't th ink we' l l  know unti l  the last few days of 
May what the tax rate is going to be on June 1 .  
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Representative Froseth: Do you bel ieve the most important point to the industry is that 
the potential d iscount of the state tax rate or is it the low price of oil that's keeping them 
from putting those wel ls into prod uction? 

Ron Ness: Certain ly the price of oil is what drives the industry but we cannot control the 
price of oi l .  You have to try and el iminate as many of the unknown factors you can .  Today 
you are trying to d rive down your  costs. Pred ictabi l ity in terms of knowing long term where 
I 'm going to be at and where I have to get to is important but the price of oi l  is what d rives 
the investors' decision to put their money into the wel ls ,  apartments, houses, and 
secondary business activity that is taking place across North Dakota . 

Representative Mitskog: If the big trigger occurs in  June what do you foresee happen ing 
with activity in the Bakken? 

Ron Ness: I t  puts about $76 mi l l ion a month of cash back into the system .  It probably 
inspires you to go out and complete some of those wel ls .  It encourages you to do 
recompletions on your other wel ls .  It maybe adds to your  infrastructure depending on 
whether you're bul l ish on the price in the next six to eight months. My guess is they start 
looking at how that affects their capital budget for 20 1 6. It probably won 't inspire a whole 
bunch of d ri l l ing rigs but it may keep the 90 that we have with maybe picking up one or two 
more .  It encourages you to complete those wel ls .  Contrary to popu lar  opin ion there is  
noth ing that requ i res you to complete these wel ls under current provisions. I 'm going to sit 
back and wait without that. 

Chairman Headland: Is there anyone else who would l ike to testify in  a neutra l capacity? 
Seeing none we wil l  close the hearing on H B  1 476. 

Add itional testimony was d istributed from North Dakota Petroleum Counci l ;  see attachment 
#6 . 
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Explanation or reason for i ntroducf n of bi l l/resol ution: A bi l l  relating to oi l  extraction 
tax rates and exemptions; and to p vide an effective date. 

Min utes : ttachments #1 , 2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5 

Chairman Headland: We wi l l  now have d iscussion on the bi l l  before us .  

Representative Schneider: I s  there someone from the tax department avai lable to 
answer some questions on the fiscal note? 

Kevin Schatz, Tax Department: Kathy Stombeck would be the one to answer those 
questions, and she is out of the office today. If I know what type of fisca l impact you are 
looking for, I cou ld visit with the auditor and see if we cou ld work someth ing up .  

Chairman Headland: I had Joe Morsett prepare two d ifferent scenarios for the next 
bienn ium.  One would be to al low the trigger to go into effect and what the effect of that as 
far as revenues would be. The other document shows the d ifference between what the 
effective tax rate wou ld be at the 6 Yi% rate versus the 4 1 /2 % rate, and the amount of 
revenue d ifference that we would be d iscussing . 

Distributed : Estimated Revenue Impact if 201 1 HB 1420 Had Been Passed, see 
attachment #1 . A copy of the b i l l ,  1 1 .061 7 .0 1 000, and new fiscal note. See attachments 
#2 and #3. 

Part of the argument put forth from opposing testimony and a lot of the questions were 
about the money that was going to be left on the table or possib i l ity of money left on the 
table and the d ifference between the 6 Yi% and the 4 Yi% extraction rate. If we go back to 
the 201 1 session,  so everyone understands the type of scenarios that we are looking at. I 
wi l l  d istribute an estimate as to what the impact to state revenues would have been,  had we 
passed the b i l l  at that t ime. See attachments #4 and #5. Remember this shouldn't be a 
pol itical issue, or a partisan issue, but it should be based on what is best for the state. 
These estimates were based on a b i l l  that was brought forth by two members of the 
minority party. 
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Representative Stri nden: I 'm g lad that you brought up partisanship because that is e something that I was thinking about a lot this morn ing .  At our party last week I said that we 
a l l  have the same vision for where we want to get, but we have d ifferent road maps. When 
I look at this b i l l, I don't see a Republican versus Democrat issue.  I th ink that there is rea l ly 
j ust a d ifference in how you see the future . I do th ink that if we pass th is b i l l, in the fi rst two 
years we would make money that we otherwise would lose, but I th ink that i n  the long term 
th is is going to lose the state money. Some of the other people in  this committee m ight not 
th ink that, but I am not opposing it because I am a Democrat; I am opposing it because that 
is what I th ink what oil prices are going to do in the future. I am not coming at it from a 
position of partisansh ip .  

C hairman Headland: Nor should any of us.  I am passing th is out to make a point. If it 
was a good idea back in 201 1 ,  and there are reasons that the bi l l  was put in :  It is what 
industry has asked for for several bienniums in  a row; they want a flatter more certain tax. 

Representative Haak: Tax department: It was stated i n d iscussion this morning that this 
is NOT permanent; that we can come back and increase it later if we want to. Over the last 
several bienn iums how often has th is leg islature decided to increase a tax? 

Kevin Schatz: I don't know if I can answer that question for sure, but I am not aware of 
any legislation that has increased a tax. 

Vice C ha i rman Owens: We increased the gas tax in  2005. 

C hairman Headland: If you look at these two documents (Attachment #4 and #5), you can 
see that there is uncertainty in  oi l  price and production . But, if you look at the detriment of 
revenues in the scenario where the trigger is al lowed to take effect, and it stays on the 
whole bienn ium, we are deal ing with a revenue shortfal l  that wi l l  be very d ifficult to manage. 

Representative Stri n d e n :  I agree that this b i l l  would help us save a lot of money TH I S  
bienn ium.  What I am concerned about i s  the biennia going forward a n d  forward and 
forward . . .  On this sheet that references 201 1 ,  which would have been the Onstad I Meier 
b i l l, am I read ing this correctly that we would have lost out on about $ 1 . 5  bi l l ion? 

Chairman Headland: That would be correct. But, the point would be, if it was good policy 
to do it then, and we could l ive without the revenue then, we should certain ly be able to do 
that moving forward in  exchange for certainty and predictabi l ity for budgeting purposes . 

Representative Stri nden: I wasn't here in  20 1 1 , and there were probably somewhat 
d ifferent circumstances then. This is kind of a g l impse of what could have happened if we 
had passed this before, and I am sorry that Democrats brought it forward . It is such a huge 
loss for the next few years .  

Representative Schneider: This has come up fa i rly qu ickly from our perspective, even if 
you have been looking at it for a longer period . We just saw this on Friday. The fiscal note 
sti l l  wasn't ava i lable when I checked last n ight, so th is morning is the first time that we have 
seen a fiscal note. It doesn't address the deepest concerns that I have for what happens to 
the revenue that we need from these one-time resources to meet the basic needs of our 

• 



• 

House Finance and Taxation Committee 
H B  1 476 
April 20, 201 5  
Page 3 

people on into the far future .  I th ink that there were a lot of questions that were raised this 
morn ing ,  and unti l  we can get someone who can add ress those questions, I won't real ly be 
comfortable moving forward . I th ink it would be irresponsible of us not to know what is 
going to happen in  2-4-6-8 years when this is going to impair  our water projects , schools, 
and our basic needs. I hope we can wait to get answers to those questions.  

Chairman Headla nd: Th is is what we face every b ienn ium.  There is uncertainty about 
what revenues will be, but the fact that you wi l l  be back here next session ,  and you can put 
forward any legis lation that you feel is responsible for any purpose , is a luxury that any 
leg islator has every t ime they come back to the next leg islative session . All revenues are 
rel iant on the way that the economy moves along . What we have tried to do is provide an 
environment in  which the economy can grow and tried to ensure that revenues wi l l  be there 
for the future because of g rowth . No one knows what the effect of the income tax cut, that 
we just passed , will be 8-1 0  years down the road.  That is why we meet every two years , so 
we can address those th ings.  

Representative Klein moved a DO PASS on H B  1 476. 
Representative Dockter seconded the motion. 

Representative Froseth: A lot of the conversation has centered on the fact that the trigger 
wi l l  NOT go on ,  and the prices will come back up .  We are anticipating losing a lot of 
revenue when that happens, but if the trigger does go ON ,  which it is l ikely to do, and stays 
on for 1 0- 1 1 months, I th ink that everyone is looking for stabi l ity in the revenues. We would 
l ike to bu i ld that into our budgets in the future and depend on the money to be there. I 
would l ike to see a flat tax eventual ly .  I don't know if this is the right t ime or not. If we are 
going to do it, I wou ld l ike to see it around the 1 0% range rather than the 9%. 

Representative Kading: I th ink th is pol icy of having a random percentage tax is not good 
pol icy. The state can't budget on it. It is not good for ind ustry. We can 't get an 1 1  Yi% tax 
without a trigger, that won't pass the floor, and we are not going to get a 5% tax through 
without a trigger. I th ink that 9 Yi % is a good middle g round to start at. It is clear that if we 
don't pass someth ing l ike this ,  we are going to have some fiscal troubles in the next 
bienn ium.  One thing to remember is that we are taking this money from private investors. 
Th is money isn't our money; it is private investor money. It is not that we are losing it; we 
are just not taxing it. I th ink that this b i l l  could result in more revenue or less revenue. It is 
impossible to predict the oil prices, but it is the best decision that we can make at this point. 

Representative M itskog: Certain ly, there are questions about what is the right tax. But, 
we are in  the last week, and where was this bill a month ago? Chairman Headland,  you 
had a wonderfu l speaker in here the first week of session that raised questions and 
concerns about this commodity that we are so dependent on, and that it was going to be in 
a decl ine for qu ite some time. So, I go back to the question , where were the d iscussions? 
To have this d ropped on us at the end,  and to make this hasty decis ion ,  I wou ld l ike th is 
stud ied . What is the right tax? I th ink that there are questions that wi l l  surface this 
afternoon.  To be impuls ively and reactively making a decision is a bad choice. 

Representative Stri nden: Representative Kad ing said it isn't our money, that it is private 
investment money. When it comes to the oil extraction tax, I th ink that out of all of the 
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taxes that this is North Dakota's money. We are l iteral ly taking it out of the g round , and a l l  
of the proceeds are go ing out of state. I th ink we shouldn't cheapen ourselves and g ive our 
resources away too easily. 

Representative Haak: I a lso want to remind the committee that th is 6 .5% tax is the 
people's tax .  They voted on it and wanted this tax. The triggers were through legislative 
action by bipartisan people. The 6 %% was voted on by the people of North Dakota . 

Chairman Headland: It was voted on by the people when the production wasn't near what 
it is today. At that time I don't th ink anyone cou ld have envisioned what it cou ld mean .  

Representative Hatlestad: During the time leadership was considering this b i l l ,  was there 
ever any thought of a g radual  red uction of the tax? For example,  kick it right away from 1 1  
%% to 1 1  % and then g rad ual ly reduce it to whatever figure we determine is a satisfactory 
compromise? 

Chairman Headland: In the meetings I attended there wasn't that d iscussion .  

Representative Froseth: I understand the frustration that a l l  of us get at this time of the 
session when decisions have to be made in a hurry. Every session we get delayed bi l ls that 
come in the last week. This isn't something that is new this session .  

Representative Steiner: I agree with Representative Hatlestad . Perhaps people would 
feel more comfortable if we gradually stepped it down over two or three years .  Then it • wouldn't be such a d rop. Maybe start in  20 1 6  at 1 0 . 5  and then go to 1 0  and then to 9 %%. _ 

I th ink that there is support for the 9 %%, but there is some concern about how qu ickly we 
get there .  H is proposa l was to step it down % % over six years. Even if we d id a l ittle bit 
and get there in  20 1 8 ; there wou ld be some way that the companies would know it was 
coming,  and we would be budgeting . There sti l l  would be certainty, but it wou ld n't be so a l l  
of the sudden .  

Chairman Headland: These d iscussions have been ongoing .  The reason this b i l l  d idn 't 
get heard unti l  now was that we d idn 't have any idea what was going to happen , how long 
term or what the trend was going to be on oi l  prices. When it was made clear in the March 
forecast, that is when the d iscussions rea l ly ramped up .  This is a b i l l  that was d iscussed 
with industry, with the tribal  leaders,  and it was d iscussed amongst leadership .  This is the 
end result of those d iscussions. Granted , there may be some un happiness with a l l  the 
parties i nvolved , but it is a compromise. I don't th ink that industry wi l l  go a long with g iving 
up the triggers at a l l  for a ramp down tax. I don't th ink that the tribe is necessarily going to 
support a ramping down of the tax over bienn iums. The tribe, as they ind icated , is looking 
for some flexib i l ity a nd would l ike the opportun ity to increase the tax as the price of oi l  
increases. This is legis lation that comes from d iscussions and a lot of meetings. 

Representative Sch neide r: I appreciate that some people have d iscussed this, but 
certain ly I haven't seen the evidence of br inging together the good m inds and good ideas 
that we have in this state on a broad basis. Both Rep. Hatlestad and Rep. Steiner 
suggested other ways that we might be able to do this that might be better for the 
petroleum industry and for the citizens of North Dakota . I th ink that we should be taking the 
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time to thoughtfu l ly d iscuss and decide on it. If my math is anywhere near close, it is pretty 
shocking .  It looks l ike in the short term we might gain about $81 6 mi l l ion , but after that, 
using Moody's estimates ,  it looks l ike we could lose over a b i l l ion dol lars per biennium after 
the first bienn ium.  That is an awfu l lot of money that we could use to do good th ings for our 
state. I th ink that this is the first of the tax bi l ls that has not come with a fisca l note that we 
can d iscuss and no one to answer the questions. I have questions about how this wi l l  
impact our people in the future .  

Chairman Headland: I ask you about any fiscal note that you have gotten ,  where 
leg islative council looks into the future with certainty. Can you tell me one? 

Representative Schneider: We've at least had the opportun ity to ask the questions of the 
experts. We don't have that opportun ity with this, the biggest bil l of this session . 

Representative Mitskog: This is a commod ities based state. We have had peaks and 
val leys in our two big commod ities, oi l  being one. Go back to studying taxation. Rather 
than making hasty decisions, look to the agriculture industry. When the farmers are in a 
critical situation and markets d rop out, they don't make hasty decisions.  They don't sel l  the 
farm . They tighten thei r  budgets and ride out the storm . To make a decision so qu ickly 
with so many u nknowns for the future . . .  I th ink questions have come up again today. We 
have seen peaks and val leys before. I ask why have we not stud ied th is? 

Chairman Headla nd: The last time it lasted 1 7  years . Are you prepared to go it out 1 7  
years? 

Representative M itskog: I don't th ink that anyone wants to go back to that period of time, 
and I don't th ink that there are any ind ications, right now, from our analysts that are 
suggesting that. But to make such long term changes to our taxation in  the eleventh hour, I 
am wondering if that is the wisest thing to do. 

Chairman Headland: I don't th ink that this bi l l  has not been thought out.  You have maybe 
not been part of those d iscussions, but I have been .  It has been thought out for a wh i le 
now. It's taken some time to get to a position where we decided for the necessity of 
budgeting ,  we needed to introduce it. So, it is on the table today. We can study 
commodities and taxation .  But this is an extraord inari ly d ifferent tax that is not appl ied 
against any other commod ity in this state. 

Representative Froseth: I don't know if anyone can come up with a fiscal analysis that 
would hold true. There are so many variables. We have 1 00 fewer rigs dr i l l ing in the state 
right now than we had a year ago. Each rig is capable of dr i l l ing eight new wells in a year's 
t ime. That wou ld be 800 new wells that aren't being d ri l led in the next year. I read , 
somewhere ,  that it takes 47 wells coming onl ine every month to keep our production at 1 .2 
m i l l ion barrels .  From January to February we had one new wel l  come into production. 
Un less we keep the o i l  compan ies work ing ,  the volume is going to go down , and our 
income is going to go down no matter what the tax is .  There are a lot of things to take in 
consideration . We have to look at the b ig picture,  and what is the best a l l-around pol icy to 
keep them a l l  work ing .  If there are 1 00 less rigs work ing ,  that is about 1 0 ,000 employees 
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that are not earn ing money, paying i ncome tax, and sales tax. It is a big loss that is more 
than just the o i l  tax revenue. 

Vice Chairman Owens: appreciate the point of looking forward and not jumping to 
conclusions. But, I want to remind everyone that this isn't a qu ick jump or reaction. Last 
session H B  1 234 sought to do this, and it stepped it down . It passed the House and went 
to the Senate. The Senate had a b i l l ,  2236 I believe, that also sought to get rid of the 
triggers. All this was a proactive approach to gett ing rid of the triggers ,  prior to us getting 
in  the situation that we are in now. What has happened is that we are sti l l  trying to become 
proactive rather than reactive by going ahead and putting this b i l l  in now. In my opinion it 
is too late to put in the step-down now. I l iked the step-down; my name was on that b i l l ,  
but when i t  came out of the Senate i t  was completely d ifferent. It d idn 't do what i t  was 
supposed to do,  which was to el iminate the triggers and go to a flat, stable, pred ictable tax 
level that we could use to predict revenue. We are not jumping the gun .  We have had 
commentary in 201 1 and 20 1 3, and now we are up against the fence. 

Representative Schneider: I n  deference to Rep . Froseth , I would say that if  our future is 
that uncertain ,  then my biggest concern is that we're doing a short sided fix for something 
that m ight turn into a long term m istake. The permanence of it is really unsettl ing to me. I n  
s o  many of o u r  other tax bi l ls we have al lowed for stud ies , o r  sunset provis ions, o r  a set 
term . Here we have the one that has the largest impact on our state's revenue, and we 
haven't done that. I th ink  maybe this should be a short term issue. 

Chairman Headland: Every leg is lature is suspect to the next legis lative assembly. That 
• fol lowing assembly can make changes. If we come back next session and regret making _ 

this move, we certain ly can change it. Those are things that legis latures do al l  of the time. 

Representative Sch neide r: It says permanent in there, and it does not have to . 
presume that there is some intent that goes with that verbiage. 

Representative Strinden: I don't rea l ly care when this was introd uced , I feel l ike I would 
feel the same way about the b i l l  e ither way. I th ink that the sheet about 1 420 is pretty 
tel l ing .  It has a loss every s ingle month June 1 1 th through February 1 5th . I don't th ink it was 
good pol icy in 201 1 ,  and I don't th ink it is good pol icy for us now. We may see some short 
term gain in the next couple of years, and that is rea l ly enticing ,  but the fact that this b i l l  is 
so far-reach ing,  it could real ly  have some negative consequences on our economy. 

Representative Haak: I would l ike to cal l  the question .  

A DO PASS motion was made on H B  1 476. 

A rol l  cal l  vote was taken :  Aye 10 Nay 4 Absent 0 
The motion carried . 

Rep. Mark Owens wi l l  carry H B  1 476. 



• 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. I YI L, 

Date: l/ -dO- 15 
Roll Call Vote#: I 

House Finance and Taxation Committee 

0 Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

~Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Q._,. ~ Seconded By R._q, ~ 

Representatives Y¢; No Representatives Yes No, 
CHAIRMAN HEADLAND V/ REP HAAK v · 
VICE CHAIRMAN OWENS V/ REP STRINDEN V/ 
REP DOCKTER \11 REP MITSKOG V/ 
REP TOMAN ..;, REP SCHNEIDER J 
REP FROSETH \// 
REP STEINER v/ 
REP HATLESTAD ~ 
REP KLEIN V/ 
REP KADING \// 
REP TROTTIER v 

Total (Yes) ----=--' _O ____ No _Y ________ _ 
Absent 0 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 20, 201 5 2 : 33pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_71_001 
Ca rrier: Owens 

REPORT OF STAN DING COMMITTEE 
HB 1476 : Finance and Taxation Comm ittee (Rep. Head land, Chairman) recommends 

DO PASS ( 1 0 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING) .  HB 1 476 was placed 
on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_7 1 _001 



2015 SENATE FINANCE AND TAXATION 

HB 1476 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Fi nance and Taxation Committee 

Brynhi ld Haugland Room , State Capitol 

H B 1 476 
4/2 1 /20 1 5  

Job #26323 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for i ntrod uction of b i l l/resolution : 
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Min utes : 2, #3, #4, #5, #6 

Chairman Cook opened the hearing on H B 1 476. All committee members present. 

Sen . Cook -- Opened the hearing and welcomed Rep .  Carlson .  

Rep. Carlson - - (Attachment # 1  Proposed Restructu ring o f  O i l  Extraction Tax) It's 
good to be able to come two days in a row and say basically the same th ing .  It's probably 
good to keep thing rol l ing along whi le it is fresh in everyone's minds.  I wi l l  expla in the bil l to 
you and what it does. This b i l l  is a trigger on the trigger. It establ ishes that if the large 
trigger were to h it which means that the price of oi l  for 5 consecutive months must average 
below $55.09.  At this t ime today the price is above the trigger but most of the month it has 
been below. It appears that April wi l l  be the 4th consecutive month of having the trigger 
price met. If the trigger is met the tax on extraction would go down and there are taxes 
with in that tax and one would d rop to 2% and one would d rop 6 . 5% ,  depending on whether 
those are old or new wel ls .  That would be a tax rate of zero for many of the new wells on 
the extraction side of the tax. In the House we d id not pass the emergency clause. We d id 
not have the requ i red 2/3 vote to pass that which means that the bi l l  would not go into 
effect unti l the normal time in which bi l ls go into effect which would have an effect on 
lowering the fiscal note because that wou ld have an effect on that month where noth ing 
was to happen or the triggers would take place .  4 .5% would be the yield but it does not 
take away some of the exemptions in the b i l l .  It does not take away the production from 
stripper wel l  property or an ind ivid ual stripper. It does not take away the secondary or 
tertiary recovery projects that we have had exemptions for, and it  does not take away the 
exemption for the production of wells d ri l led and completed outside the Bakken and Three 
Forks formations.  Those were in place for a reason :  it was to incentivize that dri l l ing to 
move outside of that circle of where the very best producing wells are at. Those items are 
not taken out of the b i l l .  When we started this b iennium the governor's fi rst projection was 
oi l  to be priced between $7 4 and $82/barrel and we would produce between 1 .22 and 1 .4M 
barrels a day. In January we lowered that forecast to 1 .2M barrels/day and we lowered the 



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
HB1 476 
Apri l 2 1 , 201 5 
Page 2 

price of o i l .  That red uced the revenue anticipated by $48.  I n  March we had a reforecast by 
Moody's and they agreed in  that forecast that they thought the l ikel ihood of the trigger 
h itting was pretty evident so they bu i lt in  the trigger happening i n  their forecast. We further 
lowered that forecast to $3 .48 instead of the $4 .28 .  At this point in  time, with their forecast, 
we are almost $58 less revenue than we projected when the governor had his speech to us 
in December. People have said why are you moving so fast and why did you wait unt i l  the 
701h day? We have watched the revenue go down and down and we've also done 
projections. We are here to decide what is fa i r, equ itable tax pol icy on oi l  for the state of 
North Dakota . Not how much money we hope to gain so that we can spend more. This 
would make it a rate of 4 .5% on extraction ,  5% on production .  With al l those numbers 
going down , they told us if the trigger goes on in June and does not stay on for the 1 0  
months we predicted in  our forecast but stays on for 2 years ,  now the revenue from oi l  
would be $2 .28,  a $68 red uction from what we anticipated when we started this projection 
way back in  December and January. We have lost $850M to date, only because of the 
price of low oi l .  I t had noth ing to do with anybody's triggers .  When we did our final 
projections, we assumed that we would hold 1 . 1  M barrels of o i l  prod uction a day and that 
we would have a g raduating price where the price of oil would increase $4 
up to mid-50's range over the course of the bienn ium . That's what we based it on and we 

assumed that there would be no less than 1 00 rigs prod ucing .  Today there are 94 rigs .  
There are 920 odd wel ls to be tracked . We normal ly track 1 35 wel ls a month. Last month 
we tracked 45 wel ls .  We have seen a tremendous downturn in prod uction and the laying 
down of rigs .  Some believe that we wil l  fal l  below the mi l l ion barrels of oi l  a day. The 
industry does not fi re their rigs back up at $38.  They say it better be $70. So was it 
prudent to look at the tax structure and see that we had some type of a stab le environment 
for the taxes for ourselves as pred ictable revenue and for the industry to have one? My 
answer was yes and that is why the b i l l  is before you .  (meter 9 :00- 1 3 : 1 4) I th ink this i s  
sound responsible tax pol icy and  I would hope that you would pass the b i l l .  

S e n .  Cook - - Rep. Carlson ,  I 've got to ask you one question : why the trigger on the trigger? 
Why don't we just do it? 

Rep. Carlson -- There's pol it ics and there's pol icy. I was and am on your  side and bel ieve 
that we need a very defin ite tax pol icy. If you fol low the news today, the news was about 
how much money we were going to lose to potentia l ly spend . I don't bel ieve that there is 
the appetite, but what is that number? If you went to the industry, you would get a d ifferent 
number, if it was an immed iate d rop , then you would get if you are going to have the trigger 
that may or may not happen. 

Sen. Tri plett - - You ind icated in  your  testimony that you th ink this is good tax pol icy for 
North Dakota and you said you wanted a fair  and equ itable tax pol icy. I am asking you how 
do you justify this relative to the oi l  industry? How is this fair  to the industry when we have 
had this triggering mechan ism in effect since 1 987 and they came to the state with this in 
p lace and now the very second that it would take effect, you try to pu l l  the rug out from 
under them and ,  but for the emergency clause not passing,  would have done that? 

Rep. Carlson -- We obviously did n't do this in a vacuum.  We talked to the oil industry and 
talked to the people who are actual ly investing b i l l ions of dol lars i n  our state and they said a 
certain  number of us who bel ieve that we are going to track some more wel ls and d ri l l  some 



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
H B 1 476 
Apri l 21 , 201 5 
Page 3 

more wells if we get the 6 .5% red uction .  We talked to others who said it wi l l  not make any 
d ifference to us. We want a flat rate. We want a new rate and be done with it. It is a tax 
increase on them . They are on new wel ls and even old wel ls are going to be paying more 
tax. 

Sen . Triplett -- It's a tax increase in the short term because they were expecting the trigger 
to go on; it's a tax decrease in the long term . You are saying in  your  understanding the 
industry is with you on this? 

Rep. Carlson -- Some in the industry l ike it and some don't. Our job is to create public 
pol icy and to have a stable pol icy. We don't have a floating rate on sales tax.  We don't 
have a floating rate on gas tax. Our pol icy is consistent to have a standard rate , I bel ieve . 
Let's remember that in  2009 we missed by 2 days and . 32 from having that trigger go on . 
We were almost in  a panic mood before we left as to what to do because that would have 
cost us no less than $ 1  QOM that we had spent. 

Sen. Tri plett -- I don't d isagree that un iformity and pred ictabi l ity is good tax policy. My 
question is more about the immed iacy of it, in terms of not g iving the industry time to plan 
for this. I f  we were to do this but have a delayed effective t ime, 6 to 1 2  months, so that 
they could rol l  i nto it, wouldn 't that be more fai r  to the industry than cutting it off so abruptly? 

Rep. Carlson - - Yesterday it was mostly assumptions in our debate on the floor of the 
House. It d idn't end up being about the b i l l .  I t ended up being about lowering the tax. Th is 
may never happen , a lthough we are assum ing that it will take place.  Sen .  Cook's position 
is to do it right now and get it over with . You are on the other side of that, let's see if we 
can wait a . . .  

Sen. Cook -- I 'm not sure that she is. I th ink that she is concerned about losing this trigger 
for 4 or 5 months. It's got a benefit to it, but. . .  

Sen . Tri plett -- Have you considered how th is b i l l ,  if it passes in  the form that's it's currently 
in ,  how it would affect the tribal compact that is currently in force with the Three Affi l iated 
Tribes? 

Rep. Carlson -- We have looked at the compact and we have had d iscussions with the 
Native Americans all a long on this and I'm g lad to see that they are here today as wel l  as 
yesterday. That's a question that you have to ask them. The compact that we are 
presently in says that we are joined at the h ip .  We bel ieve that is sti l l  the case. (meter 
1 8 :20- 1 8:28) 

Sen. Tri plett -- Before you d rafted it or before you presented it, d id you d iscuss it? 

Rep. Carlson - - We had that d iscussion .  I have a copy of the compact. I believe that we 
sti l l  okay. 

Sen . Tri plett -- You d id d iscuss a comparison with Texas and the Eagle Ford , in particular, 
in  terms of tax rates and suggested that your  opin ion is that we should be in  the middle of 
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the pack. Can you tel l  me what research you have done to bel ieve that tax pol icy makes 
any particu lar amount of d ifference in terms of where oi l  compan ies invest? 

Rep. Carlson -- Ask anybody in Alaska what has happened to their d ri l l ing rigs because 
they have the h ighest oil tax in the nation and they have lost most of their production and 
new production .  

Sen. Tri plett - - Have you done any research relative to economist or tax pol icy experts or  
even fiscal analysts for major oi l  compan ies, do you have any legitimate research that wi l l  
support your  position that tax pol icy makes much d ifference to decision making? 

Rep. Carlson - - I don't  know that I said it  makes a d ifference, I said a consistent tax 
relative to North Dakota is more important to me. How does it d i rectly affect North Dakota? 
The comparison was, that was my point, that we are not h igh ,  we are not low, we are in the 
middle. We are taxing a private resource . This is not l ike Alaska that has federal lands. 
These are private ind ivid uals that own a majority of this resource in  North Dakota and we 
are taxing them as wel l  as the industry. 

Sen. Cook - - J ust for your reference, page 77 of your  red books, you wil l  see all of the 
taxes of the other states, the oil taxes , and the one that sticks out and we are not very 
competitive with is Oklahoma. This is one of the best charts you wi l l  find as far as tax 
pol icy of the other states on oi l .  

I had some commun ications with Kathy Strombeck and she tells me that the effective tax 
• rate for oi l  taxes is 1 1 . 1 5 . She also tells me: that's the highest it's been in history. It is 

going down and the bottom is 6 or 6 . 1 and if you look back to this research that we got 
early in the session,  you wil l  see that the effective oi l  extraction rate that they are using is 
6 . 1 % .  To me that is the chal lenge we have, an effective tax rate that in  less than a year 
can go from 1 1 . 1 5  to 6 . 1 % .  

Sen.  Ward ner - - I see everybody here now that I saw yesterday, s o  I wi l l  not repeat. 
support the concept in H B 1 476 that would bring more stabi l ity and lead to more investment 
in North Dakota. Th is wou ld mean more jobs and would mean more economic activity 
which wou ld increase the reven ue that would go into our genera l  fund . It would cut down 
on the revenue if everyth ing were the same as far as the o i l  tax revenue. Any time you 
have more activity, more investment, that means that production is going to be up .  When 
you take a look at tax revenues, the price d ictates and a lso the prod uction .  If everything 
were the same, the reven ue under the new tax rate wou ld put less money into the oi l  tax 
buckets. 

Sen . Dotzenrod - - We've had a real tremendous growth in the oi l  business over the last 8 
years or so with the oi l  boom going on with a rate of 1 1 .5%.  If we remove the triggers to 
achieve the stabi l ity and predictabi l ity that you talked about, why wou ld we red uce the tax 
rate at al l? 

Sen.  Wardner - - We would lower the tax because as long as the oi l  prices were h igh ,  not a 
problem; as soon as the oi l  price came down below the $70, the rigs start stacking up north 
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of Dickinson . They have continued and the price plays a part in  it . P rice is a big factor in 
an oi l  company's decis ion .  The tax rate is a lso a factor. 

Sen. Cook -- Don't you th ink that it is the abi l ity to make a profit that's the biggest factor 
and that, as you look at you r  expenses and the prices you get, taxes are going to have an 
influence on the bottom l ine? 

Sen. Wa rdner -- That's true.  Those 2 things lead to profitab i l ity . 

Sen. Cook -- Especial ly as we compete with other states.  

Sen. Triplett -- Yesterday you said that they started to take the r igs down and take them 
out of the state when prices started going down . Today you said the rigs are down and 
stacked up north of Dickinson .  Do you know how many rigs have actual ly been removed 
from the state versus just been laid down? 

Sen. Ward ner -- I know that we were at about 1 90 .  We are now down at about 90. That's 
a hundred rigs and I am told that there are approximately 70 rigs stacked up around the 
state and the rest, 30, have gone to Colorado and Oklahoma.  

S e n .  Tri plett -- So both answers are correct. I have 3 questions:  why do you think this is 
fai r  to the industry? The bi l l  would have l itera l ly put this new formula into place the second 
it went on and would have g iven a pretty large tax break to the industry in the immediate 
future for some unknown period of t ime. How is it fa i r  to make that change with barely a 
month's notice? 

Sen . Ward ner -- The fact of the matter, if it wouldn't have been for visiting with other 
people in  the industry, I wou ldn't th ink it was fair  at a l l .  Without any d iscussion with them, 
they would have gotten the tax hol iday first. My feel ing is that they were wi l l ing to trade that 
for the lower rate . 

Sen. Tri plett -- Mr. Ron Ness came in yesterday and I l istened to h is testimony also and he 
said he was testifying in a neutral capacity on the b i l l  but the testimony seemed kind of 
negative to me. So I 'm wondering ,  is the industry real ly on board with this? 

Sen. Ward ner -- I wou ldn't say that they are completely on board . They are kind of on 
board . 

Sen. Cook -- Hopefu l ly we wi l l  get some ind ication when they testify. 

Sen. Tri plett -- How do you th ink this affects the tribal compact? Have you thought about 
it? What's your  best information? 

Sen . Ward ner -- If the tribal compact stays in, un less it's broken by either side, it's in play. 
It wi l l  defin ite ly take away the chances of the exemptions going on and rea l ly lowering the 
revenue. In the long term I don't th ink they are in favor of the rate that is in  this b i l l .  
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Sen. Tri plett -- The compact says that they can't charge a tax that is g reater than 1 1 .5%.  If 
we drop ours down , there may be some issues. I wi l l  hold my questions for Mr.  Walstad on 
that. Did you seek legal advice from the tax department or leg islative council or anyone 
else to understand what the real impl ications for the tribes were before you proposed this? 

Sen. Wa rdner - - Last year I spent a lot of t ime on it .  Not this t ime. You have a point that it 
does say that in  the compact .  They can't charge over that. 

Sen. Cook - - I can tel l  you that I 've had a conversation with Mr. Walstad on this issue and 
we wil l have him address it. He is working on an amendment. 

Sen. Tri plett - - What research have you done to u nderstand that tax pol icy matters to the 
industry and ,  if so, to what degree does it matter in  their decisions of where to d ri l l  or where 
to make investment? 

Sen . Wardner -- I t  wou ld be from read ing d ifferent period icals that talk about the oi l  
industry and the CEO's and what they are thinking as far as their investment in  the oi l  
industry and where they are going to invest their money. There is no question , they have 
money to invest. They take a look at the d ifferent oi l  plays that they are involved in and 
decided where to put their money. 

Sen. Cook -- Mr. Walstad wou ld you step up and answer some questions . 

John Wa lstad,  Leg islative Counci l  -- Not for or against .  My mission for being here is to 
• do what the committee wou ld l ike, educationally, and l ine by l ine is not necessary. Do you 

want to high l ight? 

Sen . Cook - - One issue that keeps arising is whether or not the tribal agreement would 
need to be redone if this p iece of legislation passed in its current form and you suggested 
that there should be language somewhere that if the agreement needs to be redone, 
subject to the approval of 1 476, it wou ld not be subject to the language that we have in 
2226, correct? 

John Walstad -- That would be my advice. 

Sen.  Cook - - You are thinking that maybe the agreement, i f  1 476 passed in its current 
form , that the agreement would have to be redone. You are thinking or you know? 

John Walstad -- I don't know. That wil l have to be determined . The agreement says that 
the total oil tax on the reservation cannot exceed 1 1 .5%.  It doesn't say that's what the rate 
is .  It doesn't say what the rate is .  It j ust says it can 't exceed 1 1 . 5 and it doesn't say that it 
is the same rate as imposed by state law. To me, it is unclear. By un i lateral action ,  the 
tribe could say we wil l  use the rate that is in the bi l l  that the leg islature has approved and I 
don't know if they are incl i ned to do so. There is a question there .  There is another 
question in the language in the agreement that says all of the extraction tax exemptions 

• 
apply to production on the reservation at least on trust lands, except subsection 8 & 9 .  And 
8 & 9 are the 5 year exemption for d ri l l ing on the reservation and 9 cou ld be an old 
provision that's expi red or it could be the smal l  trigger that is currently subsection 9. To me 
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it is not clear whether the agreement needs to be redone but if we leave here without 
making provision for that possib i l ity, then 2226 says you can't have an agreement put in 
effect without confirmation by the leg islature and that's 20 1 7 . I th ink it makes sense to put 
in  a measure that says . . .  

Sen. Triplett -- What happens, g iven what you just said , if we pass this as is without 
amendments, and then we put the l ittle provis ion into the other b i l l  that wou ld al low us to fix 
it but what if the tribe chooses not to fix it and then we have 2 years or more than 2 years 
with d ifferential tax rates between the non-reservation part of the state and the reservation .  
Does that create any p roblems in  your  m ind? What wou ld be the issues if that scenario 
played out? 

John Walstad - - I don't know what the answer is. That would be a possibi l ity. The Three 
Affi l iated Tribes is a sovereign entity and can make its own pol icy. They don't have to be 
part of this agreement. It's in their interest to do so because state regu lation and state 
col lection comes a long with that. 

Sen. Triplett -- That's not my question . I think I heard you say in  response to Sen. Cook's 
question that, g iven the way that the compact is written ,  that they cou ld stay with the 
compact; they could choose not to get out of the compact, sti l l  accept the regulatory 
mechanisms that we have , sti l l  accept the tax col lection piece, they cou ld simply choose to 
have a d ifferent tax rate and sti l l  be within the boundaries of the agreement. Assume that 
scenario for a moment, what problems does that cause for the state tax department or the 
industry in terms of how you even figure out what the taxes are ,  if you have a wel l  that has 
a lateral with 1 m i le outside the reservation and 1 mile inside the reservation? 

John Walstad - - An inside the reservation , fee and trust land.  There are al l  k inds of 
possible d ifficu lties . 

Sen . Cook -- But first we should find out what's the answer to the question.  We've got to 
get the legal cou nsel as to what rights and freedoms do they have with their current 
agreement, despite what happens in th is committee. 

John Walstad -- One of the rights, if this leg islation becomes effective and reduces the 
rate to 9 .5%,  the tribes do not have to agree that that's the tax rate on the reservation .  

Sen . Tri plett - - Just to be very, very clear about th is ,  they cou ld make that choice without 
violating the compact, correct? 

John Walstad -- I k ind of th ink so. It says the rate cannot be more than 1 1 . 5 and if the 
tribe said okay we wi l l  do the 9 . 5 , it wou ldn 't violate the agreement. The part about al l  of 
the exemptions applying ,  the exemptions would largely be gone, so presumably that could 
be interpreted that any exemptions that remain apply, stripper wel ls ,  etc. Perhaps the 
agreement doesn't need to be changed . If we find out a month after the session is that it 
does, then there's a 2 year wait. 
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Sen . Cook -- But there's a relationship between the tax rate and the trigger, right? Can 
they let the trigger not kick on if they don't fol low the rate , the agreement? We've got a 
trigger that is looming of kicking on .  The tribes don't want that trigger to kick on either. 

John Walstad - - The agreement doesn't refer specifica lly to the trigger but it does refer to 
the exemptions and it says they a l l  apply and most of them are triggered . 

Sen. Cook -- So before we have much more d ia logue on th is ,  we recogn ize that we are 
going to get some legal advice .  

S e n .  Triplett - - It's not my objective to solve al l  of the legal  problems, but  to  point out that 
there are questions which apparently have not been thought through in the d rafting of the 
bi l l .  I th ink we have accompl ished that. 

John Walstad -- I thought about these things when d rafting the b i l l .  I don't know if there is 
an answer out there .  There is not a case somewhere that has this exact scenario and says 
here's the answer. 

Laney Herauf, G reater North Da kota Chamber - - I want to let you know that we fu l ly 
support this b i l l .  We see it as a va luable way to provide some stab i l ity, rel iabi l ity , and 
predictabi l ity for the oi l  and gas tax and we think i t  is a rea l ly good idea . We request a do 
pass recommendation .  

Brent Sa nford ,  Mayor of Watford City -- I am here to speak in  support of H B 1 476. As an 
• elected official from oi l  country whose commun ity survives on gross prod uction tax, my 

message is that we cannot let this trigger happen .  I am very rel ieved to see some action of 
this issue this legis lative session . (meter 43 :43-44 :57) .  U rging a do pass . 

Sen. Tri plett -- You are aware that th is b i l l  only relates to the oi l  extraction tax and so, 
being in  the oi l  patch , your  commun ity would sti l l  have access to the gross prod uction tax 
and a l l  the support that you get from that. 

Brent Sanford -- I wanted to make that clear to d ifferentiate from our neig hbors from Three 
Affi l iated, they received both taxes so what they are facing is d ifferent. We have the same 
issues but we are paid d ifferently. 

Sen . Dotzen rod -- In you r  testimony you talked about that we real ly shouldn't let this trigger 
come on. We should find some way to avoid that. You d idn't say anyth ing about the tax 
rate. What would you th ink if we got rid of the triggering ,  kept the 1 1 .5%,  the 6 .5% 
extraction tax, how would you feel about that? 

Brent Sanford -- That is the crux of this whole issue in here .  I can tel l  you from 9 years on 
city council and mayor of Watford C ity , we have had to  make these same decis ions: do you 
increase the sa les tax rate? Do you i ncrease the mi l l  levies? Do you increase permit fees? 
We've gone from stray dogs in the street to 4 story bu i ld ings being constructed . Our fees 
have gone up tremendously. In a very s imi la r  situation it is tough to look at this and say we 
are going to take our reven ue and d rop it 2% when you are already charg ing 1 1 . 5 .  You've 
a lready got ways to spend it. The citizens tel l  us if it is fa i r  or not. You r m inera l  owners and 
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your  oi l  production companies wou ld tel l  you that it would not be fair  to keep the rate at the 
h ighest level but take away incentives at the bottom .  I n  effect, that would g ive them a 
tremendous tax i ncrease for this upcoming year when they are looking at the trigger kicking 
in to g ive them some rel ief from the 1 1 . 5% tax. 

Sen. Cook -- In a l l  due respect, if I looked at the tax rate of McKenzie County, the mi l l  rate , 
and compare that rational to th is ,  I th ink this extraction tax would probably end up about 
1 . 5%. 

B rent Sanford - - We don't have enough time for that. 

Testimony opposed to H B 1 476 

Mac Schneider, Senator from Dist. 42 - - I am testifying in  opposition to this bi l l  
(Attachment #2) 

Sen. Cook -- We can get a l l  k inds of projections. We can go to somebody else besides 
Ch icago Mercantile Exchange and get another projection but the bottom l ine is we have a 
tax mechan ism on o i l  that creates an effective tax rate from 6% to 1 1 . 1 5% and we have no 
control over that, virtually. It's going to swing back and forth . To me, that is lud icrous, do 
you agree? 

Mac Schneider - - I would d isagree that that matter is out of our contro l .  This was not put 
in  place by supernatura l  beings. 

Sen. Cook - - It was put in  by us and we can control it and fix it right here .  That is the intent 
of th is b i l l .  I t takes that swing from 6% to 1 1  %.  I would argue that i t  takes i t  down to 9 to 
9 .5 .  If that's not the right solution, then what is? 

Mac Schneider -- I bel ieve that Senator Dotzenrod and Senator Triplett are going to have 
some very prod uctive solutions when the committee begins work on this b i l l  this afternoon .  
This committee has forgotten more about tax pol icy then I ' l l  ever know. I 'm here to urge the 
committee to focus in on what's the issue and that is the trigger and we do have that under 
contro l .  

Sen. Cook - - We do focus in .  You want to see the trigger go? 

Mac Sch neider - - I don't necessarily want to see the trigger go .  I th ink pul l ing the rug out 
from under the industry du ring th is down time, that would n't be the best pol icy. But maybe 
we can update it for the era of the Bakken and provide some sort of mean ingfu l incentive to 
continue investment in the Bakken during this down time but also not absolutely destroy our 
2 year budget. 

Sen . Cook -- That sounds l ike a lot d ifferent rhetoric. 

Mac Schneider -- It's a d ifferent day. 
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Sen. Cook -- I counted your 30% comments in  your  testimony yesterday and it was on ly i n  

• there 8 times but I th ink you said it close to 30.  

Mark Fox, Chairman,  MHA Nation -- We would not oppose the b i l l  with the amendments 
we propose . (Attachme nt #3) 

Sen. Tri plett -- Have you had a chance to do the legal analysis that I was qu izzing Mr. 
Walstad about in terms of what the impl ications might be if we pass this bi l l  in the form that 
you don't l ike? 

Mark Fox - - We continue to look at those impacts , legal ly and otherwise. Our fi rst concern, 
obviously, was impacts to revenue. We are looking for opportun ities to reserve as much of 
that as we can in  this whole process. And , yet, adhere to our goal of trying to stay in the 
agreement. This is our goa l .  We think the agreement can and is a good thing,  genera l ly. 
As far as the legal questions on how that is going to take p lace, we did have d iscussion 
since that time and yesterday, a lot, about what it would take on amending our compact, 
what it would take to addressing our issues and maybe there are opportun ities there to 
attain what we are looking for without touch ing it. I don't know. Those things need to be 
worked out. That is part of the argument that we have been making as wel l, too . When 
this session ends, the opportun ities for our government, our tribal nation,  and the state to 
enter into agreements or d iscuss issues and resolve them should not end and we delayed 
for 2 years. We are very concerned about that whole process and I th ink that you wi l l  hear 
that from other tribes as wel l .  (meter 1 :04 :07-1 : 04 :37) 

Sen . Tri plett -- If this bi l l  were to pass in the form that it is and we are left with the other 
bi l ls to try to do someth ing to help with the process, if we can 't come to a better agreement 
about the 2 year delay would it be your  preference that we would leave in place the idea 
that the tribe could negotiate through our executive branch, th rough the governor's office, 
and resolve things without having to bring it back to the legislature? 

Mark Fox -- If the end resu lt of that negotiation ,  if it 's open for that opportun ity for us to 
add ress how the tax rate is going to be d ifferent on Fort Berthold versus the way it may end 
up being under this bi l l off the reservation ,  yes . That is what we are after here .  If it can be 
resolved in  this bil l to provide that exemption that we are asking for, I th ink the large part of 
it is being add ressed, and we can go from there.  

Sen . Tri plett - - I have been hearing you and your  col leagues from the Three Affi l iated 
Tribes saying that your  larger issue is to better define the process of the state leg islature 
and executive working with the tribal government. We are runn ing out of time here as a 
leg islature so I 'm saying as a defau lt fal lback position , if we don't get it worked out to have 
a better process the existing process of you working with the governor's office is better than 
what is currently being proposed in  the other b i l l .  Is that a fa i r  statement? 

Sen. Cook -- Which isn't before us right now. 

Sen. Tri plett -- Which isn 't before us right now, I 'm a l ittle out of order. 

• 
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Mark Fox -- I can 't answer that with an honest yes and here's why: we do have a process 
that exists to some degree to negotiate with the executive branch, to enter into agreements. 
It's worked in some minor situations. And it's worked under our motor fuels agreement but 
the minute we became more aggressive this last bienn ium about putting other th ings into 
play, we were constantly being pushed back to say once we get to a certain development 
point, between our government and the state, we are being told that is something that has 
to go before the leg islature .  We are confused . What does and what does not? We sought 
clarification .  The biggest thing that we are looking for is to create a process in which we 
can resolve our d ifferences at the table. On the North Dakota side of it between the 
executive and legislative branches, you figure that out. Our government is here.  We sit at 
the table. We pass th ings. We get them ready to go. I t  doesn't mean that the state or the 
governor has to sig n off. It means that it is on the table to d iscuss for mutual benefit and 
that is what we are looking for. 

Sen. Cook -- Chairman Fox, it wasn't too many n ight ago, every member of this committee 
was wearing a button that say the best government is run by Cook. Last Friday you shared 
with me some concerns, fi rst time I ever heard them, the concerns that you had regarding 
alcohol tax, pipel ine tax, bu lk  fuel del ivery tax. Now I 've got a delayed b i l l  here that wi l l  
solve the motor fuels tax but I don't dare introduce it because it 's too late in the session . 
The point that I am making is our two d ifferent government, I know how you operate, and 
we do have a d ifferent way of passing laws that affect the citizens of North Dakota, of wh ich 
you are also citizen members . It brings certainty every 2 years . We go home and the 
people know that for the next 2 years,  nothing is going to change. We can work better 
together and solve a lot of these problems without it taking 2 years but there are some 
times where 2 years is good . 

Sen. Bekkedahl -- On your  second page, I th ink I understand it but I want to make sure. 
You are talking in your  th i rd provision where it says adding a provision exempting trust 
wells from the red uced tax rate , that's referring back up to the first provision where there is 
a 2% tax reduction for a time certa in for sunset, is that correct? 

Mark Fox -- That's correct. If the b i l l  passes, what we are asking for is about set to pass, 
we are asking for that amendment that says that if it passes and you red uce and create a 
flat rate that won't be appl icable to the wells on trust with i n  our boundaries. 

Sen. Bekkedahl  -- The d ifferentiation is you have trust lands, you have fee lands within the 
reservation boundaries, so the red uction would sti l l  apply to the fee land wells, is that 
correct? 

Mark Fox -- That's correct. What we are doing in that sense, we are trying to cut to the 
chase. There are probably many of my own constituents and others from my reservation 
who would say, exempt a l l  the wel ls.  What we are trying to do is we are trying to work with 
the system, work with industry as wel l .  I f  ind ustry says every s ingle wel l  is going to be 
stuck on 1 1 .5% subject to our negotiation,  they might not be as apt to support but if they 
say, okay a portion of those wel ls,  as much as 40% , would be under the current system of 
reduction then that m ight put us in a position to better negotiate th is amendment. 
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Richard McC loud,  C ha i rman,  Tu rtle Mounta in Band of C h i ppewa -- I a m  here to 

• support H B 1 476 with the amendments proposed by Chairman Fox. (Attach ment #4) 

Steve S itti ng Bear, Exte rnal  Affa i rs Di rector, Standing Rock S ioux Tribe -- I 'm here on 
behalf of Standing Rock Sioux Tribe to testify in support of the Three Affi l iated Tribes 
proposed amendments to H B 1 476. (Attach ment #5) 

Tom Ricker, Pres ident, North Dakota AFL-C IO -- We are opposed to H B 1 476 in the 
current form . S ince the governor came out with h is budget proposal in December, oi l  
prices have fa l len.  We've seen qu ite a few important b i l ls that either have funding cut or 
slashed to stay with in  a budget. (meter 1 :  1 6 :27-1 : 1 7 : 37) Ask for a do not pass . 

Stuart Savelkoul ,  Ass ista nt Exec utive Di rector, North Da kota U n ited -- We ask for a do 
not pass on H B 1 476 . It's not because we know that this b i l l  is  a bad idea because we don't 
know much of anyth ing .  I don't normal ly lobby on tax bi l ls .  I lobby on pension b i l ls .  (meter 
1 :  1 8 :39-1 :22:45) 

Sen. Cook -- We are always transparent but we sti l l  cal l  it making sausage but as I l istened 
to your testimony, if I 'm not m istaken what I heard you say at the beg inn ing "I don't know 
much of anything" ,  is that what I heard you say on the record here? 

Stuart Savelkoul  -- I don't know if I said that but it doesn't make it any less true. 

Sen. Cook -- You don't have any comments about the b i l l ,  though ,  you are just talking 
about the process . 

Stuart Savelkoul  -- What I would say is that North Dakota Un ited was formed as the result 
of a merger between North Dakota Education Association and . . .  

Sen. Cook -- And North Dakota U n ited doesn't want to see an effective rate go from 6% to 
1 1  % either. 

Stuart Savelkoul  -- See the effective rate go from 6 to 1 1 ? As I understood earlier we 
talked about the effective rate being at 1 1 . 1 5 . 

Sen.  Cook -- And tomorrow it cou ld be 6 . 1 .  

Stuart Savelkoul  -- Oh ,  from 1 1  to 6? No, we absolutely wouldn 't l ike to see that. I see this 
as a bit of a false d i lemma if the choice is either 1 476 or an effective rate of 6 ,  then ,  okay, I 
suppose the 1 476 is a good idea. What we are suggesting is that the right answer might be 
somewhere in between .  

Sen . Cook -- That's why we have heari ngs. 

Sen.  Laffen -- Actua l ly retirement plan, in my mind, is a good way to look at these numbers 

• 
that we are staring at right now. (meter 1 :24:23-1 :25 : 59) 
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Stuart Save l koul  -- I th ink that is a n  exact example of a false di lemma.  You are saying 
would you take this or that. My response to that is that it doesn't have to be the only 2 
choices from which this committee works from. (meter 1 :26:26-1 :26:54) 

Sen. Latten -- We are looking for those answers and if you have thoughts on those, we are 
al l  ears. 

Sen . Tri plett -- I just wanted to correct one piece of your  testimony about the pension 
funds, one step that you missed is that after our potential changes for any of our pension 
funds are proposed , in add ition to a committee l ike GVA, they also go to a specia l  
committee. (merit 1 :27 : 3 1 - 1 :28 : 1 0) 

Stuart Savelkoul  -- I do appreciate the comment. I th ink most of the folks that are 
watching the leg islative process can see th is tra in on the tracks. I would encourage the 
committee to take the time to consider any amendments that may or may not come 
forward . 

Sen. Cook -- This committee is very fami l iar with this issue and we wi l l  take due care with 
the b i l l .  And next t ime you testify, don't ever admit to not knowing much of anyth ing and 
we won't ask you so many questions. 

Kayla Pu lvermacher, North Dakota Farmers U n ion -- North Dakota Farmers Un ion is 
opposed to H B 1 476. We are opposed to exemption to the oil extraction and production 
taxes. Add itional ly we oppose red uctions in  the rate of tax unti l  the tax replenishes and 
add resses unmet needs in rural North Dakota and to be forward looking and invest in  the 
future of the state. While we applaud the reform of the triggers provisions, we cannot 
support the decrease in the extraction tax rate. 

Sen . Bekkedah l  -- Have you had any time with you r  organ ization to review the proposed 
amendments submitted by the MHA Nation and if that wou ld make any d ifference in your  
position? 

Kayla Pulvermacher -- I have not had t ime to d iscuss with our membership and so I don't 
feel comfortable putting out a position without our membership being able to look at it at 
th is point. 

Ron Ness, Pres ident, North Dakota Petroleum Counci l  -- We are in neutral position on 
th is b i l l .  (Attachment #6) I do have an amendment. It is attached to the back of my 
testimony. I u rge you to adopt our amendments and pass th is b i l l .  

Sen.  Cook - - You r  amendment, 9% rate is what you are looking for? 

Ron Ness -- My amendment is the rate that we've a lways said , a 9% flat tax started in June 
1 st_ I don't d isagree with Sen.Trip lett, I 've got people that have waited to complete wells. Is 
that necessari ly fai r  to them? I don't pretend to th ink that it is . I u nderstand politics. We 
u nderstand t iming and sometimes the unknown is the best way to do it. I 've got lots of 
numbers .  If you want n umbers,  I ' l l  bring numbers .  Let's figu re th is out. 
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Sen. Triplett -- You started your  testimony here by addressing m e  and saying that taxes d o  
matter and I understand that. My point of my questions to the previous speakers was 
where do you get your information and tel l  me the extent to which taxes matter. My point in 
asking the question is that I th ink that we , in  this state col lectively, have not done our 
research to understand real ly the extent. We have made al l  of these exemptions based on 
exigencies of the moment without real ly knowing the extent to which they mattered to 
people. My understand ing ,  from my read ing,  is that there were a lot of things that mattered 
more to the industry includ ing the price of o i l ,  the qua l ity of the resource , the certainty of 
knowing that it is a pool instead of a cora l reef and that they can count on finding the oi l  
when they get there .  The entire regu latory environment wh ich is pretty darn friendly in  
North Dakota ; d istance to refineries which is a d isadvantage to us which we are not l ikely to 
overcome any t ime soon .  I th ink there are a lot of other factors that the industry probably 
takes into account before they even consider taxes . When people j ust throw taxes out as 
the only reference point and say we have to compete with Texas. I th ink that is a pretty 
unscientific statement. If you would l ike to elaborate on why you think taxes matter in this 
kind of environment? 

Ron Ness -- I th ink you are exactly right. I th ink every one of those factors matter and at 
the end of the day, when you go to your  bankers,  you look at what's my rate of return? We 
have got to look at the Bakken in  a d ifferent l ight going forward . (meter 1 :47 : 1 8- 1  :49 :06) 

Sen. Triplett -- A techn ica l question : you have used both today and yesterday in your  
testimony, I heard you say that, from the industry point of view, the b ig  trigger is  a big $76M 
per month h it .  But our fisca l note says it is $44M per month h it .  Can you tel l  us what the 
d ifference is there? 

Ron Ness -- The information that I 've got was derived from the tax commissioner's office . 
When you look at a l l  of the triggers,  a l l  of the incentives, a l l  of the 1 . 1  M barrels d rops from 
1 1 . 5 to 9 and you start looking at al l  the other incentives and you back in . . .  Remember, 
every wel l  that we dri l led in the last 24 months is going to go from 1 1  to 5. You get the 
remainder of your 24 months.  Every wel l  we d ri l l  is going to go for 24 months. That's the 
number that we've had and we've been using . So whether it's 44M/month or $76M/month, 
you get the point. (meter1 : 50 : 1 1 -1  : 50 : 33) 

Sen . Triplett -- So you th ink that your  number is right at the moment and I ' l l  have to ask 
somebody from the tax department to expla in where the 44 came from . 

I th ink you have responded to my question about the tribal issue that I 've been asking 
everyone by saying that you bel ieve it is important that we solve th is and end up with the 
same tax structure throughout the state, do you have a sense of what m ight happen if we 
pass a bi l l  that does not pass muster with the tribal government and then they choose to 
maintain a h igher rate . How does that effect your  folks? 

Sen. Cook -- You don't have an agreement if you start exempting th ings.  

Ron Ness -- I wou ld much prefer that we have a u niform rate . There are many other • considerations that you have working with in the boundaries , with in federa l  lands, a l l  of 
. 

those th ings that you said on everywhere .  I th ink that you start with principal A: what are 
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the things that you can control i n  the oi l  world i n  terms of this? You can't control price. You 
can try to contro l  you r  costs. You are going to try to improve you r  d iscount on your  Bakken 
barre l ,  that's critica l ,  but if you can at least plug into my formula a fai r  and competitive tax 
rate, whether I 'm operating there or here,  I th ink it creates a much better business climate. 

Sen. Tri plett -- Without making you go through al l  the potential problems, I th ink I hear you 
saying that it is important that we get this right so that we can hold the compact together, is 
that a fai r  statement? 

Ron Ness -- I wou ld say it is extremely that we hold the compact together and we wil l stand 
with the tribe in that statement. 

Sen. Triplett -- We are all ta lking here about the goal of predictabil ity and un iformity. If we 
get a bi l l  together that we can pass out of both chambers i n  the next few days that your  
industry finds acceptable, that the tribal government finds acceptable, that the people of 
North Dakota don't rush off to do a referral on us ,  if it's accepted , what is the guaranty for 
any of us that you won 't be back in 2 years if prices are done again saying , we'd l ike one 
more exemption? 

Ron Ness -- I th ink Sen .  Dotzenrod has asked me that question every year  for the last 5 
years , correct? What's you r  guaranty that you aren't going increase the tax on us? 

Sen . Cook -- It's a 2-way street. 

Ron Ness -- I th ink this body has a very long memory, as do we , by the way. I know what 
a deal is . That's find that fai r  rate. 

Sen. Tri plett -- You wou ld l ike to get to a place where we don't have to be revisiting this 
every year. 

Ron Ness - - Nobody wou ld be happier than me if we found a place where we d id not have 
to revisit this. 

Sen . Cook -- There is two of us. 

Sen. Tri plett -- Would you sti l l  have a job? 

Ron Ness - - I 'd g ladly take a pay cut. 

Sen. Dotzen rod - - I t 's fash ionable now to bash this trigger th ing .  It 's rid iculous. It's 
antiquated . It's unpred ictable, yet it's been in place a long , long time, since 1 987. When 
we had Moody's here in March g iving us the economic outlook for the future he talked 
about the fact that one of the things that he was optimistic about for the future of North 
Dakota's oil prod uction and possibly keeping our production up somewhat and not fad ing 
away as it might otherwise do was the fact that North Dakota offers something that is very 
attractive to the industry that no other state offers and it's a 2-tiered tax system that al lows, 
in time when prices are significantly down , a mechanism where they can get a red uced rate 
that is qu ite substantia l .  It would be so effective that companies would avoid moving from 
North Dakota because there is no other place they could go to get a deal that good . He 
was touting it as being one of these things that wou ld help North Dakota get through this 
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period of low oi l  prices and really g iv ing it a n  endorsement o r  a sense that th is was 
something the industry wou ld be very happy to have . From what I 'm hearing from people 
around the ind ustry, it is just the opposite. Was he wrong about that? 

Ron Ness -- With a l l  due respect, the Moody's guy comes here 1 day every 2 years . How 
has the trigger worked so far? We've lost 1 00 rigs,  1 0 ,000 to 1 5 ,000 employees. If you 
wanted to incentivize those rigs to stay here ,  you needed something l ike that in February.  
This happened in  2009. By the t ime we got to April the r ig count had gone from 90 to 30. 
Oi l  was $ 1 47 in J u ly of the previous year and it was $32 in  North Dakota . A 5 month-x­
month average essentia l ly means it is going to be 6 or 8 months before that kicks in .  By 
then industry has had to make its decisions. When you look at the Bakken ,  this is a huge 
moving mach ine that requ i res incred ible capital as do a l l  of the investors that are bu i ld ing 
the apartments and the complexes and all of the things in  Sen . Bekkedah l's d istrict and 
across western North Dakota . I th ink he was wrong.  I heard h im say that and I thought to 
myself, he's right in  a sense that it may do this or that, but he doesn't understand the 
mechan ics of how that works and how industry works. And,  by June 1 ,  you had to make 
your decis ions. (meter 1 : 57 :47-1 :59 :07) 

Sen. Dotzenrod -- The large trigger was set up in 1 987 and the industry was here in  the 
capitol lobbying and supporting it ,  it went through the committee process and there was 
general agreement at the time that something needed to be done so the legis lature d id this. 
Is the problem with the system that's in place now is that it is antiquated? Then we didn't 
have horizontal d ri l l ing , we did n't have tracking , we d idn 't have the huge amount of cap ita l .  
It was expensive then . It's a lot more expensive now. Has the industry with the 
tremendous amount of money involved , has everything changed to the degree that what 
seemed appropriate and reasonable i n  1 987 isn't a good fit any more? 

Ron Ness -- This legis lative body essentia l ly re-ratified that in  200 1 . They amended that 
trigger and made changes to that trigger. A lot has changed since 1 987.  The concept in 
1 987 was the recog nit ion that maybe we went a l ittle too far ra ising that tax by 1 30% and 
we created a noncompetitive situation in North Dakota with the other issues that we have . 
The leg islature began to mod ify that and tried to create a more competitive tax base for 
industry. To me it's more about the barrels you produce than what you tax on it from a 
state standpoint. (meter 2 : 0 1  :05-2 :02 :07) 

Sen.  Tri plett -- I would l ike someone from the tax department to come and answer a 
question . 

Rya n Ra uschen berger, Office of State Tax Commissioner -- To explain the issue with 
the $76M. The $76M is a number that we've had out ever since triggers were looming,  
starting in January, with questions from the media and d ifferent interest groups. $76M is 
the cost of the trigger using 1 . 1 M barrels per day, $45 North Dakota crude for 1 month . 
That is the d ifference between the effective rate of 1 1 . 1 5  and 6 . 1 .  That is a number that 
was out before this legis lation was introduced . That is just looking at a forecast of the 
d ifference between the 1 1 . 1 % and 6 . 1  % for 1 month . This is included on our wh ite papers 
that describes the smal l  and big triggers and the monthly impact. To the $44M that is 
actua l ly comparing the new proposed 9.5% top rate, the effective rate of about 9 . 1 ,  
compared to if we triggered 6 ,  1 % .  It's a smal ler window, hence the 44 compared to 76.  

• 
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Sen. Tri plett -- Thank you for the explanation. Everyone is right. We are just ta lking about 
d ifferent formulas. 

Sen . Cook -- Any other neutral testimony? Close the hearing on HB1 476. 
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Chairman Cook opened the committee work o n  H B 1 476. All committee members present. 

Sen . Cook -- We have before us H B 1 476 . You have amendments . If you've been l istening 
to the chatter in the capitol ,  you have heard that Sen. Triplett and Sen .  Cook were seen 
having lunch together in the capitol cafe. It's true we d id and we sat down and had an adult 
d iscussion about what we thought was right with this bil l and what we thought needed to be 
changed. We were pretty close on what we thought needed to be done. We agreed that 
the major problem that needed a solution was the fact that we have an effective tax rate 
that can have some rather d rastic swings from 6 to over 1 1  % .  Neither one of u s  are too 
fond of the triggered effective date that the bi l l  that we had before us with my name on it 
had in it. We have been deal ing with this issue for a long time a nd I think if we could go 
home and put this issue behind us and solve the issue of the tax rate and the triggers in  
North Dakota, it would be the best thing to do. Regard less of what happens in the future 
regarding the triggers. You wil l  see an effective tax rate in  this amendment that is certain 
and that effective tax rate is January 1 ,  20 1 6 . If the triggers kick in  June 1 there wil l  be 7 
months while the oi l  industry can enjoy a zero percent extraction  tax. That is the policy that 
we are l iving with and we can both agree, Sen . Triplett, that we feel that they deserve that 7 
months .  The effective tax rate is January 1 ,  201 6 .  The other big issue is the tax rate that 
we would go to. You heard yesterday that the oi l  industry indicated that 9% was right. 
We've heard the tribe say 1 0%. We've heard others say higher. The bi l l ,  as introduced , 
was 9 1 /2 .  We wi l l  have John Walstad come up and explain the amendments so that 
everyone understands them. We are not going to take a vote this morning. We will come 
back this afternoon and vote this up or down. The effective tax rate in the bi l l  is going to be 
1 0%,  5% gross p roduction tax, 5% extraction tax. A new twist, we have a long-time 
exemption deal ing with tertiary recovery, the co2, we've had some d iscussions on that. 
This was an issue that Sen. Triplett brought to the table. She is not a fan of tertiary 
recovery so it is com ing out and Sen. Triplett I wi l l  let you expla in your  argument on that for 
the sake of the com mittee,  if you would l ike. 
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Sen. Triplett -- Do you want the d iscussion now? 

Sen.  Cook -- Yes , right now, p lease . 

Sen. Triplett -- I wi l l  confirm now that I brought that issue up and that I thought it was an 
important issue. We have removed the co2 exemption which wou ld have provided a zero 
percent extraction tax for any wel l  that used co2 as tertiary recovery method i n  the Bakken 
and that was set up  as a permanent l ife of the wel l  exemption. I th ink it stood to make the 
effective tax rate in North Dakota 5% for the long term, if we d idn 't deal with it. It seemed to 
me exceedingly important that we deal with it prior to the industry making large investments 
based on that. We have put in an exception for areas outside of the Bakken Three Forks 
geographic a rea because there is at least one example that we are aware of where industry 
has put very large investments into a particu lar field and it is not our i ntention to violate the 
trust that industry had put into the state. Predictab i l ity is important for the people of North 
Dakota, the state as a government, the tribes as a government, and a lso pred ictabi l ity is  
important for the industry to be able to make long term p lans .  (meter 7 :44-8: 1 5) 

Sen. Cook -- And the last major bi l l  i n  this bi l l  that you wi l l  see, Chairman Fox b rought this 
up, there is a reverse trigger on the bi l l .  If the price of o i l  exceeds $90 for 3 months any 
t ime in the future ,  the extraction tax wil l  go to 6%, making the total tax in  North Dakota on 
oi l  6%. Making the tax 1 1  %.  That's the biggest changes in  this b i l l .  I wil l  cal l  Mr. Walstad 
up  here to walk through th is p iece of legislation ,  section by section ,  so we al l  u nderstand it. 

John Walsta d ,  Leg islative Counci l  -- Not for or against. When you say go through the b i l l  
.-section by section ,  the whole works? Okay, j ust the changes. 

I had copies made of the Christmas tree version (Attachment #1 ) Mr. Walstad walks 
through the cha nges, beg inning on page 5, line 1 3. 

Sen. Cook -- Th is is the biggest change that is new to the committee on that last section 
that John just expla ined? 

Sen. Bekkedah l  -- Relative to these incremental production areas in  d ivision a there is a 5 
year date of exemptions ,  i n  s ubsection b it's 1 0  year and also 5 year. None of them are 
infin ite a nymore ,  is that what I am hearing? 

John Walstad - - The on ly one that was infin ite was the co2 injection tert iary recovery. The 
others have a period of years wh ich they apply. They don't all match up .  Tertiary recovery, 
not using co2 is 1 0  years ;  secondary recovery, water flood ing ,  is a 5 year. 

Sen. Bekkedah l  -- By this language, tertiary recovery projects in the Bakken and Three 
Forks using co2 would have no exem ption from incremental production? 

John Walstad - - That's correct. 

Sen.  Laffen -- Are we exempting just the extraction tax or both? 
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John Walstad -- This affects only the oi l extraction tax, the 5% G PT is completely 
unaffected by a ny of the changes in this bi l l .  

John Walstad continues going through the bi l l  on page 8. (ending at meter 27:25) 

Sen. Cook -- The intent of the study is, from last Friday's meeting that I had with the tribe, 
there are quite a few tax issues that are out there that need to be addressed . These 
d iscussions have been going on but they have been going on in the wrong committee. 
They have been d iscussed in the state and tribal relations committee. We need to get 
them into tax committee where we can find solutions to them and bring the solutions 
forward . It's important for the tribe to understand with the fix that's in  section 6, all they 
need to do if they want to start receiving revenue from bulk del ivery of fuel oi l ,  dyed or clear 
or whatever, is impose the tax and this language enables that to happen and not jeopard ize 
the agreement. It wi l l  be subject to the 70/30 spl it that's in the agreement. That one 
particular issue is fixed . The other thing I should point out, again ,  section 5, the change 
there is the d i rect opposite of what the bil l had when it was introduced . When the bil l was 
introduced , a l l  of the current exemptions that the industry is enjoyable because the clock is 
sti l l  runn ing ,  they a re in their 75,000 barrels of the smal l  trigger, for example, they would 
have ended . Now we a re g iving them to the end of the time. That's a major change. 

Sen. Triplett -- That seems on ly fai r  to me that we would do that. The discussion in our 
committee, the whole conversation in  finance and tax, day in  and day out on al l  of the bi l ls 
that we work on ,  is to try to find uniformity and fai rness and for the most part, everything 
that we do is forward-looking .  We don't cut people off mid-stream. We are trying to get to 
a future that has fai r  and p red ictable tax rates for the people and the legislature and the 
tribal government and the industry. The way the b i l l  was d rafted , it failed to keep the 
commitment of the state that we had made in the previous exemptions.  That didn 't seem 
fair  to me. (meter 29:49-30:34) 

Sen.  Cook -- I th ink that it is safe to say, also, as far as the bi l l  is d rafted, my name is on it 
and I sat down with leadership as this d iscussion was there. I am glad that we introduced 
the bi l l .  I 'm g lad that we got i t  in before we went home. This issue has been in the 
hal lways, it's been in front of us, we have been deal ing with , we dealt with it last session.  I 
th ink the motive of the leadership was we had to get this issue on the table again to see if 
we could resolve it before we went home. We l istened to the tribe. We l istened to the 
industry. There is a l ittle bit for everybody. There's not everything for anybody. I think it is 
a g reat comp romise. 

Sen. Dotzen rod - - I 've got a question on section 6, the waiver of agreement; the legislative 
confirmation .  I t  looks l ike we would b e  saying,  if this were adopted ,  that for the period of 
time between now and the end of the year, because the effective dates that are on page 
1 3, section 6 is effective from J uly 1 ,  201 5 through the end of December, 20 1 6 .  During that 
year and half there would be leg islative confirmation required . Evidently we have some law 
that says they are supposed to be confirmed . If that is waived , if there is no legislative 
confirmation,  then a re agreements then to be made and signed by the leaders of the tribe 
i nvolved and the state tax commissioner? Only those 2 signatures would be needed , is 
that what we are saying? 
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Sen. Cook -- It wou ld be between the tribe and the governor. As far as the fuel tax, there 
wou ld not need for any agreement to be made. Al l  they need to do is impose their own tax 
on dyed bulk fuel .  The intent is, it ends of December 3 1 , 201 6 , if we are going to make 
these changes, let's get it over with . Don't come back 1 0  years from now and say we want 
to make the change. 

Sen. Dotzen rod - - If section 6 becomes ineffective after December of 201 6, the leg is lature 
wou ld send down what it wou ld requ ire? 

Sen. Cook -- We have another b i l l ,  Senate bill 2226 , sitting there contingent on this b i l l ,  
that bi l l  imposes the law that al l  agreements have to be approved by the legislature. That's 
in another b i l l .  

Sen.  Dotzen rod -- So this b i l l  gets us between here and there. And then section 7 ,  Mr. 
Walstad said there are rea l ly 2 issues here .  I th ink he is separating out the consideration of 
state tribal agreements from the a l location of centrally assessed property. He is making the 
distinction between the two. 

Sen. Cook -- Many times the agreement is what is taxed , another part of these agreements 
is the reven ue spl it with certain central ly assessed property, and I am going to talk about 
pipelines because they a re the ones that come up.  Pipelines go through the reservation 
but because the reservation does not impose any p roperty tax, they get no revenue. All of 
the revenue from the centra lly assessed tax on pipelines is d istributed amongst pol itical 
subdivisions, p rorated by the amount of mi l ls that they levy. This wil l a l low us to study the 
possibi l ity of sharing that revenue with the tribe. It is something that we need to get on the 
table to d iscuss. 

Sen. Triplett - - Following up on Sen. Dotzenrod's question about who approves 
agreements and the state of the law right now, u ntil the legislature passes 2226 ,  is that we 
authorized the governor to enter into those agreements. It's a conversation for the other bi l l  
when it comes up in  d iscussion . (meter 35: 1 8-36:52) 

Sen. Cook - - We wil l  be back into committee right after floor session today. The sole 
purpose is to have a motion on this bil l and send it out with our recommendation . I think, by 
the amendments that you see, there are two votes to send it out with a do pass. I would 
hope that there a re 5 more come this afternoon.  We wi l l  recess u nti l after floor session. 
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Chairman Cook opened the comm ittee work on H B 1 476. 

Sen.  Cook -- We have before us H B 1 476. Sen Dotzen rod has some amendments that he 
wou ld l ike to offer. 

Sen.  Dotze n rod -- I will pass out the amendments (Attachment #1 ) We heard a lot of the 
testimony, yesterday and today, about the triggers and the big swing back and forth so 
what this amendment does is it e l iminates the triggers and it leaves the tax at 1 1 .5%. 

Sen. Cook - - Did you want to move the amendment? 

Sen. Dotze n rod -- I wou ld move amendment 1 5 . 1 024.05001 .  

Sen. Tri plett -- Seconded . 

Sen. Cook -- Discussion? Rol l  cal l  vote on motion to amend 1 5.1 024.05001 . 2 yes, 5 
no. Motion failed . 

Sen. Cook -- Sen. Dotzenrod , I bet you have another one now. 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- I 've got another one. I have the amendment here but I think that I wil l  
hold it and pass out the Christmas tree. The purpose of th is amendment is to get rid of the 
triggers and to impose a version of the smal l  trigger and on page 1 1  the terms of the small 
trigger a re spel led out. You can see that the language on page 1 1  is blue which is the 
removal of overstrike from the House version and it extends the current 6 year  provision 2 
years to 201 7 . And on page 1 2  it says that any of the exemptions that were earned before 
the effective date of the b i l l  wi l l  stay i n  effect unti l they are used up .  
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Sen.  Cook -- You are extend ing the smal l  trigger, j ust as H B 1 437 does, which we sti l l  
have , but you are doubl ing the tax rate? 

Sen. Dotzenrod -- Yes. 

Sen. Cook - - Okay. Questions? Did you want to move these amendment? 

Sen .  Dotzen rod -- I wou l d  move amendment 1 5. 1 024.05004 (Attachment #2) 

Sen.  Tri plett - - Seconded . 

Sen . Cook -- Discussion? The amendments would extend the smal l  trigger to 201 7 and 
double the tax .  Right now, the smal l  trigger would go to 2% tax. You want to take it to 4%. 

Sen . Dotzen rod -- The purpose here is to get away from the swing,  the big swing, which 
we heard in testimony. There is such a large d ifference between where we are now with 
the big trigger and the 1 1 .5%. We go from 5% to 1 1 .5% so this would set the tax at 1 1 .5% 
but would al low a red uction for the smal l  trigger so that we would not have that kind of large 
swing if this were adopted . 

Sen . U n ru h  -- I agree with the concept that Sen. Dotzenrod has going here and I think that 
it is moving toward a more stable consistent tax policy; however, I don't think it is 
appropriate for us to just raise the tax on the bottom end and do noth ing on the top end . I 
won't be supporting these amendments. 

Sen . Cook - - Discussion? 

Sen . Triplett - - One point which I 'm not sure has been wel l  understood in  a l l  of our 
d iscussions is that the smal l  trigger is d istinct from the large trigger in  one important way 
which is that the amended tribal compact that is now in effect does exempt the tribal 
government from the smal l  trigger but does not exempt the tribal government from the large 
trigger. So focusing in on the smal l  trigger responds to some of the concerns that have 
been expressed by the tribal government. That is part of the rationale for Sen .  Dotzenrod's 
b i l l .  

Rol l  call  vote on motion to amend . 2 yes, 5 no. Motion fai led . 

Sen. Cook -- Sen .  Dotzenrod , you sti l l  have red envelopes. 

Sen . Dotzenrod -- I wil l hold the amendment back and just pass out the Christmas tree 
version of this. The way this version of 1 476 is d rafted it is to adopt the 3 provisions that 
Chairman Mark Fox talked to us about yesterday. You can see on page 1 ,  line 4,  and to 
provide an expiration date. This is a 2 year bi l l .  The second thing that we heard from 
Chairman Fox and that I thought was a good idea was that the rate can go back to 1 1 . 5%. 
The 4 .5% can go back up  to 6 .5%.  If /OU look at  the bottom of page 5 ,  this exempts those 
wells on trust lands which was his 3r point. If you look at the top of page 6, this is the 
provision that would restore the extraction tax to 6 .5% if you were over $70 for 3 months. 
There is one error in  here and I have asked the council to correct it by the time that we 
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adjourned and got down here .  As this b i l l  is d rafted , the trigger on ly goes 1 way. It real ly 
needs to go both ways and I th ink that was the intention .  This trigger says that if you go 
over $70 for 3 months you go up 1 1 .5%.  I t  should also have a provision that says that i f  it 
goes under $70 for 3 months it goes back to 9 . 5% .  And that is not in here and I have asked 
them to prepare that. Everyone on the committee can understand that a trigger that the 
intention is to have those 3 provisions that he had asked for with the trigger that goes both 
ways. If this were adopted , it could be corrected . 

Sen. Cook -- As we move forward we can take a vote on their understanding of your  
intentions . You r  i ntention here is to make the tribe the most happiest people at the 
negotiating table.  

Sen. Dotzen rod - - One of the problems that I had with the version of 1 476, as it came to 
use from the House, is that the change in  rate from 1 1 . 5% that we currently have to the 
proposed 9 . 5  was a one-way trip .  If the b ig trigger got h it ,  you went from 1 1 . 5 to 9 . 5  or the 
extraction tax went from 6 . 5  to 4 .5  there was no way, in the future, to ever go back to a 
h igher rate . The amendments that he offered to us,  I thought they made a lot of sense 
because they said if the o i l  prices were to improve that we cou ld restore to what we 
currently have , 6.5% extraction tax. I don't know that I felt motivated to try to satisfy his 
desires to have the bi l l  conform to what he thought rather than it solved the problem that I 
saw when the bi l l  came over and I certain ly l ike that provision to do that. 

Sen. Cook - - The amendments that were offered this morn ing add ress that issue, not as 
far as you do, they address it with mechanism to trigger it back on again up to 1 1  % not 
1 1 . 5 % .  It's at $90 not $70. 

Sen . Dotzen rod -- That's right. 

Sen. Triplett - - In response to your  comments that Sen .  Dotzen rod is trying to make the 
tribe the happiest folks in town . . .  

Sen. Cook -- At the negotiating table. 

Sen . Tri plett - - The long term price here is 9.5% which is more l ike halfway between the 
industry and the tribe. It doesn't go all the way toward the tribe. It takes care of one 
problem but leaves a d ifferent position on the price.  

Sen. Cook - - Sen .  Dotzenrod , I see you also have a change in  the average price of crude 
oi l ,  on top of page 2. Can you explain what you are doing there? 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- I t  takes off the overstrike and leaves the overstrike on the minus $2 .50.  
I t  turns the average price defin ition but i t  leaves off the $2 .50.  

Sen. Cook -- Questions? Sen . Dotzenrod , d id you want to move these amendments? 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- 1 would move the adoption of amend ment 1 5. 1 024.05006. 
(Attachment #3) 
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Sen.  Tri plett -- Seconded . 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- One additional point on this, if we had this b i l l  early in the session and 
we had plenty of time to collect data and get information and rea l ly be able to know exactly 
how each of the effected parties was affected , I th ink I would have considered not having it 
be a 2 year b i l l .  Part of  the reason that I thought that i t  made sense to have i t  be a 2 year 
bi l l  is because we are squeezed for time and there is a lot of data that we don't have , 
impacts that we don't know. I thought that was a good idea to make it a 2 year b i l l .  

Sen.  Cook -- Not putting a sunset on this b i l l ,  of course , does not stop anyone of us from 
bringing a b i l l  next session and changing it, does it? 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- Certain ly you are right about that. Once a provision is in law, to try to 
get it removed is a l ittle d ifferent than trying to get a legislature to adopt a program that 
would go forward . (meter 1 4 :27- 14 :47) 

Sen. Cook -- With your  persuasiveness , I 'm sure that if it is the right thing to do, you would 
persuade us to do it. 

Roll call  vote on motion to amend 2 yes, 5 no. Motion fai led.  

Sen. Cook - - Now that you are al l  here ,  you are looking to see another amendment to put 
on the tab le .  We are close to a fiscal note that is not here yet. You will see a fiscal note 
before we vote on this. It's in the process. My intent is to adjourn . We have conference 
committees at 2 :30 and to come back in after the floor session . 

Sen. Tri plett -- Can we have some d iscussion on the other amendment. It hasn't been 
moved yet but it cou ld be moved and open for d iscussion so we could start the 
conversation .  

Sen. Cook -- Let's d iscuss the amendments that we have before us 1 5 . 1 024.05008 
(Attac hment #4) Committee, any thoughts or comments. 

Sen. Tri plett - - I 'd l ike to spend some time d iscussing the piece that was added at my 
request in this amendment wh ich is the carbon d ioxide .  The carbon d ioxide enhanced oil 
recovery notion and just by way of a small bit of h istory, we put an exemption on which 
starts on page 6 of the 5008 version that we are looking at now, 57-5 1 . 1 -03,  Exemptions 
from oil extraction tax. (meter 1 7 : 55-23: 1 0) I am passionate about this p iece staying in .  

S e n .  Cook - - Your  passion is  obvious. We have had the d iscussions about EmPower 
before and we recogn ize that the bal l  has been d ropped between them and the energy 
committee and there wi l l  be changes. This is a changing industry and we are looking at 
co2 recovery and we need to know what we are doing as we move forward . 

Sen . Tri plett -- The reason that it is important to get it out now is because the industry has 
not made any particularly sign ificant amount of investment in  tert iary recovery in the 
Bakken because it is too soon .  The reason it's all sti l l  in here,  the entire section on co2 use 
as enhanced oil recovery, is because we have exempted the area outside of the Bakken 
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Three Forks geographic area using the same defin ition that we did for a small incentive 2 
years ago. (meter 24 :42-25:  1 2) 

Sen. Cook -- We are recessed . 
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Chairman Cook opened the committee work on H B 1 476. 

Sen. Cook - - Folks, you should have at your  desk, some new amendments, 
1 5 . 1 024.0501 5; (Attachment #1 ) I wi l l  tel l  you right now the on ly d ifference between what 
you see now and what you've seen earlier today, if you turn to the last page of the bi l l ,  
section 6. That is the on ly d ifference, John,  right? I thought that was section 5. How d id it 
get to section 6? 

John Walstad speaks off microphone: because there is a one month speed up for 
December. We wi l l  have to amend that section separately. 

Sen. Cook -- And where is that at? 

John Walstad off m icrophone: that is section 4 of the bi l l  on page 6. 

Sen. Cook -- Okay. Here we go. You see the amendment on section 4, the new section 4, 
on page 6. This morn ing we were waiting for a fiscal note, I 've seen a fiscal note and it was 
not one that I wanted to deal with .  What we have done here is the continuation of 
exemptions that a re in p lace and wil l expi re for the big trigger December 1 ,  201 5 . Effective 
December 1 ,  201 5,  the b ig trigger is gone. Completely gone. We wil l  get to Ryan for the 
fiscal note of this b i l l .  It not on ly affects the fiscal note but i t  makes this b i l l  much more 
l ikeable to the M HA and they can speak to that and probably have in the hal lway. Al l  of us, 
the state, MHA, al l of us would only have to deal with the big trigger, if it kicks in ,  for 6 
months .  MHA stated that they wou ld l ike an exemption for the trigger. They don't have an 
exemption but they only have to deal with it for 6 months. The p revious bi l l  they could have 
had to deal with it up  to 24 months. That's a big change and with that these amendments 
are before us. I th ink we should formal ly have a motion and then we wi l l  d iscuss the 
amendments. 
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Sen. Laffen - - 1 would move amendment 1 5. 1 024.050 1 5 to engrossed H B 1 476. 

Sen. Bekkedahl  -- Seconded. 

Sen. Cook - - Discussion? And do you want M r. Walstad to come up to the pod ium again? 
When you explain it ,  neither for nor against the bi l l ,  it j ust seems to be accepted a lot better. 

John Walstad,  Leg islative Counci l  - - Sen .  Cook gave a pretty good explanation .  Let's 
just thumb through here. We've got first 5 pages, 6 pages no change from previous unti l  
we get to section 4, that is the el imination beg inning December 1 ,  of the 24 month 
exemption for horizontal wel ls .  New ones. It doesn't say that here. The effective date is 
what makes it December 1 ,  right. The language on 8 about the tert iary outside the Bakken 
that was in the earl ier version we looked at, right, so, u n less there are some questions. On 
page 1 2 ,  right at the very bottom,  section 6, I wacked out leg islative intent because I 
thought this real ly isn't i ntent anymore. This is a statement of what the law is. So, what it 
provides now is that any remaining term for an exemption or  rate reduction that is 
el iminated in  section 4.  Wait, is that a wrong reference,  the 4? Yes ,  it should be 5.  

Sen .  Cook -- We can al l  change that. 

John Walstad - - And those carryover kinds of periods of exemptions, or rate reduction,  
would be terminated effective January 1 .  Now, the remain ing term of the horizontal wel l  in 
section 3.  That's wrong.  That's section 4 .  So the first one should be 5 and this one should 
be 4 ,  but 4 is that 24 month horizontal wel l  exemption and the remain ing term for that 
expires December 1 ,  20 1 5 . The effective dates are somewhat d ifferent than they were 
previously. We've got a new section and we've got 1 ,2 , 3 , &  5 kick i n  January 1 ,  201 6. Four 
kicks in December 1 ,  201 5 ,  and then section 7 is the waiver, that's sti l l  effective Ju ly 1 5 , to 
the end of 2 0 1 6. 

Sen. Dotze n rod - - J ust a clarification ,  changing 4 to 5 ,  that's on page 1 3  , l ine 1 .  Where 
was the next change that you were changing? 

John Walstad - - Just 2 l ines lower. That 3 should be a 4.  

Sen.  Cook - - Joh n ,  stay close but I am going to cal l  Ryan up  and let h im talk about the 
fiscal note. 

Rya n Rauschenberger, Tax Commissioner -- Under this version of the b i l l ,  the trigger 
will be in effect for 6 months ,  that's in l ine with the current forecast. We would have June 
p roduction through the end of November production sti l l  u nder the trigger so that is 
basically a wash when it comes to the official forecast. (Attachment #2) 

Sen. Cook - - This fiscal note, you calculated December 201 6 at 1 0% ,  i nstead of 1 1 .5%? 

Ryan Rauschenberger - - That's correct. 

Sen.  Cook -- So, it's not accurate . It's a rough estimate, what, another $2M? 
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Ryan Rausc henbe rger -- Actually, at the 1 Y:z% i n  one month . . .  It is indexed up going up  
from 4 2 .  I n  that month , we are looking at $47.08 for North Dakota crude. I wou ld say that, 
based on the n umber that I ta lked about yesterday of the trigger, 1 Y:z% rough change 
would be probably another $ 1 5M .  

Sen. Cook -- There wi l l  be  an accurate fiscal note done for .  . .  

Ryan Rauschenberger -- I f  the amendments are adopted, we would do a n  official fiscal 
note for the amended bi l l  but at this time I can say it wou ld be more than the $ 1 5M because 
you would now be looking at 1 1 . 5 as opposed as 1 0 , j ust for that one month . That l ittle rate 
change in  one month is a p retty big swing when we are talking fiscal notes. 

Sen. Tri plett -- If I am read ing your  notes correctly, it looks l ike you are assuming for you r  
fiscal impacts going out into 20 1 6  and 20 1 7  that you are showing increases because you 
are assuming an effective rate of 6 . 1  % and that comes from the d iscounts North Dakota 
takes, essential ly. Can you expla in why it is 6. 1 as opposed to 6.5? 

Ryan Rauschen berger - - Right now, the current rate is ,  on the overal l  effective rate is due 
to the exemption for stripper wel ls ,  primari ly due to stripper wel ls .  Right now it's at that 
1 1 . 1 5  overal l  rate is due to stripper wells making up a very smal l  percentage of al l  wel l  
p roduction . They a re only taxed a t  5 % .  That's why we never reach 1 1 .5% because we do 
have stripper wells at  5. That's why al l  the effective rates a re k ind of an odd number. 

Sen. Dotze n rod - - I f  we never h it the big trigger, if May turns out to be an average higher 
than $55 . 09 , does this bi l l  have no effect? 

Ryan Rauschenberger -- I don't have numbers in front of me but we do assume that 1 1  
months trigger so you would have , basical ly, starting December 1 ,  or January 1 ,  you wou ld 
have rates at that point being lower than what wou ld be. I shou ld say after actual ly May 1 .  
We have triggers going out through May so the effective rate up through then wou ld be 
6 . 1  % so that is how we compared . That is our  effective rate in the forecast, 6 . 1  % so 
a nything above or below that is basical ly a fiscal impact. 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- So when you are making these fiscal predictions, you are comparing the 
p rovision of th is b i l l  to an anticipated engagement of the trigger and then what the effects of 
that wou ld be through the month of November and comparing that to what this bi l l  does. If, 
for some reason ,  you r  p redictions about hitting that trigger turned out to be wrong and it 
never engaged , we wou ld have some d ifferent numbers here. 

Ryan Rauschen berger - - That is true. As with any fiscal note, we l ive with the legislatively 
adopted forecast and that was adopted in March .  That assumes the trigger is on for 1 1  
months, rang ing from $38.00 North Dakota crude through $38 to $48 next March. We 
assume that the trigger is on for 1 1  months. 

Sen.  Dotzen rod - - On that 3rd l ine from the bottom where you've got fiscal year 20 1 7  minus 
$266M. U nderneath that it says 1 2  months where effective rate, doing that 1 2  months is 
the rate constant or  is there a t ime when it's one rate and then during the 1 2  months it  
changes? 
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Ryan Rauschenberger -- Because that rate does actually change from month to month 
depending on the exemptions that are avai lable, it isn't j ust a constant rate. We look at it 
actually on a month by month basis but 6. 1 is an average. The 4.8 is an average for the 
purposes of a fiscal note. 

Sen. Triplett - - If you all wou ld go to page 8 of the Christmas tree version of the bill that we 
are looking at right now on the topic of the secondary tertiary recovery , I 'd l ike to d raw you r  
attention to the fact that if you look on l ines 3 where we are talking about the secondary 
recovery, we now have incrementa l  production having a tax exemption that lasts for 5 
years. If you look at subdivision b on l ine 8 ,  the existing law g ives incremental production 
for 1 0  years for tertiary recovery not using carbon d ioxide and then ,  as we talked about, the 
one that we removed carbon d ioxide tertiary recovery for those that are outside the Bakken 
and Three Forks formations which is the exemptions; what we are really doing we have at 5 
years. I had a lobbyist wander by my desk and suggest that was p retty u nfai r  and they 
ought all to be the same. So,  I am going to throw a proposed verbal amendment out to say 
on line 8,  change that 1 0  to 5 . 

Sen. U n ruh -- Seconded . 

Sen. Triplett -- The idea of tertiary recovery is sti l l  unused , other than the one example that 
we've made an exception for and was started in the earl ier part of our committee hearing 
our goal here is to get a level p laying field to start a d ifferent kind of d iscussion in the next 
session or whenever it becomes an issue for the industry. (meter 1 8:20-1 8 :32) 

Sen. Oeh lke - - I don't see a real problem. We wil l  be back here in  2 years if this becomes 
a raving issue, it's not l ike th is can 't be adjusted ever. 

Sen. Cook -- It may very wel l  become a raving issue, also. I 've got one other question in  
that section, Sen .  Trip lett, we' l l  come back to  the 1 0  to 5, but on l ine 1 0 , do we want to  say 
and or do we want to say or. 

Sen.  Triplett -- Which one of the three? 

Sen.  Cook -- The last one. I 'm thinking it should be or. 

Sen.  Triplett -- Nope. It is and.  Mr. Walstad used exactly the same language as we used 
2 years ago for the addit ional exemption that we granted 2 years ago for th ings outside the 
Bakken.  

Sen. Cook -- I see his head is nodding.  

Sen. U n ru h  -- I 'm happy to have this d iscussion but I feel l ike th is would be going 
backwards ,  in the opposite d i rection .  I 'm be much happier to move things over to 1 0, rather 
than 5 but I seconded so that we could move forward a d iscussion. 

Sen.  Cook -- You'd rather change the 5 to 1 O? 
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Sen . U n ru h  -- I wou ld rather change the 5 to a 1 0. I th ink this is qu ite a policy change to 
be adding on to something that I know is not unrelated , by any means. I think this could 
potentia l ly cause some very, very big problems for some projects out there .  (meter 20:40-
21  :22) 

Sen . Oeh l ke -- Five or  ten ,  we're back here in 2 years. 

Sen.  Cook -- I l ike the bi l l  the way it is. 

Sen.  Cook -- We have a motion to amend this further from 1 0  to 5 on l ine 8 .  Rol l  call  vote 
3 yes, 6 no. Motio n  fai led. 

Sen.  U n ru h  -- I wou ld l ike to make a motion to change the word 5 on l ine 1 5  of page 8 to 
1 0. I think this is important because we do need to create a level p laying field here. 
Current law has 1 0  years for any other type of product that is used for tertiary recovery and 
I don't think that we need to be deincentivizing the carbon d ioxide p rocess with this. 

Sen . Tri plett -- Point of order, I 'm not entirely sure that motion was seconded . 

Sen. Bekkedah l  -- S econded . 

Sen.  Triplett -- I made the same argument about un iform ity a minute ago so I do agree 
with uniformity but I th ink that the idea was that we had made a m istake in the past and we 
need to study this with some d i l igence before we g ive away the farm again and so I am 
res isting giving away the farm u nti l we have studied it. 

Sen. Dotze n rod -- The information that we got from Mr. Rauschenberger showed that in  
the second year we a re minus $266M,  i t  does seem to me that we have in this b i l l  made 
sign ificant policy change. I don't think that this part of it wou ld ,  by changing the years from 
5 to 1 0  or 1 0  to 5, be very sign ificant relative to what other big changes are going on .  
(meter 24:42-24:58) 

Sen. U n ru h  -- I would argue that this isn't a minor pol icy issue ;  that this d oes send a pretty 
strong message to those folks who are looking at carbon d ioxide for tertiary recovery. 
Putting them i n  a completely d ifferent time frame category as the other products that could 
be used sends a strong message to them and that is not a message that I am comfortable 
send ing to them.  It think 1 0  is appropriate for both section of subsection b. 

Roll  call  vote on motion to amend on page 8, l i ne 1 5, from 5 to 1 0. 2 yes, 5 no. 
Motion fai led. 

Sen.  Cook -- We h ave before us, again,  HB1 476 , as amended . D iscussio ? 

Sen.  Triplett -- You made some representations on behalf of the tribe when we first got 
here this afternoon and I th ink  you offered that we cou ld hear from the tribes if they were 
interested in  responding to the most recent set of amendments. 

Sen. Cook -- It was a mistake I made. It was innocent. 
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Sen. Triplett -- If they are interested . 

Sen . Cook -- I think we have had plenty of conversations in  the hal l .  I know where they are 
at. I a lways get concerned about bringing anybody back up  at a time l ike this because then 
they are others that say they wou ld l ike to address us also. But you brought it up ,  
Chairman Fox, do you have anything else that you wanted to say? And, I apologize. 

Mark Fox -- I appreciate the opportunity to make some comments .  There's a lot of 
del iberation on this and things have changed from what we were looking at yesterday to 
today. We have had a chance to ind icate our concerns. We were stressing hard on the 
exemption of the big trigger to trust wells with in our boundaries. I will admit that the change 
going from a potential  appl ication of 24 months to 6 months is an improvement and we 
respect that. (meter 27:50-29:33) 

Sen. Cook -- Chairman Fox, I think the big questions is we are going to make a decision on 
this .  We are either going to ki l l  th is b i l l  and l ive with current tax law regarding oi l  taxes or 
we are going to pass it  and l ive with the law and the changes that th is brings. What wou ld 
you rather see happen? 

Mark Fox -- I bel ieve I would rather see the change. Even though we are not happy with 
the 90 versus the 70 and things of that nature. We wil l  be calculating ours but we do 
recognize that the overal l  system did need to change. The old means of b ig trigger had to 
change and we appreciate that. 

Sen. Cook -- And I th ink I could ask the same question of the oil industry. There's a lot of 
other things they would l ike in this b i l l  too. 

Sen. Laffen -- Did you want to officially change those two section n umbers at the back or 
are you comfortable with just stating it? 

Sen. Cook -- We better have it on the record that we changed them. 

Sen.  Laffen -- I wou ld move to amend on page 1 3, l ine 1 ,  number 4 to 5 ;  and l ine 3,  3 to 4. 

Sen.  Bekkedahl  -- Seconded . 

Sen.  Cook -- A l l  i n  favor, s ign ify by saying aye. Motion carried. 

Sen . Dotzenrod -- If I wanted to propose a couple of one word changes in the bi l l ,  wou ld it 
be better for me to make those motions at this time or wait and see if the amendments that 
we have in  front of us are adopted and then propose to further amend? 

Sen.  Cook - - Tel l  me what words you want to change? 

Sen. Dotzenrod -- On page 5, l ine 29, amend the 90 to 70 and on the top of page 6 . .  

Sen.  Cook -- We already d id that this afternoon, d id we not? 
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Sen. Dotzenrod -- That was on a question if, for 90 days days, it went over $70 then the 
1 1 . 5% tax wou ld come in .  If  it went below $70 it would be . . .  

Sen. Cook -- Make your  motion .  

Sen. Dotzen rod - - I would move to amend 1 476 by on page 5 ,  l i ne 29, delete the word 90 
and put in its place 70; and at the top of page 6, l ine 1 ,  delete the word 90 and put in place 
70. 

Sen. Triplett -- Seconded .  

Sen. Dotzen rod - - What I 'm th inking i f  the bi l l  as  i t  s its right here with 90  in  here ,  I believe 
is a trigger that is not going to h it or very d ifficult to h it. I think it is going to be very hard to 
get $90 and then there is an index on it so it's an inflater. 

Sen . Triplett -- Thank you for letting Chairman Fox speak one more time. I d id not have a 
chance to speak with h im in  the hallway. Regard ing Sen . Dotzenrod's motion ,  I do intend to 
vote yes with h im on that motion and I wanted to report that someone suggested an 
alternative to the word trigger after hearing Mr. Walstad say he worked to try hard to find an 
a lternative and the suggestion was prosperity tax. I l ike that. (meter 34:20-36 :26) 

Sen. Cook -- I don't .  

Rol l  call  vote on motion to amend 90 to 70. 2 Yes, 5 no. Motion fai led. 

Sen. Bekkedahl - - Since the word trigger has becomes a 7 letter or 4 letter word in our 
vocabulary ,  can I ask M r. Walstad a question? As the code reviser, is it  improper to use the 
word threshold price in opposition to trigger price? 

John Walstad -- I th ink it works. 

Sen. Bekkedahl  -- M r. Chairman , would you have any objection to that being amended in? 

S e n .  Cook - - I could care what i t  says: trigger, threshold , it's a l l  do ing the same thing. If  
you want to wordsmith ,  people are going to cal l  it a p rosperity tax, I 'm sure they are. I 'd l ike 
to pass the bi l l .  

Sen. Bekkedah l  -- Hearing that I have no more objection .  

Roll call  vote o n  amendments 1 5.1 024.0501 5.  6 yes, 1 no. 

Sen. Cook -- Motion passes 6-1 .  That fin ishes our work, committee. I ' l l  carry it. 
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Chairman Cook opened the committee work on H B 1 476. All committee members present. 

Sen. Cook -- It was a long day yesterday. Somehow we got out of there; we passed an 
amended bi l l  but we didn't pass the b i l l .  I spent a sleepless n ight worrying about all the 
amendments you were going to try to put on it and Sen .  Dotzen rod you are not going to put 
on any more amendments . You are out. 

Sen. Tri plett -- I wi l l  move my amendment 1 5 . 1 024. 050 1 9 . (Attachment #1 ) 

Sen. Laffen -- Seconded . 

Sen. Tri plett -- This is longer than it looks due to Leg islative Counci l .  What I asked for was 
the parts that a re labeled section 9 & 1 0 . I th ink it was incorporated into the last 
amendment that we offered . You can ignore everything except those 2 sections. Section 9 
provides for a leg islative management study, this is a mandatory study, and it is focused on 
the economics regarding enhanced recovery techn iques and it has an appropriation of 
$300 ,000 . (meter 2 :01 -3 :24) 

Sen. Cook -- Sen .  Triplett, as far as the research,  the research on tax pol icy focuses on 
our tax pol icy regarding co2 and tertiary recovery. We passed another bil l out of here 
earlier regarding the capture of co2 from a power plant and taking it to be used for oi l wel l  
flood ing and secondary recovery and we d idn't do a lot of research on that either. I have no 
problem doing this. I am concerned about putting on this bi l l at this point of the game. I wi l l  
commit to trying to put th is on OMB. I bel ieve it  is a good study. 

Sen. Oeh l ke -- If we are going to reject it ,  that's one th ing .  If not, I d id notice that the 
information on the top of this Christmas tree bi l l  that we have wasn't completely addressed 
because it d id replace on top of page 1 3 , the 4 with 5 but it add ress the 3 with the 4 .  
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Sen. Triplett -- That wouldn 't be a part of anyth ing at OMB because there wou ldn't be the 
necessity of repeating yesterday's amendment on this b i l l .  I had on ly looked at  the parts 
that I cared about. I appreciate your  commitment to try that and does the commitment 
include requesting some money for it? 

Sen. Cook -- I t  wi l l .  The only thing that real ly scares me is the amendments that we 
passed yesterday were 050 1 5 .  These are 0501 9 .  I'm wondering what else is out there 
since we adjourned . We have a motion to amend 0501 9 . 

Sen. U n ru h  -- I agree with you .  I th ink this is an important d iscussion for us to have and I 
we are making a big pol icy change on something that d idn't qu ite get enough d iscussion . 
Continuing that d iscussion throughout the interim is very, very important. I don't bel ieve 
this is the place for the study but I wi l l  try to do what I can to make it happen this session .  

Roll call  vote o n  motion to amend 050 1 9. 2 yes, 5 no. Motion fai led.  

Sen. Cook - - We have before us H B 1 476, as amended . 

Sen. Laffen -- I would move a do pass on engrossed H B 1 476. 

Sen. U n ru h  - - Seconded . 

Sen.  Dotzen rod - - I want to make sure I 'm clear on the number of the amendment that was • added , was that .050 1 5? (Attachment #2) 

Sen. Cook -- That is the one that is before us. 

Rol l  cal l  vote on motion to pass H B 1 476 as amended . 6 yes, 1 no.  Motion passed. 

Carrier: Sen. Cook 
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Explanation or reason for i ntrod uction of bi l l/resolution:  

Committee work 

M i n utes :  II Attachment #1 

Chairman Cook opened the committee work on HB1 476 . 

Sen. Cook -- We have before H B 1 476. 

Sen. Laffen - - I would move that we reconsider our previous action on H 8 1 476. 

Sen. U n ru h  - - Seconded . 

Sen. Cook -- Discussion? All  in  favor sign ify by saying aye. Motion carried. 

Sen. Cook -- We have before us HB1 476. We have a techn ical correction we must make, 
Mr. Walstad would you come and explain? 

John Walstad , Legislative Counci l  - - I apolog ize . Someth ing happened here and I 
overlooked it. I n  the b i l l  we had speeded up to December 1 the el imination of the 24 month 
exemption for new horizontal wel ls .  The oversight that I made, if you've got your  mark-up 
copy of the b i l l ,  in the 02 section which has the rate in it, this is where the rate change is 
made. Because we were also getting rid of al l  of the triggered exemptions, reductions, etc. , 
everything below the rate there was overstruck. That al l  takes effect on January 1 st_ The 
oversight was when we el iminated the exemption for horizontal wel ls December 1 ,  th is 
hasn't happened yet and so that subsection 1 ,  that cuts the rate to 4%, wou ld kick in for 
those wells for 1 month , which wou ld make the rate 4%,  instead of the 6 .5% that we were 
assuming in  the fisca l  note. It was an oversight. One of my best ones ever, this one 
having a price tag of about $35M.  I apologize, aga in .  I was lonesome for you all and I 
wanted to get together again . 

• 
Sen. Cook -- The new language that you are adding with this amendment? 
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John Walstad -- The new language being added now, (Attachment #1 ) I 'm looking at the 
amendment sheet this time instead of at the bi l l ,  and on page 2 of the amendment sheet 
that indented subsection 3 ,  the last 7 l ines I overstruck some language (meter 2 :49-4 :52) 

Rya n Ra uschen berger, Office of State Tax Com m issioner -- Basica l ly, the fiscal note I 
mentioned yesterday was positive $ 1 5M .  That would have assumed that we do go to 1 0% 
starting in December, if that would started December 1 ,  this b i l l  would have the 1 1 . 5% 
which I mentioned was an add itional 1 5  to 20. The actual number is 20 .  So it is a positive 
$35M. 

Sen. Cook -- If the trigger doesn't kick on ,  and it's starting to look l ike i t  m ight not, we wi l l  
be at 1 1 % for the rest of 20 1 5  up unti l  December 3 1 51 and then we wi l l  go to 1 0%.  

Rya n Ra uschen berger - - That's correct. The effective rate would remain around 1 1 . 1 5  
and then it would go to just below 1 0  because of the effective rate . 

Sen. Laffen -- 1 would move the amendment 1 5. 1 024.05022 to engrossed H B 1 476. 

Sen. U n ru h  -- Seconded. 

Sen.  Dotze n rod -- Would the motion have to i nclude that we recede from earlier 
amendments? We can just adopt this? 

Sen. Cook -- No. That's how the first mistake got made. I thought that I was in a • conference committee and now you are thinking that we are in a conference committee. 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- I 'm assuming that a lot of the words that are in this amendment are 
already on the b i l l .  So if we adopt them we are probably . .  

Sen .  Cook -- We have to , first, before we do this we need to reconsider our action by which 
we amended H B 1 476.  

Sen.  Laffen -- I would make a motion that we reconsider our action by which we 
amended engrossed H B 1 476. 

Sen. U n ru h  -- Seconded. 

Sen . Triplett -- Point of order, do you have to pu l l  the previous motion out because there 
was a lready a motion on the floor to approve the amendment and then you announced the 
need for the reconsideration .  

Sen . Cook - - I d idn 't hear  that. You have the motion in  front o f  y o u  to reconsider o u r  
action b y  w h i c h  w e  amended H B 1 476. All  i n  favor sign ify by saying aye. Ca rried . 

Now we have 1 476 as introduced before us .  

Sen.  Laffen - - I wou l d  move the amendment 1 5. 1 024.05022 to engrossed H B 1 476.  • 



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
H B 1 476 
April 23, 201 5  
Page 3 

Sen. U n ru h  -- Seconded. 

Discussion? 

Sen . Tri plett -- There has been some hal lway conversations again whi le we have been 
waiting ,  is there any appetite for a motion to amend the 90 to some other number? 

Sen. Cook -- No.  I 'd rather not. We've done it. We know the action . I think that we wil l  do 
it on the floor, probably. I am expecting to do it on the floor. 

Sen . Tri plett -- Are we expecting it to pass on the floor if we haven't done it here? 

Sen . Cook -- I do not know. I 'm not expecting it to pass here as it d id yesterday. 

Sen . Tri p lett -- So, strateg ical ly, it might be better not to try here so it doesn't have the 
defeat here? 

Sen . Cook - - I th ink you wou ld be better off not to try here .  We have tried it here. I think 
we only need to try it here once.  

Sen.  Tri plett - - We tried 70 yesterday. I don't th ink we tried 80.  

Sen.  Cook -- I thought you were going to try 89.  

Sen. Tri plett -- No.  80.  We sat here in  a d ifferent conference committee , the big dog and I ,  
for many, many days to get to 87.5 .  

Sen.  Cook -- Sen .  Trip lett, there are a lot of parties involved with this and you start making 
changes l ike this and somebody might become more happy with the b i l l ,  somebody is going 
to become much more d isappointed with the b i l l .  We can do whatever we can do on the 
floor. Let's get this b i l l  out of here .  

Sen.  Cook - - We have a motion to amend H B 1 476 , any d iscussion? Roll  cal l  vote on 
motion to amend ending with 22. 7 yes. Carried. 

Sen . Cook - - We have before us H B 1 476 , as amended . 

Sen . Laffen -- I would move a do pass on engrossed H B 1 476, as amended. 

Sen. U n ru h  -- Seconded. 

Sen . Tri plett -- Should the motion say and also refer to appropriations? 

Sen. Cook -- Normal ly, it wou ld . It's got to go to the floor. No, It's not going to 
appropriations. 

Sen. Tri plett - - And that is a decision made above our pay g rade? 
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Sen . Cook -- Yes, it has been made. 

Roll call  vote on motion on a do pass , as amended. 6 yes , 1 no.  Motion carried . 

Carrier: Sen . Cook 

Sen. Cook - - Our work is fin ished . 



15.1024.05001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dotzenrod 

April 21, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 5, line 13, remove the overstrike over "5*" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four'' 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.1024.05004 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dotzenrod 

April 21 , 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 11 , line 9, after "9:-" insert "~" 

Page 11 , line 9, remove the overstrike over "The first seventy five thousand barrels or the first 
four million five hundred thousand" 

Page 11 , remove the overstrike over lines 10 and 11 

Page 11 , line 12, remove the overstrike over "April 30, 2009, and before July 1," 

Page 11 , line 12, after"~" insert "2017" 

Page 11 , line 12, remove the overstrike over", is subject to a reduced tax rate of" 

Page 11 , line 12, after "twe" insert "four" 

Page 11 , line 12, remove the overstrike over "percent" 

Page 11 , line 13, remove the overstrike over "of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted 
under this chapter." 

Page 11 , line 16, remove the overstrike over "The rate reduction under this" 

Page 11, remove the overstrike over lines 17 through 26 

Page 11 , line 27, replace "~"with "~" 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.1024.05006 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council 

April 21, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 2, line 3, remove the overstrike over ""Average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing" 

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 4 

Page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike over "in the '.'Vall Street Journal, midwest edition" 

Page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike over". VVhen" 

Page 2, remove the overstrike over lines 6 and 7 

Page 2, line 11, after "4." insert "3." 

Page 2, line 14, replace "3." with "4." 

Page 2, line 17, replace "4." with "5." 

Page 2, line 23, replace "5." with "6." 

Page 3, line 3, replace "6." with "7." 

Page 4, line 1, replace "7." with "8." 

Page 4, line 4, replace "8." with "9." 

Page 4, line 14, replace "9." with "10." 

Page 5, line 14, remove the overstrike over", except that the rate of tax is" 

Page 5, line 14, after "fffi:H:" insert "six and one-half' 

Page 5, line 14, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the well of the oil" 

Page 5, line 15, remove the overstrike over "extracted" 

Page 5, line 28, after "57 51.1 03" insert "from wells located on trust lands within the 
boundaries of the Fort Berthold Reservation if an agreement entered under chapter 
57-51.2 provides that production from trust lands is subject to the tax imposed under 
this section" 

Page 5, line 28, remove the overstrike over the period 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "However, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
efl.'' 

Page 5, line 29, after "ail" insert "meets or" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "exceeds " 

Page 5, line 29, after "exceeds" insert "seventy dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 
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Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over"any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable ·.vells is" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "six and one half percent of the gross value at the 
well of the oil extracted" 

Page 12, line 9, after "DATE" insert "- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 12, line 12, after the period insert "If this Act takes effect, it is effective through July 31, 
2017, and after that date is ineffective." 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.1024.05015 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Cook 

April 22, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" with "to provide for an exception; to provide for a 
legislative management study;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half" and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "However, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oil exceeds the trigger price" 

Page 5, line 29, after the second "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable wells is" 

Page 5, line 31 , remove the overstrike over "six" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "a percent of the gross value at the ·.veil of the oil 
extracted until the average price" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price" 

Page 6, line 1, after "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for each month in any consecutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period, in 1.vhich case the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fetH:" insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over "'Nell of the oil extracted" 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year, the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 
the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the 
producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the 
United States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics, for the twelve months 
ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the 
trigger price for the following calendar year. 

For purposes of this section. "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate 
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cushing crude oil. as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition. 
When computing the monthly average price. the most recent previous daily closing 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is 
closed. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51.1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 
period of fifteen months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and 
completed as a horizontal well is exempt from any taxes imposed under 
this chapter for a period of twenty four months. Oil recovered during testing 
prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction tax. The 
exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price 
of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 
consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, 
after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 
of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 
five-month period." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations. and ten miles (16.10 kilometers] or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the 
Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" insert "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 3 of this Act expires December 1, 2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 6. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT 
FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement 
of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 
57-51.2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the 
changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, and for agreements under section 
54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement regarding application 
of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or undyed special fuels within the exterior 
boundaries of the reservation. 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying state-tribal tax agreements 
and allocation of revenues from centrally assessed property and property subject to 
payments in lieu of property taxes which is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative 
assembly." 
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Page 1 2, l ine 9,  after "DATE" insert " - EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 1 2, l ine 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1 ,  201 5,  if on that date" 

Page 1 2, remove l ines 1 O and 1 1  

Page 1 2, l ine 1 2, replace "Sections 1 ,  2, 3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events 
occurring after December 31 , 201 5. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events 
occurring after November 30, 201 5. Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1 ,  201 5,  
through December 31 , 201 6, and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.1024.05019 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Triplett 

April 23, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" with "to provide for an exception; to provide for 
legislative management studies; to provide an appropriation;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half' and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "Hm.vever, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oil exceeds the trigger price" 

Page 5, line 29, after the second "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable wells is" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "5*" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "a percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 
extracted until the average price" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price" 

Page 6, line 1, after "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for each month in any consecutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period, in which case the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fetff:" insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over "well of the oil extracted" 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year. the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 
the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the 
producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the 
United States department of labor. bureau of labor statistics. for the twelve months 
ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the 
trigger price for the following calendar year. 

For purposes of this section. "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate 
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cushing crude oil. as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition. 
When computing the monthly average price. the most recent previous daily closing 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is 
closed. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well , the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 
period of fifteen months, except that oil produced from any 1Nell drilled and 
completed as a horizontal 1Nell is exempt from any taxes imposed under 
this chapter for a period of t1.venty four months. Oil recovered during testing 
prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction tax. The 
exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price 
of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 
consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, 
after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 
of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 
five-month period." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations. and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the 
Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, replace "4" with "5" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" insert "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 4 of th is Act expires December 1, 2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 6. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT 
FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement 
of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 
57-51 .2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the 
changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, and for agreements under section 
54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement regarding application 
of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or undyed special fuels within the exterior 
boundaries of the reservation. 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying state-tribal tax agreements 
and allocation of revenues from centrally assessed property and property subject to 
payments in lieu of property taxes which is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
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legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative 
assembly. 

SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - OIL AND GAS TAX 
INCENTIVES. During the 2015-16 interim, the legislative management shall study the 
current scientific and economic information regarding oil and gas recovery and 
enhanced recovery techniques to determine the desirability and appropriate level of tax 
incentives to serve the interests of the state, political subdivisions, the public, and the 
energy production industry. The legislative management may expend up to $300,000 
from funds appropriated for that purpose to secure consulting services to assist in 
completing the study. The legislative management shall report its recommendations, 
together with any legislation necessary to implement the recommendations, to the 
sixty-fifth legislative assembly. 

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in 
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $300,000, 
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the legislative council for the purpose 
of a study of the current scientific and economic information regarding oil and gas 
recovery and enhanced recovery techniques, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, 
and ending June 30, 2017." 

Page 12, line 9, after "DATE" insert"- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 12, line 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1, 2015, if on that date" 

Page 12, remove lines 10 and 11 

Page 12, line 12, replace "Sections 1, 2, 3, and 5 of this Act are effective for tgxable-events 
occurring after December 31, 2015. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events 
occurring after November 30, 2015. Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1, 2015, 
through December 31, 2016, and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.1024.05022 
Title.07000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 

April 23, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 2, after the first comma insert "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03," 

Page 1, line 2 after "and" insert "section" 

Page 1, line 3, replace "to provide legislative intent; and" with "to provide for an exception; to 
provide for a legislative management study;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half' and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "However, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oil exceeds the trigger price" and insert immediately there after "of ninety dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable v1ells is" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "six" 

Page 5, line 31 , remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 
extracted until the average price" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price" 
and insert immediately thereafter "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for each month in any consecutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fi'.1e month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period, in which case the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fel:ff'" insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over "well of the oil extracted" 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year. the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 
the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the 
producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the 
United States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics. for the twelve months 
ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the 
trigger price for the following calendar year. 
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For purposes of this section. "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate 
cushing crude oil, as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition. 
When computing the monthly average price, the most recent previous daily closing 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is 
closed . 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 
period of fifteen months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and 
completed as a horizontal well is exempt from any taxes imposed under 
this chapter for a period of tiNenty four months. Oil recovered during testing 
prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction tax. The 
exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price 
of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 
consecutive five-month period . However, the exemption is reinstated if, 
after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 
of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 
five month periodThe reduced rate of tax under subsection 1 of section 
57-51.1-02 does not apply after November 30. 2015. for oil produced from 
wells drilled and completed after April 27. 1987. commonly referred to as 
new wells. and not otherwise exempt under this section." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations. and ten miles [16.10 kilometers) or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the 
Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, replace "4" with "5" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" with "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires December 1, 2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 7. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT 
FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement 
of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 
57-51 .2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the 
changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, and for agreements under section 
54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement regarding application 
of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or undyed special fuels within the exterior 
boundaries of the reservation. 
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SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - TRIBAL TAX ISSUES . . 
During the 2015-16 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying 
state-tribal tax agreements and allocation of revenues from centrally assessed property 
and property subject to payments in lieu of property taxes which is located on tribal 
trust lands. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, 
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the 
sixty-fifth legislative assembly." 

Page 12, line 9, after "DATE" insert "- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 12, line 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1, 2015, if on that date" 

Page 12, remove lines 10 and 11 

Page 12, line 12, replace "under subsection 3 of section 57-51.1-03 would become effective" 
with "Sections 1, 2, 3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events occurring after 
December 31 , 2015. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events occurring after 
November 30, 2015. Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1, 2015, through 
December 31 , 2016, and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
April 23, 2015 3:17pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_74_001 
Carrier: Cook 

Insert LC: 15.1024.05022 Title: 07000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1476, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Sen. Cook, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (6 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1476 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after the first comma insert "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03," 

Page 1, line 2 after "and" insert "section" 

Page 1, line 3, replace "to provide legislative intent; and" with "to provide for an exception; to 
provide for a legislative management study;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert"; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half' and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "However, if the average prise of a barrel of 
orude oil exoeeds the trigger prise" and insert immediately there after "of ninety 
dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for eaoh month in" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any oonseoutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extraoted from 
all taxable wells is" 

Page 5, line 31 , remove the overstrike over "six" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "peroent of the gross value at the well of the oil 
extraoted until the average prise" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of orude oil is less than the trigger 
f*iee" and insert immediately thereafter "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for eaoh month in any oonseoutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period, in 'Nhioh ease the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fel:H'' insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "peroent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over "well of the oil extraoted" 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year. the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying 
to the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of 
the producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by 
the United States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics. for the twelve 
months ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined 
is the trigger price for the following calendar year. 
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For purposes of this section. "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means 
the monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate 
cushing crude oil. as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition. 
When computing the monthly average price. the most recent previous daily closing 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is 
closed. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for 
a period of fifteen months, exsept that oil prodused from any well drilled 
and sompleted as a horizontal well is exempt from any taxes imposed 
under this shapter for a period of twenty four months. Oil recovered 
during testing prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction 
tax. The exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the 
average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each 
month in any consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is 
reinstated if, after the trigger provision besomes effestive, the average 
prise of a barrel of srude oil is less than the trigger prise for eash month 
in any sonsesutive five month periodThe reduced rate of tax under 
subsection 1 of section 57-51.1-02 does not apply after November 30, 
2015. for oil produced from wells drilled and completed after April 27, 
1987, commonly referred to as new wells. and not otherwise exempt 
under this section." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations, and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include 
the Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, replace "4" with "5" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" with "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires December 1, 
2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 7. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION 
REQUIREMENT FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION 
AGREEMENTS. The requirement of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax 
collection agreements under section 57-51 .2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an 
existing agreement attributable to the changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, 
and for agreements under section 54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an 
existing agreement regarding application of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of 
dyed or undyed special fuels within the exterior boundaries of the reservation. 

SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - TRIBAL TAX 
ISSUES. During the 2015-16 interim, the legislative management shall consider 
studying state-tribal tax agreements and allocation of revenues from centrally 
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assessed property and property subject to payments in lieu of property taxes which 
is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative management shall report its findings 
and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-fifth leg islative assembly." 

Page 1 2, line 9, after "DATE" insert "- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 1 2, l ine 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1 ,  20 1 5 , if on that date" 

Page 1 2, remove lines 1 0  and 1 1  

Page 1 2, l ine 1 2 , replace "under subsection 3 of section 57-51 . 1 -03 would become effective" 
with "Sections 1 ,  2, 3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events occurring after 
December 31 , 201 5. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events occurring 
after November 30, 201 5.  Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1 ,  201 5, through 
December 31 , 201 6,  and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accord ingly 
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HB 1476 



15.9636.01000 
Prepared for Representative Carlson 

PROPOSED RESTRUCTURING OF OIL EXTRACTION TAX H~l47<... 
LJ-ao-15 

This memorandum provides information on the restructuring of oil extraction tax rates and exemptions that would 
occur if bill draft (15.1Q24.04000) is approved by the 2015 Legislative Assembly. If approved, oil extraction tax rates 
and exemptions would be as follows: 

• Oil ~Jltraction tax rate: . . . . . 
The rate is equal to 4 .5 percent on all oil extracted. sub1ect to /1m1ted rate reductions and exemptions. 

• Production exempt from the oil extraction tax includes: 
Production that is exempt from the gross production tax imposed by North Dakota Century Code 
Chapter 57-51 . 
Production from stripper well property or an individual stripper well. 
Incremental production from a secondary recovery project for five years from the date incremental 
production begins. 
Incremental production from a tertiary recovery project for 1 O years from the date incremental 
production begins if the recovery project does not use carbon dioxide or indefinitely if the project does 
use carbon dioxide. 

• Production subject to a reduced oil extraction tax rate includes: 
Production from wells drilled and completed outside the Bakken and Three Forks Formations and 
1 O miles or more outside an established field that includes either formation. 

The first 75,000 barrels of oil produced during the first 18 months after completion are subject 
to a reduced tax rate of 2 percent on the gross value at the well of oil extracted. 

Oil extraction tax rate reductions and exemptions that would be eliminated if bill draft [15.1024.04000] is approved 
by the 2015 Legislative Assembly include: 

• Rate reductions that are dependent on the average monthly comparison price of a barrel of oil dropping below 
the trigger price for five consecutive months. These reductions currently bring the 6.5 percent tax rate down to 
4 percent on: 

Oil produced from a vertical well completed after April 27, 1987, following the first 15 months of exempt 
production. 

Oil produced from a horizontal well completed after April 27, 1989, following the first 24 months of 
exempt production. 

Oil produced from a qualifying secondary or tertiary recovery project certified by the industrial 
commission after June 30, 1991 . 

Incremental oil produced from a qualifying secondary or tertiary recovery project, following the initial 
5-year or 10-year exemption period. · 

• A rate reduction that is dependent on the average price of a barrel of oil falling below $55 for one month. 

This reduction currently brings the 6.5 percent tax rate down to 2 percent on the first $75,000 barrels, 
or the first $4,500,000 of gross value at the well, whichever is less, of oil produced during the first 
18 months after completion. This rate reduction only applies to horizontal wells drilled and completed 
after April 30, 2009, and before July 1, 2015. 

• E_xempti~ns that are depend~nt on the average monthly comparison price of a barrel of oil dropping below the 
trigger pnce for five consecutive months. These exemptions include: 

A 15-month exemption on the initial production from a vertical well. 
A 24-month exemption on the initial production from a horizontal well . 
An exemption on all oil recovered during the testing period prior to well completion. 
A 12-month exemption on production from a qualifying well that was worked over. 
A 10-year exemption on production from a certified two-year inactive well . 
A nine-month exemption on production from a certified horizontal reentry well. 

• A 60-month exemption on the initial production from: 

Wells dr_illed and completed _before July 1, 2~13, on nontrust lands within the boundaries of an Indian 
reservation or on lands held m trust by the United States for an individual Indian or tribe. 

W~lls drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held by an Indian tribe if the interest was in 
existence on August 1, 1997. 

th If approved by the 2015 L~gislati~e Assembly, bill draft [15.1024.04000] would become effective on June 1 2o1
5 

if 
the av~r~ge mfo~~h~~ comparison price of a barr~I of oil remained below the trigger price for the months ~f Mar~h 
a::r~~e m~~t~ly comp~;;s~~ ~~c:r~i ~%r~~,1~~ o~:~~~~~t~:f~~~~~gtr~ period_ of five consecu_tive months :v~ere the 
of any exemptions or rate reductions eliminated by bill draft [15 . 1024.04o55t:~:~e~x~i~~-e effective, the remaining term 

April 2015 

*I 
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TESTIMONY OF SENATOR MAC SCHNEIDER (DISTRICT 42 - GRAND FORKS) 

HOUSE BILL 1476 

JOINT HOUSE AND SENATE FINANCE AND TAX COMMITTEE -APRIL 20, 2015 

Permanently reducing the oil extraction tax by 30% is an artificial and unwise 

exchange for elimination of the trigger incentive and stands to potentially cost the 

people of North Dakota tens of billions of dollars over the life of the world-class 

Bakken oil play. As an alternative, I would respectfully ask that we instead focus 

on reforming the trigger incentive in a bipartisan manner during these few 

remaining days of the session while leaving the oil extraction tax rate alone. 

The heart of my concern with this bill is the permanent nature of the 30% cut to the 

extraction tax and the stunning loss of revenue that the people of this state could 

see if this reduction becomes effective. 

For the sake of perspective, North Dakota collected about $2.14 billion in oil 

extraction tax revenue during the last (2011-2013) biennium. A 30% reduction of 

this amount is roughly $642 million. I think we can all agree that would have been 

a rather staggering loss of revenue for the state in a two year period. 

I need to emphasize, that is what a 30% reduction in oil extraction tax revenue 

would have looked like -- in reality -- over the course of just two years. The 30% 

reduction in the extraction tax proposed in this bill, on the other hand, would be 

ongoing forever and for all time across the biennia. 

The details of this bill were made available on Friday and the legislation is now 

being heard at 9:00 a.m. on Monday. As a result, I have not yet been able to obtain 

projections of what the proposed 30% cut to the extraction tax could cost our 

people in the decades to come. I urge the committee to take no action on this bill 

until the long-term cost of the proposed 30% cut to the extraction tax is 

thoughtfully considered and debated. 

What we do know right now is that Moody's Analytics estimates the trigger 

incentive will go into effect in June of this year. Importantly, Moody's also predicts 
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that the rising price of oil wi l l  result in the expiration of the trigger incentive 

effective May of 20 1 6 . That's 1 1  months of lost extraction tax revenue on newly­

producing wel ls .  

While the lost extraction tax revenue during this 1 1  month period would be 

significant -- $863 mil l ion, according to the Legislative Counci l  -- it is temporary. 

On the other hand, a 3 0% cut to the extraction tax -- which, again, would have 

resulted in $642 mil l ion in lost revenue in only two years -- is perpetual .  By any 

fair measure, the cost of the extraction tax reduction over the l i fe of the Bakken 

would absolutely dwarf the temporary loss of revenue Moody's and Legislative 

Council predict will occur if the trigger incentive becomes effective. In fact, the 

loss of revenue is incomparable. 

But there is no reason why we have to accept the false choice between the blunt 

trigger incentive and a massive cut to the extraction tax. That is  why I urge the 

committee to instead key in on reforming the trigger by providing a meaningful 

incentive to the industry to continue investing in North Dakota during down times 

in the market while  easing the impact of the incentive on any given two-year state 

budget. I do not have easy answers on this point, but I know the experienced 

members of this  committee -- both Republ ican and Democratic -- can get there 

with the right focus and wil l .  

Before I conclude, I would l ike to address some of  the professed rationales for this 

bi l l  and why they fail to justify passage of this legislation in its current form. 

F irst is that this is a "hedge" or insurance policy. Respectfully, I wager there are 

few people who would permanently trade 30% of their income for the rest of their 

working l ives to guard against a temporary loss of income -- especially one 

anticipated to last 1 1  months. This bil l ,  with all due respect, would be an extremely 

unpopular insurance product if sold on the private market. 

Second is that this bil l  wil l  result in revenue stability. Even with a flat tax in place 

and el imination of the trigger incentive, there would be no revenue stabil ity so long 

as oi l  prices remain volati le .  Using the WTI price as an example of this point, the 

difference between 4 .5% of $ 1 05 .34 a barrel (the WTI price on 3/3/ 1 4) and 4.5% 
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of $50.43 (the WTI price on 3/3/ 1 5 )  is significant. Similar future volatility in the 

price of North Dakota crude would continue to cause wildly varying oil extraction 

tax collections even with a flat tax in place. 

Third is that this will  result in predictability for the industry. While I will let the 

industry speak for itself, a concern is that this bill short-changes the people of 

North Dakota during times where oil may return to prices of $80 per barrel or 

more while also taking away an incentive when the oil industry is most likely to 

need one as a "carrot" to continue investing in our state. I understand the forces of 

geopolitics may be stronger than any incentives we can provide through state tax 

pol icy under certain circumstances, but elimination of a tax incentive during 

troughs in the market price of oil in exchange for a 30% tax cut when prices are at 

a peak seems to be a strange pol icy choice. I do not believe any perceived 

predictability gains from this legislation justify the cost to the state and lost 

incentive to the industry. 

Mr. Chairman, I would also urge the joint committee to consider this  final point: 

The 6 .5% extraction tax was put in place by a vote of the people. The trigger 

incentive, on the other hand, is a creation of the Legislature . There is no reason we 

need to undo what the people have put in place, especial ly considering how well 

the industry has done in North Dakota under the existing 6 .5% extraction tax. If the 

concern is the trigger, then let us focus on that. Respectfully, leave the people's 

share of this one-time harvest of natural resource revenue intact for the benefit of 

future generations. 

### 
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Testi mony by Jim Ste nslie 

I am J im Ste nsl ie, resident of N a poleon, and I a m  opposed to this b i l l .  

Fi rst of a l l ,  I have a problem w i t h  the w a y  t h i s  b i l l  w a s  d rawn u p  a n d  presented s o  near  to the 80 d a y  

l i m it y o u  face. I a lso o bject to t h e  w a y  th is has b e e n  do ne, without p r i o r  d iscussion with M i nority 

members and without a ny p u b l ic i n put inc luding d isrega rd for the Th ree Affi l iated Tribes on Fort 

Bertho ld .  This is not the way I want my Legis lature to do o u r  busi ness. 

Despite a statement that the oil  industry accepts this bi l l  "re lucta ntly," l ike so many other actions of th is 

Legis lature, it is clea rly intended and pro posed to meet their  needs. Cutting the o i l  extractio n tax in this 

way by 30%, from 6 . 5%, a rrived at by a vote of our citizens, to 4.5% is a pretty heavy ha nded way to 

legislate . Read i ng va rious state ments a bout the effect this bi l l  m ight have is enough to convince me that 

we a re m uch better off to put this bi l l  aside and leave thi ngs the way they a re rather than trying to force 

th is b i l l  through.  Th is issue deserves m uch more t ime than you have before yo u .  

I n  process a n d  content th is is a fa ulty b i l l, a n d  I u rge you t o  m ove o n  t o  t h e  m a ny other issues waiting 

your attenti o n .  
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Chairman Headland and members of the committee, my name is Ron Ness, president of the North 

Dakota Petroleum Council .  The North Dakota Petroleum Council represents more than 500 companies 

directly employing 65,000 employee in North Dakota in all aspects of the oil  and gas industry, including oil 

and gas production, refining, pipeline, transportation, mineral leasing, consulting, legal work, and oilfield 

service activities in North Dakota. We are neutral on HB 1 476 but are providing an amendment to the 

current version and with adoption of that we support a flat predictable oil tax rate for North Dakota. 

It 's hard to imagine that a $40 bill ion dol lar industry in North Dakota has no idea what their tax rate 

wil l  be 40 days from today. Under today 's  law, the big trigger is a 1 30% swing in the tax rate and all 

existing wells are reduced to 9%, that's about $76 million dol lars per month at $40 dollars a barrel .  How can 

you plan with that on the horizon? HB 1 476, as drafted, is merely a revenue insurance pol icy for the State of 

North Dakota on the backs of oil producers and mineral owners. 

Over the course of the last seven years, the Bakken has seen a lot. These initial years of the play 

brought intense exploration activity during a period of high prices and excitement and leaseholds that had to 

be dril led. We quickly began to learn the Bakken was a world class play. It also brought many challenges, 

some difficult and costly. 

The "Exploration Phase" of the Bakken is over. We've learned that although the Bakken is a huge 

resource with large reserves, we've all been humbled and reminded these last few months that oi l  is stil l  a 

commodity. Our rig count dropped exactly 50% in less than four months and thousands of jobs have been 

. lost. The consequences of the low prices and the big trigger going on now amounts to billions of dollars in 

revenue, not a few million as in the pre or early Bakken days. While technology has dramatically changed 

our ability to recover oil, the price of the commodity will always fluctuate and there is nothing in today's 

world that suggests this won't be the case in the future. When the big trigger became law in 1 987, it stayed 

on until 2004 and our effective tax rate was around 7.2%. 
Again, the Exploration Phase is over. We now enter the "Development Phase" which wil l  be a period 

in our State' s  history lasting several decades, and despite the current price situation, long term the 

Development Phase if managed well, will ensure prosperity for our State for decades beyond. 



The Development Phase brings new challenges, it will require new ideas, and consistent long term strategies 

to manage this world class play. What is the Development Phase, what are some of the challenges and 

solutions, and what does this all mean to the State of North Dakota? 

The Development Phase: 

• Leases Held 

• Multi well pad drilling 

• Potentially thousands more wells and production over the course of 30 or more years. 

• Continued technological advancements allowing for even greater increased recovery of oil. 

• Continued technological advancements in health, safety and protection of our environment. 

• Infrastructure expansion, pipelines, processing facilities , housing, roads, schools, water, etc. 

The Challenges our industry faces: 

• Capital intensive. We can't meet the infrastructure expansions or the necessary technological 

advancements without continued and massive amounts of capital investment. 

• Competition with other plays and states with lower taxes over the same capital investment 

• Regulatory costs 

• Weather 

• High transportation costs 

• High taxes and unpredictable tax rates 

• Long term oil prices 

What does Industry need for the Development Phase? 

Neither the State or industry can control or predict prices long term, but what the State can provide industry 

is a long term consistent regulatory policy and a uniform, stable and competitive tax policy to ensure the 

necessary long term capital investment required for this next phase. A stable more competitive tax rate 

encourages, not discourages, the needed long term capital investment in North Dakota. And, in return, the 

State also benefits with more consistent revenues and less uncertainty. 



What does the Development Phase mean for the State of North Dakota? 

• A once unimaginable thriving state where young people return home, relocate here, or start a business 

because we have jobs and a surging economy. 

• More jobs than we can fil l  with rising wages and incomes. 

• Schools that need to expand rather than close and consolidate. 

• State revenue col lections from oil  that nearly double what our state budget was just a decade ago. 

• While other states raise taxes ND reduces taxes, funds education, roads, and is looking to incentivize 

a chemical industry that diversifies ·our economy but that won't happen unless investors are confident 

the Bakken wil l  continue to grow production. 

• Means that we need to continue to work on the challenges of a growing population, research and 

invest in new technologies to tackle oil  shale issues, and think BIG - World Class ! 

• North Dakota is looked at as a place to be, where to come to invest, and has become a shining star in 

a struggling world economy. 

W itt 
How does a State .. all this expect a 40 bill ion dol lar industry to operate without knowing what it's tax rate 

wil l  be in 40 days - it could vary 1 30% on a few pennies at market close any day in May. The Bakken is big 

business, requiring massive investment and planning - it's time to end this tax chaos and allow industry to 

focus on long-term strategies for developing the Bakken while providing the state revenue certainty. 

Thank you, we urge you to adopt our amendments and pass this bill .  I would be happy to answer any 

questions. 
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O I L  TAXE S  I N  T H E  1 4  MAJOR O I L  PRODUCI N G  STATES 

State 
Alaska 

California O l  
Colorado <2> 
Kansas <3l 
Louisiana 

Michigan 

Mississippi 

Montana <4> 
New Mexico 

NORTH DAKOTN5> 

Oklahoma 

South Dakota 

Texas <6l 

Utah <6H1> 

Wyoming 

Severance or 
Gross Production 

Tax Rate 
0% to 25 .0% 

2% to 5% 

4.33% 

3. 1 25% to 1 2 .5% 

4% to 6.6% 

0% to 6.0% 

.5% to 1 4.8% 

3.75% 

5.0%, 7.0%, 9.0%, 
or 1 1 .5% 

1 %  to 7.0% 

4.5% 

0%, 3 .0% or 5.0% 

2% to 6.0% 

SEPTEM BER 20 1 4  

Local 
Ad Valorem Taxes Misc. 

Effective Rate Taxes 
* .0 1 % - .04% 

1 . 1 39% 

4% to 1 0% 0. 1 4% 

3 .67% 

* 
* 
* 

2.339% 
3 .39% 

* 

* 0.9 of 1 %  

.24% 

4% to 5% Yi cent 
per bbl. 

4% to 5% 0.2% 

6.7% 

* Severance (or gross production) tax is in lieu of local property taxes on the oil. 

Annual Production 
(Million Barrels) 

Total Taxes 2006 2008 2010 
0% - 25.0% 270.5 249.9 2 1 9.5 

1 %  223.4 2 1 4.5 20 1 .4 

7. 1 4% 23.4 24. 1  32.6 

8% 35.7 39.6 40.5 

3 . 1 25% - 1 2.5% 73.9 73 67.4 

6.6% 5. 1 6.2 6.8 

0% - 6.0% 1 7.4 22. 1  23.6 

.5% - 1 4.8% 36.3 3 1 .5 25.3 

9.479% 59.8 59.4 65.4 

5% - 1 1 .5% 39.9 62.8 1 1 3 . 1  

! % - 7.095% 62.8 64. l 67.7 

4.74% 1 .4 1 . 7 1 .6 

4.0% - 1 0.0% plus 397.2 398 429.3 
Y2 cent per bbl. 

0% - 5% + 1 7.9 22 24.7 
ad valorem 

(4%-5%) 

8.7% - 1 2.7% 52.9 52.9 53.3 

( I )  California's statutory tax rate is l % but is subject to increases based on needs to retire voter approved credit. 

2012 

93.6 

(2) Colorado has a 2% to.5% severance tax but allows 87.5% of local property taxes as a credit against the tax. Since property taxes average about 
7% this creilit generally eliminates the severance tax liability. 

(3) Kansas has an 8.0% severance tax but allows a creilit of up to 3.67% for property taxes paid on oil properties. The severance tax is based on 

value. Actual rate paid after credit is 4.33%. 

(4) Montana's tax rates vary based on the type of well, when the well was drilled, and whether the taxpayer has a working or non-working interest. 

A portion of the production tax is allocated back to local governments in lieu of property taxes. 

(5) North Dakota, has a gross production tax rate of 5% with no exemptions and oil extraction tax rates of 0.0%, 2.0%, 4.0% and 6.5%. 

(6) Texas and Utah have property taxes on oil properties but it was not possible for local authorities to estimate an effective percentage rate. 

(7) Utah's severance tax is 3% on the first $ 1 3  per barrel and 5% on any amount over $ 1 3  per barrel. 

SOURCE: Survey of states conducted by North Dakota Office of State Tax Co=issioner, Oil and Gas Section, September 2 0 1 2. 

Interstate Oil and Gas Compact Commission and the Dept. of Energy. 



Proposed Amendments to H B  1476 

Page 5,  l i n e  13, ove rstr ike "a nd one-ha lf" 

Page 12, l i n e  9, re move ", if on that d ate" 

Page 12, rem ove l i nes 10 a n d  1 1  

Page 12, l i n e  12, rem ove "u n d e r  su bsection 3 of section 57-5 1-03 wou ld  become 

effective" 

Ren u m ber a ccord i ngly 
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Estimated Revenue Impact if 2011 HB1420 Had Been Passed -Ji= { 

Production 

From Wells Production Revenue From Revenue From 

Completed From Wells Revenue From New New 

Prior to July Completed Actual Eff OET Old Production Production 

Production 2011 After July 2011 Ave. Price Act Eff Rate Rate Production (Full Rate) (HB1420 Rate) Change 

Jun-11 11,573,888 

Jul -11 13,178,751 11,226,671 1,952,080 $91. 79 10.41% 5.41% $57,474,064 $9,693,713 $6,110,085 ($3,583,628) 

Aug-11 13,834,810 10,879,455 2,955,355 $80.71 10.48% 5.48% $51,190,242 $13,071,265 $8,300,730 ($4,770,534) 

Sep-11 13,907,190 10,532,238 3,374,952 $81.38 10.47% 5.47% $51,521,000 $15,023,551 $9,530,479 ($5,493,072) 

Oct-11 15,123,451 10,185,021 4,938,430 $81.39 10.55% 5.55% $52,280,930 $22,307,602 $14,268,827 ($8,038, 776) 

Nov-11 15,311,721 9,837,805 5,473,916 $90.36 10.55% 5.55% $58,042,817 $27,451,580 $17,559,119 ($9,892,461) 

Dec-11 16,587,107 9,490,588 7,096,519 $87.98 10.59% 5.59% $56,921,330 $34,901,262 $22,414,227 ($12,487,035) 

Jan-12 16,967,112 9,143,372 7,823,740 $88.77 10.65% 5.65% $58,048,893 $39,240,009 $25,349, 741 ($13,890,269) 

Feb-12 16,221,722 8,796,155 7,425,567 $89.05 10.59% 5.59% $57,613,599 $36,963,693 $23, 738, 758 ($13,224,935) 

Mar-12 17,994,854 8,448,938 9,545,916 $84.73 10.61% 5.61% $55,014, 775 $45,375,107 $29,198,598 ($16, 176,509) 

Apr-12 18,348,827 8,101,722 10,247,105 $83.92 10.67% 5.67% $55,071,615 $48, 758,433 $31,559,691 ($17,198,742) 

May-12 19,972,541 7,754,505 12,218,036 $81.76 10.67% 5.67% $53,654,137 $56,640,274 $36,661,341 ($19,978,933) 

Jun-12 19,933,927 7,407,288 12,526,639 $73.21 10.72% 5.72% $48,466,952 $52,456, 702 $34,115,198 ($18,341,504) 

Jul -12 20,976,779 7,060,072 13,916,707 $73.61 10.74% 5.74% $48,902,154 $58,801,067 $38,312,890 ($20,488,177) 

Aug-12 21,755,342 6,712,855 15,042,487 $82.76 10.74% 5.74% $54,980,875 $71,458,191 $46,559,867 ($24,898,324) 

Sep-12 21,880,228 6,365,638 15,514,590 $88.02 10.79% 5.79% $58,984,677 $79,067,903 $51, 756,019 ($27,311,884) 

Oct-12 23,233,422 6,018,422 17,215,000 $86.90 10.78% 5.78% $58,133,556 $86,467,848 $56,548,177 ($29,919,670) 

Nov-12 22,051,864 5,671,205 16,380,659 $83.92 10.79% 5.79% $56,237,151 $79,593,097 $52,099, 799 ($27,493,298) 

Dec-12 23,835,431 5,323,988 18,511,443 $82.96 10.82% 5.82% $55,881,879 $89,378,280 $58,664,094 ($30, 714,185) 

Jan-13 22,911,661 4,976,772 17,934,889 $91.04 10.81% 5.81% $61,219,201 $94,865,233 $62,209,387 ($32,655,846) 

Feb-13 21,877,978 4,629,555 17,248,423 $89.77 10.83% 5.83% $60,572,996 $90,271,190 $59,303,372 ($30,967,818) 

r-13 24,383,486 4,282,339 20,101,147 $88.61 10.81% 5.81% $59,585,165 $103,485,551 $67,862,298 ($35,623,253) 

r-13 23,814,955 3,935,122 19,879,833 $87.90 10.80% 5.80% $59,005,996 $101,351,365 $66,402,618 ($34,948,747) 

ay-13 25,171,516 3,587,905 21,583,611 $87.91 10.82% 5.82% $59,216,201 $110,429,566 $72,481,261 ($37,948,304) 

Jun-13 24,702,668 3,240,689 21,461,979 $86.20 10.83% 5.83% $58,164,111 $107,856,319 $70,855,866 ($37,000,452) 

Jul-13 27,099,595 2,893,472 24,206,123 $96.76 10.82% 5.82% $65,177,563 $136,315,136 $89,471,446 ($46,843,689) 

Aug-13 28,296,240 2,546,255 25,749,985 $97.18 10.86% 5.86% $65,910,376 $146,639,674 $96,592,003 ($50,047,670) 

Sep-13 28,017,535 2,199,039 25,818,496 $85.51 10.90% 5.90% $58,391,307 $130,256,637 $86,101,845 ($44, 154, 792) 

Oct-13 29,309,187 1,851,822 27,457,365 $88.27 10.95% 5.95% $60, 786,812 $144,207,865 $95, 734,633 ($48,473,232) 

Nov-13 29,293,592 1,504,605 27,788,987 $79.27 10.99% 5.99% $54,955,980 $131,949,695 $87,893,035 ($44,056,659) 

Dec-13 28,620,049 1,157,389 27,462,660 $82.65 11.01% 6.01% $57,490,569 $136,414,311 $91,018,534 ($45,395, 777) 

Jan-14 29,053,210 810,172 28,243,038 $80.85 11.01% 6.01% $56,238,506 $137,235,322 $91,566,329 ($45,668,992) 

Feb-14 26,692,529 462,956 26,229,573 $91.34 11.01% 6.01% $63,535,252 $143,988,135 $96,071,951 ($47,916,185) 

Mar-14 30,280,750 115,739 30,165,011 $90.29 11.03% 6.03% $63,013,883 $164,233,011 $109, 761,034 ($54,471,977) 

Apr-14 30,127,641 30,127,641 $89.89 11.05% 6.05% $62,942, 796 $163,844,506 $109,681,033 ($54,163,473) 

May-14 32,259,365 32,259,365 $90.83 11.07% 6.07% $63,811,254 $177,858,170 $119,255,808 ($58,602,362) 

Jun-14 32,787,662 32,787,662 $92.94 11.08% 6.08% $65,401,171 $185,274,947 $124,329,240 ($60,945, 706) 

Jul-14 34,550,160 34,550,160 $90.02 11.09% 6.09% $63,450,577 $189,411,509 $127,207,401 ($62,204,108) 

Aug-14 35,118,088 35,118,088 $83.18 11.10% 6.10% $58, 725,676 $178,188,476 $119,766,025 ($58,422,451) 

Sep-14 35,589,844 35,589,844 $80.31 11.12% 6.12% $56,885,335 $174,923,087 $117,758,679 ($57,164,407) 

Oct-14 36,691,154 36,691,154 $71.97 11.13% 6.13% $51,061,228 $161,872,602 $109,059,355 ($52,813,247) 

Nov-14 35,647,736 35,647,736 $64.36 11.14% 6.14% $45, 736,580 $140,869,301 $94,983,535 ($45,885, 766) 

Dec-14 38,047,672 38,047,672 $47.00 11.17% 6.17% $33,563,118 $110,334,444 $74,569,632 ($35, 764,812) 

Jan-15 36,926,820 36,926,820 $35.99 11.15% 6.15% $25,617,470 $81, 733,269 $55,153,344 ($26,579,925) 

Feb-15 32,958,450 32,958,450 $39 .52 11.13% 6.13% $28,038,623 $79,844,350 $53, 793,991 ($26,050,359) 

Total ($1,478,671,948) 
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Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1420 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/19/2011 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
tid:~ /. d ddi !. un mg eves an aooropoat10ns ant1c1pate un er current aw. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues ($371,000,000) 

Expenditures 
Appropriations 

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the aoorooriate oolitica/ subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

HB 1420 reduces the oil extraction tax rate on new wells from 6.5% to 4.5%. 

School 
Districts 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscal impact Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 2 of HB 1420 reduces the oil extraction tax rate on new wells from 6.5% to 4.5%. This rate reduction is 
expected to reduce legacy fund, permanent oil tax trust fund, education funds, and water resources trust fund 
revenues by an estimated $371 million in the 2011-13 biennium. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck Office of Tax Commissioner 

Phone Number: 328-3402 01/28/2011 



•'.', 

1 1 .061 7 .01 000 

Sixty-second 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Representatives S. Meyer, Onstad 

HOUSE BILL NO. 1 420 

µ /3 I L/ 7{.p 
L/- 2..D - I S­

#- 3 
l of \ l  

1 A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 57-51 . 1 -0 1 , 57-5 1 . 1 -02, 57-51 . 1 -03, and 

2 57-51 . 1 -03.1  of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to oil extraction tax rates and 

3 exemptions; and to provide an effective date. 

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY O F  NORTH DAKOTA :  

5 SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 57-51 . 1 -0 1  of the North Dakota Century Code is 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 57-51 . 1 -01 . Defin itions for oi l  extraction tax. 

8 For the purposes of the oil extraction tax law, the fol lowing words and terms shall have the 

9 meaning ascribed to them in this section: 

1 0  1 .  "Average daily production" of a well means the qual ified maximum total production of 

1 1  oil from the well during a calendar month period divided by the number of calendar 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

days in that period, and "qualified maximum total production" of a well means that the 

well must have been maintained at the maximum efficient rate of production as 

defined and determined by rule adopted by the industrial commission in furtherance of 

its authority under chapter 38-08. 

1 6  2. "Average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the monthly average of the daily closing 

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate cushing crude oil, as those prices appear 

in the V'lall Street Journal, midv.·est edition, minus two dollars and fifty cents. V'lhen 
computing the monthly average price, the most recent previous daily closing price 

must be considered the daily closing priee for the days on which the marl<et is closed. 

21  &.- "Horizontal reentry well" means a 'Nell that 'Nas not initially drilled and completed as a 

22 

23 

horizontal 'Nell, including any 'Nell initially plugged and abandoned as a dry hole, which 

is reentered and rccomplctcd as a horizontal well. 
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1 4:- "Horizontal well" means a 'Nell 1,vith a horizontal displacement of the well bore drilled at 

2 

3 

an angle of at least eighty degrees within the productive formation of at least three 

hundred feet [91.44 meters]. 
4 &:- "Oil" means petroleum, crude oil , mineral oil, casinghead gasoline, and al l liquid 

5 

6 

hydrocarbons that are recovered from gas on the lease incidental to the production of 

the gas. 

7 6:-3. "Property" means the right which arises from a lease or fee interest, as a whole or any 

8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

designated portion thereof, to produce oil . A producer shall treat as a separate 

property each separate and distinct producing reservoir subject to the same right to 

produce crude oil; provided, that such reservoir is recognized by the industrial 

commission as a producing formation that is separate and distinct from, and not in 

communication with, any other producing formation. 

1 3  +.-4. "Qualifying secondary recovery project" means a project employing water flooding . To 

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

2 2  

be eligible for the tax reduction provided under section 57-5 1 . 1 -02, a secondary 

recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the industrial commission and the 

project operator must have achieved for six consecutive months an average 

production level of at least twenty-five percent above the level that would have been 

recovered under normal recovery operations. To be eligible for the tax exemption 

provided under section 57-5 1 . 1 -03 and subsequent thereto the rate reduction provided 

under section 57-5 1 . 1 -02, a secondary recovery project must be certified as qualifying 

by the industrial commission and the project operator must have obtained incremental 

production as defined in subsection 5� of section 57-5 1 . 1 -03. 

23 &-5. "Qualifying tertiary recovery project" means a project for enhancing recovery of oil 

24 

25  

26 

27  

28  

2 9  

30 

3 1  

which meets the requirements of section 4993(c), Internal Revenue Code of 1 954, as 

amended through December 31 , 1 986, and includes the following methods for 

recovery: 

a. Miscible fluid displacement. 

b. Steam drive injection. 

c. Microemulsion. 

d. In situ combustion. 

e. Polymer augmented water flooding. 
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f. Cyclic steam injection . 

g. Alkaline flooding. 

h .  Carbonated water flooding. 

i. Immiscible carbon dioxide displacement. 

j. New tertiary recovery methods certified by the industrial commission. 

3 af 1 7  

It does not include water flooding, unless the water flooding is used as an element of 

one of the qualifying tertiary recovery techniques described in this subsection, or 

immiscible natural gas injection. To be eligible for the tax reduction provided under 

section 57-51 . 1 -02, a tertiary recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the 

industrial commission, the project operator must continue to operate the unit as a 

qualifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator must have achieved for at 

least one month a production level of at least fifteen percent above the level that would 

have been recovered under normal recovery operations. To be eligible for the tax 

exemption provided under section 57-51 . 1 -03 and subsequent thereto the rate 

reduction provided under section 57-51 . 1 -02, a tertiary recovery project must be 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission, the project operator must continue 

to operate the unit as a qualifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator 

must have obtained incremental production as defined in subsection 6;1 of section 

57-5 1 . 1 -03. 

20 9:-6. "Royalty owner" means an owner of what is commonly known as the royalty interest 

21  

22 

and shall not include the owner of any overriding royalty or other payment carved out 

of the working interest. 

23 4{}.-7. "Stripper well property" means a "property" whose average daily production of oi l ,  

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

excluding condensate recovered in nonassociated production, per well did not exceed 

ten barrels per day for wells of a depth of six thousand feet [1 828.80 meters] or less, 

fifteen barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than six thousand feet [1 828.80 

meters] but not more than ten thousand feet [3048 meters] , and thirty barrels per day 

for wells of a depth of more than ten thousand feet [3048 meters] during any 

preceding consecutive twelve-month period. Wells which did not actually yield or 

produce oil during the qualifying twelve-month period, including disposal wells, dry 
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wells, spent wells, and shut-in wells, are not production wells for the purpose of 

determining whether the stripper well property exemption applies. 

3 -14-: "Trigger price" means thirty five dollars and fifty cents, as indexed for inflation. By 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

December thirty first of each year, the tax commissioner shall compute an indexed 

trigger price by applying to the current trigger price the rate of change of the producer 

price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the United 

States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics, for the ti.\'Clve months ending 

June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the trigger 

price for the following calendar year. 

10 ~ "Two year inactive ~veil" means any well certified by the industrial commission that did 

11 not produce oil in more than one month in any consecutive twenty four month period 

12 before being recompleted or other#ise returned to production after July 31, 1995. A 

13 well that has never produced oil, a dry hole, and a plugged and abandoned well are 

14 eligible for status as a hvo year inactive '#ell. 

15 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

16 amended and reenacted as follows: 

17 57-51.1-02. Imposition of oil extraction tax. 

18 There is hereby imposed an excise tax, to be known as the "oil extraction tax", upon the 

19 activity in this state of extracting oil from the earth, and every owner, including any royalty 

20 owner, of any part of the oil extracted is deemed for the purposes of this chapter to be engaged 

21 in the activity of extracting that oil. 

22 The rate of tax is six and one-half percent of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted, 

23 except that the rate of tax is four and one-half percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 

24 extracted in the following situations: 

25 1. For oil produced from new wells drilled and completed after April 27, 1987, commonly 

26 

27 

referred to as new '#ells, and not other.vise exempt under section 57 51.1 03June 30, 

2011; 

28 2. For oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project that was certified as 

29 

30 

qualifying by the industrial commission before July 1, 1991 not otherwise exempt under 

section 57-51.1-03; 
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1 3. For oil that does not qualify as incremental oil but is produced from a secondary or 

2 

3 

tertiary recovery project that is certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after 

June 30, 1991 ; or 

4 4. For incremental oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project tftaHs-

5 

6 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after June 30, 1991, and which 

production is not otherwise exempt under section 57-51.1-03Tef_,_ 

7 &: For oil produced from a well that receives an exemption pursuant to subsection 4 of 

8 section 57 51.1 03 after June 30, 1993, and 1Nhich production is not otheRivise exempt 

9 under section 57 51 .1 03. 

10 However, if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in 

11 any consecutive five month period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all taxable wells is 

12 six and one half percent of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted until the average price 

13 of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 

14 five month period, in which case the rate of tax reverts to four percent of the gross value at the 

15 well of the oil extracted for any wells subject to a reduced rate under subsections 1 through 5. 

16 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51 .1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

17 amended and reenacted as follows: 

18 57-51.1-03. (Effective through June 30, 2012) Exemptions from oil extraction tax. 

19 The following activities are specifically exempted from the oil extraction tax: 

20 1. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil that is exempt from the gross 

21 production tax imposed by chapter 57-51. 

22 2. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil from a stripper well property. 

23 3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical 1.vell, the initial production of oil from the 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

•.vell is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of fifteen 

months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and completed as a horizontal 

well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of hventy four 

months. Oil recovered during testing prior to 1.vell completion is exempt from the oil 

extraction tax. The exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, after the 
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trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less 

than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period. 

3 4: The production of oil from a qualifying ·uell that 'Nas ·.vorlEed over is exempt from any 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of twelve months, beginning with the 

first day of the third calendar month after the completion of the •.vork over project. The 

exemption provided by this subsection is only effective if the 'Nell operator establishes 

to the satisfaction of the industrial commission upon completion of the project that the 

cost of the project exceeded sixty five thousand dollars or production is increased at 

least fifty percent during the first t>.vo months after completion of the project. A 

qualifying well under this subsection is a •.vell with an average daily production of no 

more than fifty barrels of oil during the latest six calendar months of continuous 

production. A •.vork over project under this subsection means the continuous 

employment of a worlE over rig, including recompletions and reentries. The exemption 

provided by this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of 

crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any consecutive fr.te month 

period. However, the exemption is reins.tated if, after the trigger provision becomes 

effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period. 

19 &: a. The incremental production from a secondary recovery project which has been 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission after July 1, 1991, is 

exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of five years from 

the date the incremental production begins. 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does not use 

carbon dioxide and ·.vhich has been certified as a qualified project by the 

industrial commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 

period of ten years from the date the incremental production begins. Incremental 

production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide and 'Nhich 

has been certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is exempt 

from any taxes imposed under this chapter from the date the incremental 

production begins. 
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c. For purposes of this subsection, incremental production is defined in the following 

manner: 

(1 ) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a un it where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the d ifference between the total 

amount of oil produced from the unit during the secondary recovery project 

and the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil which would have 

been produced from the unit if the secondary recovery project had not been 

commenced . The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 

(2) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a un it where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

prior to July 1 ,  1 99 1 ,  and where the industrial commission cannot establish 

an accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 

d ifference between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during a 

new secondary recovery project and the amount of production which would 

be equivalent to the average monthly production from the unit during the 

most recent twelve months of normal production reduced by a production 

decl ine rate of ten percent for each year. The industria l  commission shall 

d etermine the average monthly production from the unit d uring the most 

recent twelve months of normal production and must upon request or upon 

its own motion hold a hearing to make this determination. For purposes of 

th is paragraph, when determining the most recent twelve months of normal 

production the industrial commission is not required to use twelve 

consecutive months. I n  addition ,  the production decline rate of ten percent 

must be applied from the last month in the twelve-month period of time. 

(3) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in  subdivision a and 

with respect to a un it where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

before July 1 ,  1 991 , and where the industrial  commission can establish an 
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accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 

difference between the total amount of o i l  produced from the unit during the 

new secondary recovery project and the total amount of oi l  that would have 

been produced from the un it if the new secondary recovery project had not 

been commenced. For purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of o i l  

that would have been produced from the unit i f  the new secondary recovery 

project had not been commenced includes both primary production and 

production that occurred as a result of the secondary recovery project that 

was in existence before Ju ly 1 ,  1 99 1 .  The industrial commission shall 

determine the amount of oi l  that would have been produced from the unit if 

the new secondary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the new secondary recovery project is certified. 

(4) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference between the total 

amount of oil produced from the unit during the tertiary recovery project and 

the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil which would have 

been produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

commenced. The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 

(5) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the d ifference between the total 

amount of oi l  produced during the tertiary recovery project and the amount 

of production which would be equivalent to the average monthly production 

from the unit during the most recent twelve months of normal production 

reduced by a production decline rate of ten percent for each year. The 

industrial commission shall determine the average monthly production from 
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&: 

the unit during the most recent twelve months of normal production and 

must upon request or upon its own motion hold a hearing to make this 

determination . For purposes of this paragraph, when determining the most 

recent twelve months of normal production the industrial commission is not 

required to use twelve consecutive months. I n  addition ,  the production 

decline rate of ten percent must be applied from the last month in the 

twelve-month period of time. 

(6) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project and where the industrial commission can establish an accurate 

production decline curve, incremental production means the difference 

between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during the tertiary 

recovery project and the total amount of oil that would have been produced 

from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced. For 

purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of oil that would have been 

produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

commenced includes both primary production and production that occurred 

as a result of any secondary recovery project. The industrial commission 

shall determine the amount of oil that wou ld have been produced from the 

unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the tertiary recovery project is certified. 

d .  The  industrial commission shall adopt rules relating to  this exemption that must 

include procedures for determining incremental production as defined in 

subdivision c. 

The production of oil from a two year inaetive •.vell, as determined by the industrial 
commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of ten years after 

the date of receipt of the certification. The exemption under this subsection becomes 
ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period. However, the exemption is 

reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 
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io of t1 

of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 

period. 

3 +-: The production of oil from a horizontal reentry well, as determined by the industrial 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of nine months 

after the date the well is completed as a horizontal well. The exemption under this 

subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the 

trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period. However, the 

exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period. 

11 &4. The initial production of oil from a well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

chapter for a period of sixty months if: 

a. The well is located within the boundaries of an Indian reservation; 

b. The well is drilled and completed on lands held in trust by the United States for 

an Indian tribe or individual Indian; or 

c. The well is drilled and completed on lands held by an Indian tribe if the interest is 

in existence on August 1, 1997. 

18 9-:- The first seventy five thousand barrels or the first four million five hundred thousand 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

dollars of gross value at the •.vell, •.vhichever is less, of oil produced during the first 

eighteen months after completion, from a horizontal 1Nell drilled and completed after 

April 30, 2009, is subject to a reduced tax rate of tv«o percent of the gross value at the 

well of the oil extracted under this chapter. A 'n•ell eligible for a reduced tax rate under 

this subsection is eligible for the exemption for horizontal wells under subsection 3, if 

the exemption under subsection 3 is effective during all or part of the first twenty four 

months after completion. The rate reduction under this subsection becomes effective 

on the first day of the month follm,ving a month for which the average price of a barrel 

of crude oil is less than fifty five dollars. The rate reduction under this subsection 

becomes ineffective on the first day of the month follo·..ving a month in •.vhich the 

average price of a barrel of.crude oil exceeds seventy dollars. If the rate reduction 

under this subsection is effective on the date of completion of a well, the rate reduction 

applies to production from that well for up to eighteen months after completion, subject 
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1 to the other limitations of this subsection. If the rate reduction under this subsection is 

2 ineffective on the date of completion of a well , the rate reduction under this subsection 

3 does not apply to production from that well at any time. 

4 (Effective after June 30, 2012) Exemptions from oil extraction tax. The following 

5 activities arc specifically exempted from the oil extraction tax: 

6 + The activity of extracting from the earth any oil that is exempt from the gross 

7 production tax imposed by chapter 57 51 . 

8 2-:- The activity of extracting from the earth any oil from a stripper well property. 

9 & For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of oil from the 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of fifteen 

months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and completed as a horizontal 

·.vcll is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of tv1enty four 

months. Oil recovered during testing prior to well completion is exempt from the oil 

extraction tax. The exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, after the 

trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less 

than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period. 

19 4-: The production of oil from a qualifying well that was worked over is exempt from any 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of tvvelve months, beginning with the 

first day of the third calendar month after the completion of the work over project. The 

exemption provided by this subsection is only effective if the 'v'lell operator establishes 

to the satisfaction of the industrial commission upon completion of the project that the 

cost of the project exceeded sixty five thousand dollars or production is increased at 

least fifty percent during the first r.vo months after completion of the project. A 

qualifying well under this subsection is a •.vell with an average daily production of no 

more than fifty barrels of oil during the latest six calendar months of continuous 

production. A work over project under this subsection means the continuous 

employment of a work over rig, including recompletions and reentries. The exemption 

provided by this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of 

crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 
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period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes 

effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period. 

The incremental production from a secondary recovery project which has been 

certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission after July 1, 1991, is 

exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of five years from 

the date the incremental production begins. 

fr. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that docs not use 

carbon dioxide and •.vhich has been certified as a qualified project by the 

industrial commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 

period of ten years from the date the incremental production begins. Incremental 

production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide and which 

has been certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is exempt 

from any taxes imposed under this chapter from the date the incremental 

production begins. 

For purposes of this subsection, incremental production is defined in the following 

manner: 

f17 . For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference between the total 

amount of oil produced from the unit during the secondary recovery project 

and the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil •.vhich would have 

been produced from the unit if the secondary recovery project had not been 

commenced. The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 

~ For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

•.vith respect to a unit ·11hcre a secondary recovery project ·11as in existence 

prior to July 1, 1991, and ·.vhcrc the industrial commission cannot establish 

an accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 
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difference behveen the total amount of oil produced from the unit during a 

ne•.v secondary recovery project and the amount of production which would 

be equivalent to the average monthly production from the unit during the 

most recent twelve months of normal production reduced by a production 

decline rate of ten percent for each year. The industrial commission shall 

determine the average monthly production from the unit during the most 

recent twelve months of normal production and must upon request or upon 

its own motion hold a hearing to make this determination. For purposes of 

this paragraph, when determining the most recent t·.velve months of normal 

production the industrial commission is not required to use twelve 

consecutive months. In addition, the production decline rate often percent 

must be applied from the last month in the twelve month period of time. 

f37 For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

•.vith respect to a unit where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

before July 1, 1991, and where the industrial commission can establish an 

accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 

difference between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during the 

new secondary recovery project and the total amount of oil that would have 

been produced from the unit if the new secondary recovery project had not 

been commenced. For purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of oil 

that would have been produced from the unit if the nevi secondary recovery 

project had not been commenced includes both primary production and 

production that occurred as a result of the secondary recovery project that 

was in existence before July 1, 1991. The industrial commission shall 

determine the amount of oil that would have been produced from the unit if 

the ne·.v secondary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the new secondary recovery project is certified. 

t47 For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference behveen the total 
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amount of oil produced from the unit during the tertiary recovery project and 

the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil which ;,vould have 

been produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

commenced. The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner ·.vhich conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 

f§7 For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

;,vith respect to a unit where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference bet>.veen the total 

amount of oil produced during the tertiary recovery project and the amount 

of production which would be equivalent to the average monthly production 

from the unit during the most recent twelve months of normal production 

reduced by a production decline rate of ten percent for each year. The 

industrial commission shall determine the average monthly production from 

the unit during the most recent t>.velve months of normal production and 

must upon request or upon its own motion hold a hearing to mal<e this 

determination. For purposes of this paragraph, when determining the most 

recent t>.velve months of normal production the industrial commission is not 

required to use tv1clvc consecutive months. In addition, the production 

decline rate of ten percent must be applied from the last month in the 

twelve month period of time. 

t6} For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit •.vhere there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project and where the industrial commission can establish an accurate 

production decline curve, incremental production means the difference 

betvroen the total amount of oil produced from the unit during the tertiary 

recovery project and the total amount of oil that would have been produced 

from the unit ifthe tertiary recovery project had not been commenced. For 

purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of oil that ·.vould have been 

produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 
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commenced includes both primary production and production that occurred 

as a result of any secondary recovery project. The industrial commission 

shall determine the amount of oil that would have been produced from the 

unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the tertiary recovery project is certified. 

fr.. The industrial commission shall adopt rules relating to this exemption that must 

include procedures for determining incremental production as defined in 

subdivision c. 

&.- The production of oil from a t\vo year inactive well, as determined by the industrial 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of ten years after 

the date of receipt of the certification. The exemption under this subsection becomes 

ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period. However, the exemption is 

reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 

of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 

period. 

18 +: The production of oil from a horizontal reentry well, as determined by the industrial 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of nine months 

after the date the 'Nell is completed as a horizontal well. The exemption under this 

subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the 

trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period. However, the 

exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any 

25 consecutive five month period. 

26 & The initial production of oil from a 'Nell is exempt from any taxes imposed under this 

27 chapter for a period of sixty months if: 

28 a; The well is located within the boundaries of an Indian reservation' I 

29 &. The v1cll is drilled and completed on lands held in trust by the United States for 

30 an Indian tribe or individual Indian; or 
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e-: The well is drilled and completed on lands held by an Indian tribe if the interest is 

in existence on August 1, 1997. 

3 &: The first seventy five thousand barrels of oil produced during the first eighteen months 

4 after completion, from a horizontal 'Nell drilled and completed in the Bakken formation 

5 after June 30, 2007, and before July 1, 2008, is subject to a reduced tax rate of t>No 

6 percent of the gross value at the 'Nell of the oil extracted under this chapter. A well 

7 eligible for a reduced tax rate under this subsection is eligible for the exemption for 

8 horizontal ·wells under subsection 3, if the exemption under subsection 3 is effective 

9 during all or part of the first t>.venty four months after completion. 

10 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51.1-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

11 amended and reenacted as follows: 

12 57-51.1-03.1. Stripper well, new well, work-over, and secondary or tertiary project 

13 certification for tax exemption or rate reduction - Filing requirement. 

14 To receive the benefits of a tax exemption or tax rate reduction, a certification of qualifying 

15 well status prepared by the industrial commission must be submitted to the tax commissioner as 

16 follows: 

17 1. To receive, from the first day of eligibility, a tax exemption on production from a 

18 

19 

20 

stripper well property under subsection 2 of section 57-51.1-03, the industrial 

commission's certification must be submitted to the tax commissioner within eighteen 

months after the end of the stripper well property's qualification period. 

21 2. To receive, from the first day of eligibility, a tax exemption under subsection 3 of 

22 

23 

24 

section 57 51 .1 03 and a rate reduction on production from a new well under section 

57-51.1-02, the industrial commission's certification must be submitted to the tax 

commissioner within eighteen months after a new well is completed. 

25 3. To receive, from the first day of eligibility, a tax exemption under subsection 4 of 

26 

27 

28 

section 57 51.1 03 and a rate reduction for a 'Nork over well under section 57 51.1 02, 

the industrial commission's certification must be submitted to the tax commissioner 

within eighteen months after the ·.vork over project is completed. 

29 4:- To receive, from the first day of eligibility, a tax exemption under subsection 5~ of 

30 section 57-51 .1-03 and a tax rate reduction under section 57-51 .1-02 on production 
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from a secondary or tertiary recovery project, the industrial commission's certification 

must be submitted to the tax commissioner within the following time periods: 

a. For a tax exemption, within eighteen months after the month in which the first 

incremental oil was produced. 

b. For a tax rate reduction, within eighteen months after the end of the period 

qualifying the project for the rate reduction. 

7 ~ To receive, from the first day of eligibility, a tax exemption or the reduction on 

8 

9 

10 

production for ·.vhich any other tax exemption or rate reduction may apply, the 

industrial commission's certification must be submitted to the tax commissioner within 

eighteen months of the completion, recompletion, or other qualifying date. 

11 &.- To receive, from the first day of eligibility, a tax exemption under subsection 6 of 

12 section 57 51 .1 03 on production from a tvvo year inactive well, the industrial 

13 commission's certification must be submitted to the tax commissioner •within eighteen 

14 months after the end of the tvvo year inactive ·.veil's qualification period. 

15 If the industrial commission's certification is not submitted to the tax commissioner within the 

16 eighteen-month period provided in this section, then the exemption or rate reduction does not 

17 apply for the production periods in which the certification is not on file with the tax 

18 commissioner. When the industrial commission's certification is submitted to the tax 

19 commissioner after the eighteen-month period, the tax exemption or rate reduction applies to 

20 prospective production periods only and the exemption or rate reduction is effective the first day 

21 of the month in which the certification is received by the tax commissioner. 

22 SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act is effective for taxable events occurring after 

23 June 30, 2011. 
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Comparison of Full Biennium Oil Extraction Tax {OET) Revenue 

with Big Trigger NOT In Effect for 24 Months or HR1476 Flat Rate In Effect for 24 

OET Revenue OET Revenue 

With HB1476 Flat Rate With Trigger Off 

For Full Biennium For Full Biennium 
(@4.2% Eff. Rate) (@6.1% Eff. Rate) 

WTI Price $60.00 $60.00 

Less Estimated 15% Discount ($9.00) ($9.00) 

ND Sweet Posted Price $51 .00 $51.00 

Total Production (Barrels) 803,000,000 803,000,000 

Average BOPD 1, 100,000 1,100,000 

Total Revenue From Current Production 1,720,026,000 2,498, 133,000 
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Comparison of Full Biennium Oil Extraction Tax {OET) Revenue 

with Big Trigger In Effect for 24 Months or HR1476 Flat Rate In Effect for 24 M1 

OET Revenue OET Revenue 
With HB1476 Flat Rate With Trigger On 

For Full Biennium For Full Biennium 
(@4.2% Eff. Rate) (@1% Eff. Rate) 

WTI Price $55.00 $55.00 

Less Estimated 15% Discount ($8.25) ($8.25) 

ND Sweet Posted Price $46.75 $46.75 

Total Production (Barrels) 803,000,000 803,000,000 

Average BOPD 1, 100,000 1, 100,000 

Total Revenue From Current Production 1,576,690,500 375,402,500 
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PROPOSED RESTRUCTURING OF OIL EXTRACTION TAX Jt--~ 

This memorandum provides information on the restructuring of oil extraction tax rates and exemptions that would 
occur if bill draft [15.1024.04000] is approved by the 2015 Legislative Assembly. If approved, oil extraction tax rates 
and exemptions would be as follows: 

• Oil extraction tax rate: 
The rate is equal to 4.5 percent on all oil extracted, subject to limited rate reductions and exemptions. 

• Production exempt from the oil extraction tax includes: 
Production that is exempt from the gross production tax imposed by North Dakota Century Code 
Chapter 57-51. 
Production from stripper well property or an individual stripper well. 
Incremental production from a secondary recovery project for five years from the date incremental 
production begins. 
Incremental production from a tertiary recovery project for 10 years from the date incremental 
production begins if the recovery project does not use carbon dioxide or indefinitely if the project does 
use carbon dioxide. 

• Production subject to a reduced oil extraction tax rate includes: 
Production from wells drilled and completed outside the Bakken and Three Forks Formations and 
10 miles or more outside an established field that includes either formation . 

The first 75,000 barrels of oil produced during the first 18 months after completion are subject 
to a reduced tax rate of 2 percent on the gross value at the well of oil extracted . 

Oil extraction tax rate reductions and exemptions that would be eliminated if bill draft [15.1024.04000) is approved 
by the 2015 Legislative Assembly include: 

• Rate reductions that are dependent on the average monthly comparison price of a barrel of oil dropping below 
the trigger price for five consecutive months. These reductions currently bring the 6.5 percent tax rate down to 
4 percent on: 

Oil produced from a vertical well completed after April 27, 1987, following the first 15 months of exempt 
production. 
Oil produced from a horizontal well completed after April 27, 1989, following the first 24 months of 
exempt production. 
Oil produced from a qualifying secondary or tertiary recovery project certified by the industrial 
commission after June 30, 1991 . 
Incremental oil produced from a qualifying secondary or tertiary recovery project, following the initial 
5-year or 10-year exemption period. 

• A rate reduction that is dependent on the average price of a barrel of oil falling below $55 for one month. 
This reduction currently brings the 6.5 percent tax rate down to 2 percent on the first $75,000 barrels, 
or the first $4,500,000 of gross value at the well , whichever is less, of oil produced during the first 
18 months after completion. This rate reduction only applies to horizontal wells drilled and completed 
after April 30, 2009, and before July 1, 2015. 

• Exemptions that are dependent on the average monthly comparison price of a barrel of oil dropping below the 
trigger price for five consecutive months. These exemptions include: 

A 15-month exemption on the initial production from a vertical well . 
A 24-month exemption on the initial production from a horizontal well. 
An exemption on all oil recovered during the testing period prior to well completion. 
A 12-month exemption on production from a qualifying well that was worked over. 
A 10-year exemption on production from a certified two-year inactive well. 
A nine-month exemption on production from a certified horizontal reentry well. 

• A 60-month exemption on the initial production from: 
Wells drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on nontrust lands within the boundaries of an Indian 
reservation or on lands held in trust by the United States for an individual Indian or tribe. 

Wells drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held by an Indian tribe if the interest was in 
existence on August 1, 1997. 

If approved by the 2015 Legislative Assembly, bill draft [15.1024.04000) would become effective on June 1, 2015, if 
the average monthly comparison price of a barrel of oil remained below the trigger price for the months of March 
through May of 2015, or on the first day of the sixth month following a period of five consecutive months where the 
average monthly comparison price of a barrel of oil remains below the trigger price. Once effective, the remaining term 
of any exemptions or rate reductions eliminated by bill draft [15.1024.04000) would expire. 

North Dakota Legislative Council April 2015 
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TESTIMONY OF SENATOR MAC SCHNEIDER (DISTRICT 42 - GRAND FORKS) 

HOUSE BILL 1476 

SENATE FINANCE AND TAX COMMITTEE -APRIL 21, 2015 

As the committee is aware, the House heard and passed this bill in the span of 

about 10 hours yesterday without having considered the long-term effects of the 

proposed 30% cut to the oil extraction tax. 

Working with my colleagues, I have done my best under this improperly shortened 

timeframe to gather best evidence -- from Department of Mineral Resources, the 

Energy Information Administration, and the Chicago Mercantile Exchange Group -

- regarding the potential fiscal impact of this bill. 

Using projections on price and production from these entities, we had Legislative 

Council draft the attached memorandum. A review of this memo demonstrates that 

HB 14 7 6 does not guarantee stability or predictability. Rather, it trades risk for risk 

and threatens to cost our state a stunning amount of revenue in the upcoming 

biennium, the next ten years, and beyond under existing projections . 

Without engaging in puffery, Mr. Chairman, this bill is fairly described as a multi­

billion dollar crap shoot. Instead of gambling with billions in these closing days of 

the session, I urge the committee to focus on reforming the trigger. That is a goal 

that is within our bipartisan reach. 

I would like to take you through what is called "Proposed Scenario No. 2" in the 

attached memo. For the 2015-2017 biennium, this scenario incorporates price 

projections from the Chicago Mercantile Exchange Group. Under these 

projections, the trigger incentive would activate in June of 2015. However, the 

price of oil would exceed the trigger price during June, July, August, September, 

and October of2015, meaning that the trigger incentive would only be in effect for 

the statutory minimum of five months. 

Under current law, the 6.5% extraction tax would go back into place in November 

of 2015. Should HB 1476 become law, on the other hand, the 30% cut to the 



. .  

extraction tax would activate for the remainder of the coming biennium and in 

perpetuity thereafter. ' 

This projected scenario also happens to be a nightmare scenario for North Dakota. 

Relative to current law -- even if nothing is done to reform the trigger -- the people 

of our state would lose over $3 69 mil l ion dol lars during the 2 0 1 5 -20 1 7  biennium 

alone due to the 30% cut to the extraction tax that would go into effect in 

November of this year. 

Of course, the cost of the permanent 30% cut to the extraction tax wi l l  continue 

forever and for al l time. If the production and price projections materialize, North 

Dakota would lose an additional $5 .83 bil l ion from the 20 1 7  biennium through the 

2023 biennium. 

While I recognize projections can and frequently do change, that merely 

underscores the need for caution . Sure, the trigger could be on for 1 1  months as 

Moody's predicted, but the price projections for this biennium and future biennia 

could prove conservative. The bottom l ine is that this bi l l  is extraordinarily risky. 

There is no guarantee it results even in near-term revenue increases. Indeed, if  

these projections play out, the state would experience the worst of both worlds : 

Near-term revenue losses beyond those that would be incurred due to a triggering 

of incentives and a permanent 3 0% loss of extraction tax revenue. 

This bi l l  is a risk the state can't afford to take. I urge the committee to instead focus 

in on the trigger, which we all agree is the heart of the matter. 

### 

1
The emergency cla use on this  bil l  fa i led in the House. While I am sti l l  examining the legal e f fect of that, my 

present understanding is that without an emergency cla use the bill would become effective J uly 1, 2015. If this is 

indeed the case, it a ppears J u ne would operate under the "tr igger," i.e., no extraction tax on newly producing wells 

for that month, a nd the 30% cut to the extraction tax would go into effect on J u ly 1. 
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COMPARISON OF ESTIMATED OIL AND GAS TAX COLLECTIONS - '-·..((., 
PROPOSED SCENARIO CALCULATIONS /JI.> ;~l-\'5 

This memorandum calculates estimated oil and gas tax revenue collections based on various proposed 
scenarios submitted by the requestor. (There is no "official" forecast of future bienniums oil price and 
production levels beyond the 2015-17 biennium. The calculations shown below reflect oil price and 
production levels provided by the requestor based on information from the Department of Mineral 
Resources, the Energy Information Administration, and the Chicago Mercantile Exchange Group.) 

The March 2015 forecast reflects total oil and gas tax collections of $3,398,390,000 and is based on the 
following : 

• The average daily oil production remaining constant at 1.1 million barrels per day; 
• The monthly average price of oil increasing from $41.97 to $52.56 per barrel ; and 
• The "large" trigger being in effect for the first 11 months of the 2015-17 biennium. 

PROPOSED SCENARIO CALCULATIONS -
2015-17 BIENNIUM ESTIMATED COLLECTIONS 

The schedule below provides information on 2015-17 biennium estimated oil and gas tax revenue collections 
based on two proposed scenarios submitted by the requestor. Proposed Scenario No. 1 is based on an oil 
extraction tax rate of 6.5 percent for the entire 2015-17 biennium except during the first five months of the 
biennium when the scenario anticipates the "large" trigger would be in effect. Proposed Scenario No. 2 is based 
on an oil extraction tax rate of 4.5 percent for the entire 2015-17 biennium and assumes the "large" trigger is 
repealed prior to going into effect on June 1, 2015. Both proposed scenarios reflect average daily oil production 
remaining constant at 1.1 million barrels per day and the monthly average price of oil increasing from $48. 72 to 
$54.19 per barrel. 

Proposed Proposed Proposed Scenarios -
Scenario No. 1 Scenario No. 2 Increase (Decrease) 

Gross production tax $2,018,430,000 $2 ,018,430,000 $0 
Oil extraction tax 2, 135,450,000 1,766,1 20,000 (369,330,000) 

Total collections $4, 153,880,000 $3,784,550,000 ($369,330,000) 

PROPOSED SCENARIO CALCULATIONS - 2017-19 BIENNIUM 
THROUGH 2023-25 BIENNIUM ESTIMATED COLLECTIONS 

The schedule below provides information on estimated oil and gas tax revenue collections for the 2017-19 
biennium through the 2023-25 biennium based on two proposed scenarios. Proposed Scenario No. 1 is based on 
an oil extraction tax rate of 6.5 percent for the entire period. Proposed Scenario No. 2 is based on an oil 
extraction tax rate of 4.5 percent for the entire period. Both proposed scenarios reflect the following assumptions 
provided by the requestor based on information from the Department of Mineral Resources, the Energy 
Information Administration and the Chicago Mercantile Exchange Group: 

• The average daily oil production increasing from 1.15 million to 1.81 million barrels per day over this 
four biennium period; 

• The monthly average price of oil increasing from $65 to $78 per barrel over this four biennium period; 
and 

• The "large" trigger provisions and the "small" trigger provisions are not effective. 

Proposed Proposed Proposed Scenarios -
Scenario No. 1 Scenario No. 2 Increase (Decrease) 

Gross production tax $14,729,320,000 $14,729,320,000 $0 
Oil extraction tax 18,718,510,000 12,888, 160,000 (5,830,350,000) 

Total collections $33,44 7 ,830,000 $27 ,617,480,000 ($5,830,350,000) 

NOTE: The amounts reflected in these schedules are calculated based on the requestor's scenarios. 
There are no forecasts available for the 2017-19 through 2023-25 bienniums. The actual amounts 
collected for the 2015-17 biennium and future bienniums may differ significantly from these amounts 
based on actual oil price and oil production. 

North Dakota Legislative Council April 2015 
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House Bill 1 476 

Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
April 2 1 ,  201 5  

Testimony of Mark Fox, Chairman, M HA Nation 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Mark Fox and I am 

the Chairman of the Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara Nation. The MHA Nation sits in 

the heart of the Bakken/Three forks oil play and accounts for approximately 3 0% of 

the total oil production in North Dakota. I testified at length yesterday about the 

MHA Nation' s  sovereign right to tax economic activity within its boundaries. 

Because the threat of dual state and tribal taxation stifled oil production on the 

Reservation, the MHA Nation entered into a tax sharing agreement with North 

Dakota to remove the threat and stimulate production on the Reservation . We 

reluctantly share oil and gas tax revenue on Fort Berthold to avoid the economic 

reality that Reservation production can be dramatically impaired or prohibited by 

double taxation. 

We currently have a need to address dual taxation in other areas as well .  As I 

stated yesterday, for example, we currently do not collect a dime in taxes on pipelines 

that cross and impact our Reservation, even though we bear the expense of cleaning 

up spil ls  and regulating activity. This is unjust and there needs to be an efficient 

process in place that wi ll  al low us to negotiate in good faith intergovernmental 

agreements without waiting for the Legislature to convene every two years. 

The recent oil  boom has been both a blessing and a curse. It has brought 

needed revenue to the MHA Nation, but it has also brought devastating impacts in the 

form of destruction of our roads, damage to our environment, increased crime, and a 

significant increase in the cost of services which the MHA Nation must provide on 

the Fort Berthold Reservation. The MHA Nation needs more tax revenue to mitigate 

these costs. Historically, revenues have been and remain inadequate to cover the costs 

1 
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that come with Reservation oi l production. The MHA Nation cannot afford a 

decrease in its existing revenue. 

We agree that the five month tax trigger (the big trigger) needs to be removed. 

It is outdated and unnecessary. However, tying the el imination of the tax trigger to a 

permanent 3 0% reduction in the extraction tax is not acceptable, because it wi l l  result 

in a significant loss of tax revenue in the long term. The estimated loss to the MHA 

Nation over a period of twenty years is hundreds of mil l ions of dol lars. A loss of 

revenue of this magnitude is excessive and wil l  further reduce our abi lity to address 

the serious oil production impacts. The MHA Nation currently does not have enough 

revenue to mitigate the impacts of the oil industry. Asking us to agree to such a 

massive reduction is  not only unreasonable, it is unnecessary. 

The Bi l l  should be amended by: ( 1 )  including a sunset provision under which 

the 2% reduction in the extraction tax expires in two years. This would require the 

Legislature to revisit the issue in the next session, and give it the time it needs to 

determine whether a permanent 2% reduction is actual ly necessary when weighed 

against oil prices, production, and the astounding loss of revenue over the long term; 

(2) including a provision that requires the extraction tax to return to 1 1 .5% if the price 

of oil averages at or above $70.00 per barrel for a period of 90 days. This wi l l  assure 

that if the price of oil  recovers sufficiently, then industry wi l l  pay its fair share. It will  

also mitigate the huge loss of revenue that will  come with a permanent unconditional 

reduction; and (3 ) most importantly, adding a provision exempting trust wel ls  from 

the reduced tax rate. This wi l l  recognize the MHA Nation' s  right to work with its 

industry partners and determine how best to continue production on Fort Berthold 

and mitigate the significant long term loss of revenue that will  result from a reduced 

tax rate. 

We would  not oppose the Bil l  with the amendments we propose. Thank you. 
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House Bill 1 476 

Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 

April 2 1 ,  2015 

Testimony of Richard McCloud, Chairman, Turtle Mountain Band of 

Chippewa 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Richard McCloud 

and I am the Chairman of the Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa. I am here to 

support HB 1 4  7 6 with the amendments proposed by Chairman Fox. 

In particular, the Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa supports the provision 

exempting trust wells from the reduced tax rate. As with MHA, this particular 

amendment would give the Tribe the flexibility to negotiate directly with industry in 

the Tribes best interest. 

In 20 1 2, in my State of Tribe address, I stressed pathways out of poverty 

through education. This bill with the proposed amendments would allow the Tribe to 

capitalize on the potential tax revenues to address much needed funding for: 

• Education 

• Jobs-70% unemployment 

• Housing--shortage 

• Roads-infrastructure 

• Healthcare-shortfalls in budget 

I am not asking for a handout-just a hand up. We support the B ill with the 

proposed amendments. Thank you. 

1 
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To : N o rth Da kota Legis lature, Senate F ina nce & Taxation Co m m ittee 

Fro m :  Steve Sitt ing Bea r, External  Affa irs Director Sta n d i ng Rock Sioux Tribe 

S u bject: HB 1476 

Date: April 2 1, 2015 

Good afte rnoon :  

Today I a m  here o n  behalf o f  t h e  Sta n d i ng Rock Sioux Tribe t o  testify i n  suppo rt o f  the Th ree Affi l iated 

Tribes pro posed a mend ments to HB 1476.  The Sta nding Rock Sioux Tribe isn't currently e ngaged in the 

oi l  and gas production that is occurring in our state, but we d o  have conce rns for fut u re agreeme nts 

between o u r  governing bod ies with the cu rre nt la nguage in HB 1476 .  

C h a i r m a n  Fox's reco m mendation to p lace a su nset provision o n  t h e  2% red uction o n ly makes sense a s  

o i l  p rices wi l l  eventua l ly return to previous leve ls. W h e n  t h a t  ha ppens t h e  loss of revenue t h a t  wi l l  b e  

rea l ized to both the state and the tribes is nothing short of devastating.  C h a i r m a n  F o x  has est imates that 

MHA wil l  rea l ize 700 m i l l ion to 1 b i l l ion  d o l lars i n  lost reve nue.  This a lso effects the other tribes i n  o u r  

state w h o  wish to e ngage in t h e  o i l  and g a s  oppo rt u n ities.  

The cha i rm a n's seco nd reco m mendation to restore the 1 1 . 5% extractio n  tax if the price per ba rrel stays 

over $70 for a 90 day t ime period is not u n reasonable, and q u ite fra n kly, ve ry smart.  It o n ly gives the 

state more o ptions moving forwa rd . At the end of the day, we a re al l  accounta ble to our constituents 

who a re being effecting by the im pact of the o i l  ind ustry, most notably the Three Affi l iated Tribes and 

those cou nties i n  the o i l  patch. I wou l d  hope that  m a ny of them wo u l d  agree. 

The Chairman's  th ird and last recom mendation to exem pt we l ls  o n  trust lands is u ndo u btedly the 

supported by all the tri bes, and is u lt imately the most i m portant proposa l .  One of the key reasons for 

th is, a re the j u risd ictio n a l  issues a lone.  The state is not o b l igated to contribute reso u rces to the 

problems that a re associated with trust lands. The federal trust responsib i l ities have never been enough 

to fulfi l l  that need. So who is respo nsible? It is those who a re most effected, tr ibal  mem bers. 

In closing, the Sta n d i ng Rock Sioux Tribe hopes th is co m m ittee will  t a ke Chairman Fox's 

recom mendation i nto co nsiderat ion i n  moving forward with the b i l l .  

Tha n k  you 

Steve Sitting Bea r 
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House Bill 1 476 

Testimony of Ron Ness 

Senate Finance & Taxation Committee 

April 2 1 ,  201 5  

Chairman Cook and members o f  the committee, my name i s  Ron Ness, president o f  the North Dakota 

Petroleum Council .  The North Dakota Petroleum Council represents more than 500 companies directly 

employing 65,000 employees in North Dakota in al l aspects of the oil and gas industry, including oil and gas 

production, refining, pipel ine, transportation, mineral leasing, consulting, legal work, and oilfield service 

activities in North Dakota. We are neutral on HB 1 476 but are providing an amendment to the current 

version and with adoption of that we support a flat predictable oil tax rate for North Dakota. 

It 's hard to imagine that a $40 bil l ion dollar industry in North Dakota has no idea what their tax rate 

wil l  be 40 days from today. Under today's law, the big trigger is a 1 30% swing in the tax rate and all 

existing wel l s  are reduced to 9%, that 's  about $76 mil lion dol lars per month at $40 dol lars a barrel .  How can 

you plan with that on the horizon? HB 1 476, as drafted, is merely a revenue insurance policy for the State of 

North Dakota on the backs of oil producers and mineral owners. 

Over the course of the last seven years, the Bakken has seen a lot. These initial years of the play 

brought intense exploration activity during a period of high prices and excitement and leaseholds that had to 

be dri lled. We quickly began to learn the Bakken was a world class play. It also brought many chal lenges, 

some difficult and costly. 

The "Exploration Phase" of the Bakken is over. We've learned that although the Bakken is a huge 

resource with large reserves, we've al l been humbled and reminded these last few months that oil is sti l l  a 

commodity. Our rig count dropped exactly 50% in less than four months and thousands of jobs have been 

lost. The consequences of the low prices and the big trigger going on now amounts to bi l l ions of dollars in 

revenue, not a few mil l ion as in the pre or early Bakken days. While technology has dramatically changed 

our ability to recover oil, the price of the commodity wi l l  always fluctuate and there is nothing in today ' s  

world that suggests this won't be  the case in  the future. When the big trigger became law in  1 987, i t  stayed 

on until 2004 and our effective tax rate was around 7.2%. 
Again, the Exploration Phase is over. We now enter the "Development Phase" which wil l  be a period 

in our State' s  history lasting several decades, and despite the current price situation, long term the 

Development Phase if managed wel l ,  wil l  ensure prosperity for our State for decades beyond. 
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The Development Phase brings new challenges, it will require new ideas, and consistent long term strategies 

to manage this world class play. What is the Development Phase, what are some of the challenges and 

solutions, and what does this all mean to the State of North Dakota? 

The Development Phase: 

• Leases Held 

• Multi well pad drilling 

• Potentially thousands more wells and production over the course of 30 or more years. 

• Continued technological advancements allowing for even greater increased recovery of oil. 

• Continued technological advancements in health, safety and protection of our environment. 

• Infrastructure expansion, pipelines, processing facilities, housing, roads, schools, water, etc. 

The Challenges our industry faces: 

• Capital intensive. We can' t meet the infrastructure expansions or the necessary technological 

advancements without continued and massive amounts of capital investment. 

• Competition with other plays and states with lower taxes over the same capital investment 

• Regulatory costs 

• Weather 

• High transportation costs 

• High taxes and unpredictable tax rates 

• Long term oil prices 

What does Industry need for the Development Phase? 

Neither the State or industry can control or predict prices long term, but what the State can provide industry 

is a long term consistent regulatory policy and a uniform, stable and competitive tax policy to ensure the 

necessary long term capital investment required for this next phase. A stable more competitive tax rate 

encourages, not discourages, the needed long term capital investment in North Dakota. And, in return, the 

State also benefits with more consistent revenues and less uncertainty. 



~ PEil2R0LEuM ~ C: 0 L' ;-.: C I L 

100 Wes! B1oodwoy. Sle. 200 I P.O. Box 1395 I Bismarck. ND 58501-1395 
701.223.6380 I ndpcando1l.01g I www.ND01l.01g 

What does the Development Phase mean for the State of North Dakota? 

• A once unimaginable thriving state where young people return home, relocate here, or start a business 

because we have jobs and a surging economy. 

• More jobs than we can fill with rising wages and incomes. 

• Schools that need to expand rather than close and consolidate. 

• . State revenue collections from oil that nearly double what our state budget was just a decade ago. 

• While other states raise taxes ND reduces taxes, funds education, roads, and is looking to incentivize 

a chemical industry that diversifies our economy but that won 't happen unless investors are confident 

the Bakken will continue to grow production. 

• Means that we need to continue to work on the challenges of a growing population, research and 

invest in new technologies to tackle oil shale issues, and think BIG - World Class! 

• North Dakota is looked at as a place to be, where to come to invest, and has become a shining star in 

a struggling world economy. 

How does a State with all this expect a 40 billion dollar industry to operate without knowing what it ' s tax 

rate will be in 40 days - it could vary 130% on a few pennies at market close any day in May. The Bakken 

is big business, requiring massive investment and planning - it ' s time to end this tax chaos and allow 

industry to focus on long-term strategies for developing the Bakken while providing the state revenue 

certainty. 

Thank you, we urge you to adopt our amendments and pass this bill. I would be happy to answer any 

questions. 



Proposed Amendments to H B  1476 

Page 5,  l i n e  13, ove rstri ke "a nd one-ha lf" 

Page 12, l i ne 9, remove ", if o n  that date" 

Page 12, remove l i nes 10 a n d  1 1  

Page 12, l i ne 12, remove "under  su bsection 3 of section 57-5 1-03 wou ld become · 

effective" 

Ren u m be r  a ccord i ngly 
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15.1024.05015 

Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

FIRST ENGROSSMENT 

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Representatives Carlson, Belter, Headland 

Senators Cook, Wardner 

(Approved by the Delayed Bills Committee) 

1 A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 38-08-04 and sections 

2 57-51 .1-01 , 57-51 .1-02, and 57-51 .1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to oil 

3 extraction tax rates and exemptions; to provide legislative intent; afiGto provide for an exception ; 

4 to provide for a legislative management study; to provide an effective date; and to provide an 

5 expiration date. 

6 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

7 SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 38-08-04 of the North Dakota Century 

8 Code is amended and reenacted as follows : 

9 4. To classify wells as oil or gas wells for purposes material to the interpretation or 

10 enforcement of this chapter, to classify and determine the status and depth of wells 

11 that are stripper well property as defined in subsection 8 of section 57-51 .1-01, to 

12 certify to the tax commissioner which wells are stripper wells as defined in section 

13 57-51.1-01 and the depth of those wells, to recertify stripper wells that are reentered 

14 and recompleted as horizontal wells , and to certify to the tax commissioner which 

15 wells involve secondary or tertiary recovery operations oodefas defined in section 

16 57-51.1-01 , and the date of qualification for the reduced rate of oil extraction tax 

17 exemption for secondary and tertiary recovery operations. 

18 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51 .1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

19 amended and reenacted as follows: 

20 57-51.1-01. Definitions for oil extraction tax. 

21 For the purposes of this chapter: 

22 1. "Average daily production" of a well means the qualified maximum total production of 

• 23 oil from the well during a calendar month period divided by the number of calendar 

days in that period, and "qualified maximum total production" of a well means that the 24 
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well must have been maintained at the maximum efficient rate of production as 1 

2 

3 

defined and determined by rule adopted by the industrial commission in furtherance of • 

its authority under chapter 38-08. 

4 2. "Average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the monthly average of the daily closing 

5 

6 

7 

8 

price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate cushing crude oil , as those prices appear 

in the Wall Street Journal , midwest edition , minus two dollars and fifty cents. \/\/hen 

computing the monthly average price, the most recent previous daily closing price 

must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is closed . 

9 &.- "Horizontal reentry 'Nell" means a well that \Vas not initially drilled and completed as a 

10 

11 

horizontal well, including any 'Nell initially plugged and abandoned as a dry hole, which 

is reentered and recompleted as a horizontal 'Nell. 

12 4.- "Horizontal well" means a well with a horizontal displacement of the well bore drilled at 

13 

14 

an angle of at least eighty degrees within the productive formation of at least three 

hundred feet [91.44 meters] . 

15 &.-3 . "Oil" means petroleum, crude oil , mineral oil, casinghead gasoline, and all liquid 

16 

17 

hydrocarbons that are recovered from gas on the lease incidental to the production of 

the gas. 

18 &.-4. "Property" means the right which arises from a lease or fee interest, as a whole or any 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

designated portion thereof, to produce oil. A producer shall treat as a separate 

property each separate and distinct producing reservoir subject to the same right to 

produce crude oil ; provided, that such reservoir is recognized by the industrial 

commission as a producing formation that is separate and distinct from , and not in 

communication with , any other producing formation . 

24 -7:-§,_ "Qualifying secondary recovery project" means a project employing water flooding. :re 
25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

be eligible for the tax reduction provided under section 57 51 .1 02, a secondary 

recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the industrial commission and the 

project operator must have achieved for six consecutive months an average 

production level of at least twenty five percent above the level that would have been 

recovered under normal recovery operations. To be eligible for the tax exemption 

provided under section 57-51 .1-03 and subsequent thereto the rate reduction provided 

under section 57 51 .1 02, a secondary recovery project must be certified as qualifying 
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by the industrial commission and the project operator must have obtained incremental ..... ,_ ... 6 
/)(~T 

production as defined in subsection a;i of section 57-51 .1-03. 

"Qualifying tertiary recovery project" means a project for enhancing recovery of oil 

which meets the requirements of section 4993(c), Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 

amended through December 31, 1986, and includes the following methods for 

recovery: 

a. Miscible fluid displacement. 

b. Steam drive injection. 

c. Microemulsion. 

d. In situ combustion . 

e. Polymer augmented water flooding . 

f. Cyclic steam injection. 

g. Alkaline flooding . 

h. Carbonated water flooding . 

i. Immiscible carbon dioxide displacement. 

j. New tertiary recovery methods certified by the industrial commission . 

It does not include water flooding , unless the water flooding is used as an element of 

one of the qualifying tertiary recovery techniques described in this subsection, or 

immiscible natural gas injection. To be eligible for the tax reduction provided under 

section 57 51 .1 02, a tertiary recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the 

industrial commission, the project operator must continue to operate the unit as a 

qualifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator must have achieved for at 

least one month a production level of at least fifteen percent above the level that would 

have been recovered under normal recovery operations. To be eligible for the tax 

exemption provided under section 57-51 .1-03 and subsequent thereto the rate 

reduction provided under section 57 51 .1 02 , a tertiary recovery project must be 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission, the project operator must continue 

to operate the unit as a qualifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator 

must have obtained incremental production as defined in subsection a;i of section 

57-51 .1-03 . 

Page No. 3 15.1024.05015 



1 

2 

3 

Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 

9:-L "Royalty owner" means an owner of what is commonly known as the royalty interest 

and shall not include the owner of any overriding royalty or other payment carved out 

of the working interest. 

4 4-0:-~ "Stripper well" means a well drilled and completed , or reentered and recompleted as a 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

horizontal well , after June 30, 2013, whose average daily production of oil during any 

preceding consecutive twelve-month period, excluding condensate recovered in 

nonassociated production , per well did not exceed ten barrels per day for wells of a 

depth of six thousand feet [1828 .80 meters) or less, fifteen barrels per day for wells of 

a depth of more than six thousand feet [1828.80 meters] but not more than ten 

thousand feet [3048 meters) , and thirty barrels per day for wells of a depth of more 

than ten thousand feet [3048 meters] outside the Bakken and Three Forks formations , 

and thirty-five barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than ten thousand feet [3048 

meters] in the Bakken or Three Forks formation . 

14 -t-+-:-~ "Stripper well property" means wells drilled and completed , or a well reentered and 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

recompleted as a horizontal well, before July 1, 2013, on a "property" whose average 

daily production of oil , excluding condensate recovered in nonassociated production , 

per well did not exceed ten barrels per day for wells of a depth of six thousand feet 

[1828.80 meters] or less, fifteen barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than six 

thousand feet [1828.80 meters] but not more than ten thousand feet [3048 meters], 

and thirty barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than ten thousand feet [3048 

meters] during any preceding consecutive twelve-month period . Wells which did not 

actually yield or produce oil during the qualifying twelve-month period , including 

disposal wells , dry wells , spent wells, and shut-in wells , are not production wells for 

the purpose of determining whether the stripper well property exemption applies. 

25 -1-2-:- "Trigger price" means thirty five dollars and fifty cents, as indexed for inflation. By 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

December thirty first of each year, the tax commissioner shall compute an indexed 

trigger price by applying to the current trigger price the rate of change of the producer 

price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the United 

States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics, for the twelve months ending 

June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the trigger 

price for the following calendar year. 
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"Two year inactive »veil" means any •.veil certified by the industrial commission that did 4· 

not produce oil in more than one month in any consecutive twenty four month period 

3 before being recompleted or otheri.vise returned to production after July 31 , 1995. A 

4 well that has never produced oil , a dry hole, and a plugged and abandoned well are 

5 eligible for status as a two year inactive well. 

6 SECTION 3. AM EN DM ENT. Section 57-51.1 -02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

7 amended and reenacted as follows: 

8 57-51.1-02. Imposition of oil extraction tax. 

9 There is hereby imposed an excise tax, to be known as the "oil extraction tax", upon the 

10 activity in this state of extracting oil from the earth , and every owner, including any royalty 

11 owner, of any part of the oil extracted is deemed for the purposes of this chapter to be engaged 

12 in the activity of extracting that oil. 

13 The rate of tax is six!fil!r and one halffive percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 

14 extracted , except that the rate of tax is four percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 

15 extracted in the following situations: 

16 

17 

+. For oil produced from wells drilled and completed after April 27, 1987, commonly 

referred to as new wells , and not otheri.vise exempt under section 57 51 .1 03; 

18 2-:- For oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project that was certified as 

19 qualifying by the industrial commission before July 1, 1991 ; 

20 6:- For oil that does not qualify as incremental oil but is produced from a secondary or 

21 

22 

tertiary recovery project that is certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after 

June 30 , 1991 ; 

23 4.- For incremental oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project that is 

24 

25 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after June 30 , 1991 , and which 

production is not otherwise exempt under section 57 51.1 03; or 

26 &.- For oil produced from a well that receives an exemption pursuant to subsection 4 of 

27 section 57 51.1 03 after June 30, 1993, and which production is not otheri.vise exempt 

28 under section 57 51.1 03. 

29 However, if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price of ninety dollars 

30 for each month in any consecutive five monththree-month period, then the rate of tax on oil 

31 extracted from all taxable wells is six and one half percent of the gross value at the well of the 
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1 oil extracted until the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price of ninety 

2 dollars for each month in any consecutive five monththree-month period , in which case the rate • 

3 of tax reverts to fet:H:five percent of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted for any wells 

4 subject to a reduced rate under subsections 1 through 5. By December thirty-first of each year, 

5 the tax commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 

6 the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the producer 

7 price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the United States 

8 department of labor, bureau of labor statistics, for the twelve months ending June thirtieth of that 

9 year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the trigger price for the following calendar 

10 year. 

11 For purposes of this section , "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the monthly 

12 average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate cushing crude oil , as 

13 those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition . When computing the monthly 

14 average price, the most recent previous daily closing price must be considered the daily closing 

15 price for the days on which the market is closed. 

16 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 of the North Dakota 

17 Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: • 
18 3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of oil from the 

19 well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of fifteen 

20 months, exsept that oil produced from any 1.vell drilled and sompleted as a horizontal 

21 \Vell is exempt from any taxes imposed under this shapter for a period of twenty four 

22 months. Oil recovered during testing prior to well completion is exempt from the oil 

23 extraction tax. The exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average 

24 price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 

25 consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, after the 

26 trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less 

27 than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five-month period. 

28 SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51 .1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

29 amended and reenacted as follows: 

30 57-51.1-03. Exemptions from oil extraction tax. 

31 The following activities are specifically exempted from the oil extraction tax: • 
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1 1. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil that is exempt from the gross 

2 production tax imposed by chapter 57-51. 

3 2. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil from a stripper well property or 

4 individual stripper well. 

5 &.- For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of oil from the 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of fifteen 

months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and completed as a horizontal 

well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of twenty four 

months. Oil recovered during testing prior to well completion is exempt from the oil 

extraction tax. The exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 

oonseoutive five month period . However, the exemption is reinstated if, after the 

trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less 

than the trigger price for each month in any oonseoutive five month period. 

15 4:- The production of oil from a qualifying well that was •.vorked over is exempt from any 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of twelve months, beginning \Vith the 

first day of the third calendar month after the completion of the ·.vork over project. The 

exemption provided by this subsection is only effective if the well operator establishes 

to the satisfaction of the industrial commission upon completion of the project that the 

east of the project exceeded sixty five thousand dollars or production is increased at 

least fifty percent during the first two months after completion of the project. A 

qualifying ·.veil under this subsection is a well with an average daily production of no 

more than fifty barrels of oil during the latest six calendar months of continuous 

production. A work over project under this subsection means the continuous 

employment of a work over rig, including reoompletions and reentries. The exemption 

provided by this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of 

crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any oonseoutive five month 

period. l=lo•Never, the exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes 

effective , the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for 

each month in any oonseoutive five month period . 
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.'].1.:lc; 
The incremental production from a secondary recovery project which has been tr' a. 

certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission after July 1, 1991, is 

exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of five years from 

the date the incremental production begins. 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does not use 

carbon dioxide and which has been certified as a qualified project by the 

industrial commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 

period of ten years from the date the incremental production begins. Incremental 

production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide in a well 

drilled and completed outside the Bakken and Three Forks formations, and ten 

miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an established field in which the 

industrial commission has defined the pool to include the Bakken or Three Forks 

formation and which has been certified as a qualified project by the industrial 

commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of 

five years from the date the incremental production begins. 

c. For purposes of this subsection , incremental production is defined in the following 

manner: 

(1) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference between the total 

amount of oil produced from the unit during the secondary recovery project 

and the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil which would have 

been produced from the unit if the secondary recovery project had not been 

commenced . The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 

(2) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

prior to July 1, 1991 , and where the industrial commission cannot establish 

an accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 
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d ifference between the total amount of o i l  produced from the unit during a 

new secondary recovery project and the amount of production which would 

be equivalent to the average monthly production from the un it during the 

most recent twelve months of normal production reduced by a production 

decl ine rate of ten percent for each year. The industrial commission shal l  

determ ine the average monthly production from the un it during the most 

recent twelve months of norma l production and must upon request or upon 

its own motion hold a hearing to make th is determination. For purposes of 

th is paragraph,  when determin ing the most recent twelve months of normal 

production the industria l  commission is not required to use twelve 

consecutive months .  In addition,  the production decl ine rate of ten percent 

must be appl ied from the last month in the twelve-month period of t ime. 

(3) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a un it where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

before July 1 ,  1 991 , and where the industria l  commission can establ ish an 

accurate production decl ine curve, incremental production means the 

difference between the total amount of oil produced from the un it during the 

new secondary recovery project and the tota l amount of oil that would have 

been produced from the un it if the new secondary recovery project had not 

been commenced . For purposes of th is paragraph, the total amount of o i l  

that would have been produced from the un it i f  the new secondary recovery 

project had not been commenced includes both primary production and 

production that occurred as a resu lt of the secondary recovery project that 

was in existence before July 1 ,  1 99 1 . The industrial commission shal l  

determine the amount of o i l  that would have been produced from the un it if 

the new secondary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the new secondary recovery project is certified. 

(4) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in  subdivision b and 

with respect to a un it where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incrementa l production means the d ifference between the total 
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ft:1"' �l ��it? 
4- 'j.. amount of o i l  produced from the unit during the tertiary recovery project and 

the amount of primary production from the un it. For purposes of th is 

paragraph,  primary production means the amount of o i l  which would have 

been produced from the un it if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

commenced . The industria l  commission shall determ ine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified . 

(5 )  For purposes of  determin ing the exemption provided for in  subdivis ion b and 

with respect to a un it where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the d ifference between the total 

amount of o i l  produced during the tertiary recovery project and the amount 

of production which would be equ iva lent to the average monthly production 

from the un it during the most recent twelve months of normal production 

reduced by a production decl ine rate of ten percent for each year. The 

industria l  commission shal l  determine the average monthly production from 

the un it during the most recent twelve months of normal production and 

must upon request or upon its own motion hold a hearing to make this 

determination.  For purposes of th is paragraph,  when determ in ing the most 

recent twelve months of normal production the industria l  commission is not 

requ ired to use twelve consecutive months. I n  addition ,  the production 

decl ine rate of ten percent m ust be appl ied from the last month in the 

twelve-month period of t ime. 

(6) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivis ion b and 

with respect to a un it where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project and where the industria l  commission can establ ish an accurate 

production decl ine curve , incrementa l production means the d ifference 

between the total amount of oil produced from the un it during the tertiary 

recovery project and the total amount of o i l  that would have been produced 

from the un it if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced . For 

purposes of this paragraph,  the total amount of oil that would have been 

produced from the un it if the tertiary recovery project had not been 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

commenced includes both primary production and production that occurred 4-. "')2.. rs 
as a result of any secondary recovery project. The industrial commission 

shall determine the amount of oil that would have been produced from the 

unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the tertiary recovery project is certified . 

d. The industrial commission shall adopt rules relating to this exemption that must 

include procedures for determining incremental production as defined in 

subdivision c. 

10 &.- The production of oil from a t1.vo year inactive well, as determined by the industrial 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of ten years after 

the date of receipt of the certification . The exemption under this subsection becomes 

ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period . However, the exemption is 

reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 

of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 

period . 

18 +.: The production of oil from a horizontal reentry well , as determined by the industrial 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of nine months 

after the date the well is completed as a horizontal ·11ell. The exemption under this 

subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the 

trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period . However, the 

exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period . 

26 & The initial production of oil from a ·11ell is exempt from any taxes imposed under this 

27 

28 

29 

30 

chapter for a period of sixty months if: 

&.- The well is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on nontrust lands within the 

boundaries of an Indian reservation ; 

• 31 

&.- The 1;vell is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held in trust by 

the United States for an Indian tribe or individual Indian; or 
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The well is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held by an Indian 

tribe if the interest is in existence on August 1, 1997. 

3 9-: The first seventy five thousand barrels or the first four million five hundred thousand 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

dollars of gross value at the well, whichever is less, of oil produced during the first 

eighteen months after completion , from a horizontal well drilled and completed after 

April 30, 2009, and before July 1, 2015, is subject to a reduced tax rate of t\vo percent 

of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted under this chapter. A well eligible for a 

reduced tax rate under this subsection is eligible for the exemption for horizontal wells 

under subsection 3, if the exemption under subsection 3 is effective during all or part 

of the first twenty four months after completion . The rate reduction under this 

subsection becomes effective on the first day of the month following a month for which 

the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than fifty five dollars. The rate 

reduction under this subsection becomes ineffective on the first day of the month 

following a month in which the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds seventy 

dollars. If the rate reduction under this subsection is effective on the date of 

completion of a well , the rate reduction applies to production from that 'Nell for up to 

eighteen months after completion , subject to the other limitations of this subsection. If 

the rate reduction under this subsection is ineffective on the date of completion of a 

well , the rate reduction under this subsection does not apply to production from that 

well at any time. 

21 ..'.f-0:-4. The first seventy-five thousand barrels of oil produced during the first eighteen months 

22 after completion , from a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and Three 

23 Forks formations, and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an established field 

24 in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the Bakken or Three 

25 Forks formation, is subject to a reduced tax rate of two percent of the gross value at 

26 the well of the oil extracted under this chapter. A well eligible for a reduced tax rate 

27 under this subsection is eligible for the exemption under subsection 3, if the exemption 

28 under subsection 3 is effective during all or part of the first twenty four months after 

29 completion . 

30 SECTION 6. LEGISLATIVE INTENT TERM OF EXEMPTIONS AND RATE 

• 

• 

31 REDUCTIONS. It is the intent of the sixty fourth legislative assembly that theThe remaining • 

Page No. 12 15.1024.05015 



1 

Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 

term of any exemption or rate reduction eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires upon the 

• 2 effective date of this ActJanuarv 1. 2016. The remaining term of the horizontal well exemption 

3 eliminated in section 3 of this Act exprres December 1. 2015. 

4 SECTION 7. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT FOR 

5 CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement of legislative 

6 confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 57-51 .2-01 do not apply, for 

7 adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the changes in the oil extraction tax under 

8 this Act, and for agreements under section 54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an 

9 existing agreement regarding application of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or 

10 undyed special fuels within the exterior boundaries of the reservation. 

11 SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 interim, the 

12 legislative management shall consider studying state-tribal tax agreements and allocation of 

13 revenues from centrally assessed property and property subject to payments in lieu of property 

14 taxes which is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative management shall report its findings 

15 and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 

• 16 recommendations , to the sixty-fifth legislative assembly . 

17 SECTION 9. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. This Act becomes effective June 1, 

18 2015, if on that date the exemption under subsection 3 of section 57 51 .1 03 is, or would 

19 become, effective and, if it is not, this Act becomes effective on the first day of the first 

20 subsequent month the exemption under subsection 3 of section 57 51 .1 03 would become 

21 effectiveSections 1, 2, 3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events occurring after 

22 December 31, 2015. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events occurring after 

23 November 30, 2015. Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1. 2015, through December 31, 

24 2016, and is thereafter ineffective . 

• 
Page No. 13 15.1024.05015 



15.1024.05001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dotzenrod 

April 21 , 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 5, line 13, remove the overstrike over "5*" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Introduced by 

Representatives Carlson, Belter, Headland 

Senators Cook, Wardner 

(Approved by the Delayed Bills Committee) 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 38-08-04 and sections 

57-51.1-01, 57-51 .1-02, and 57-51.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to oil 

extraction tax rates and exemptions; to provide legislative intent; and to provide an effective 

date. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 38-08-04 of the North Dakota Century 

Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

4. To classify wells as oil or gas wells for purposes material to the interpretation or 

enforcement of this chapter, to classify and determine the status and depth of wells 

that are stripper well property as defined in subsection 8 of section 57-51.1-01, to 

certify to the tax commissioner which wells are stripper wells as defined in section 

57-51.1-01 and the depth of those wells, to recertify stripper wells that are reentered 

and recompleted as horizontal wells, and to certify to the tax commissioner which 

wells involve secondary or tertiary recovery operations HR€1efas defined in section 

57-51.1-01, and the date of qualification for the reduced rate of oil extraction tax 

exemption for secondary and tertiary recovery operations. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51 .1-01 of-the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-51.1-01. Definitions for oil extraction tax. 

For the purposes of this chapter: 

1. "Average daily production" of a well means the qualified maximum total production of 

oil from the well during a calendar month period divided by the number of calendar 

days in that period, and "qualified maximum total production" of a well means that the 

well must have been maintained at the maximum efficient rate of production as 

Page No. 1 15.1024.05004 



_A, ; -:2. 

Sixty-fourth ~ Jlt-' '1 (a . 
Legislative Assembly · ~_t.-2-. \'S 

1 

2 

defined and determined by rule adopted by the industrial commission in furtherance of 

its authority under chapter 38-08. 

3 2. "Average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the monthly average of the daily closing 

4 

5 

6 

7 

price for a barrel of '.Vest Texas intermediate cushing crude oil, as those prices appear 

in the Wall Street Journal , mid·.vest edition, minus two dollars and fifty cents. VI/hen 

computing the monthly average price, the most recent previous daily closing price 

must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is closed . 

8 &.- "Horizontal reentry well" means a well that was not initially drilled and completed as a 

9 

10 

horizontal well, including any •.veil initially plugged and abandoned as a dry hole, which 

is reentered and recompleted as a horizontal wel l. 

11 4.- "Horizontal well" means a well with a horizontal displacement of the well bore drilled at 

12 

13 

an angle of at least eighty degrees within the productive formation of at least three 

hundred feet [91.44 meters]. 

14 &.-3. "Oil" means petroleum, crude oil, mineral oil, casinghead gasoline, and all liquid 

15 

16 

hydrocarbons that are recovered from gas on the lease incidental to the production of 

the gas. 

17 &.-4. "Property" means the right which arises from a lease or fee interest, as a whole or any 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

designated portion thereof, to produce oil. A producer shall treat as a separate 

property each separate and distinct producing reservoir subject to the same right to 

produce crude oil ; provided , that such reservoir is recognized by the industrial 

commission as a producing formation that is separate and distinct from, and not in 

communication with, any other producing formation . 

23 7-:5. "Qualifying secondary recovery project" means a project employing water flooding . :re 
be eligible for the tax reduction provided under section 57 51 .1 02, a secondary 

recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the industrial commission and the 

project operator must have achieved for six consecutive months an average 

production level of at least tv1enty five percent above the level that would have been 

recovered under normal recovery operations. To be eligible for the tax exemption 

(~ 

( 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

provided under section 57-51 .1-03 and subsequent thereto the rate reduction provided 

under section 57 51 .1 02, a secondary recovery project must be certified as qualifying ( , 
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by the industrial commission and the project operator must have obtained incremental 

production as defined in subsection 9~ of section 57-51 .1-03. 

"Qualifying tertiary recovery project" means a project for enhancing recovery of oil 

which meets the requirements of section 4993(c), Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 

amended through December 31, 1986, and includes the following methods for 

recovery: 

a. Miscible fluid displacement. 

b. Steam drive injection. 

c. Microemulsion. 

d. In situ combustion. 

e. Polymer augmented water flooding. 

f. Cyclic steam injection. 

g. Alkaline flooding . 

h. Carbonated water flooding. 

i. Immiscible carbon dioxide displacement. 

j. New tertiary recovery methods certified by the industrial commission. 

It does not include water flooding , unless the water flooding is used as an element of 

one of the qualifying tertiary recovery techniques described in this subsection, or 

immiscible natural gas injection. To be eligible for the tax reduction provided under 

section 57 51 .1 02, a tertiary recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the 

industrial commission, the project operator must continue to operate the unit as a 

qualifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator must have achieved for at 

least one month a production level of at least fifteen percent above the level that would 

have been recovered under normal recovery operations. To be eligible for the tax 

exemption provided under section 57-51 .1-03 and subsequent thereto the rate 

reduction provided under section 57 51.1 02, a tertiary recovery project must be 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission, the project operator must continue 

to operate the unit as a qualifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator 

must have obtained incremental production as defined in subsection 9~ of section 

57-51.1-03. 
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9-:7. "Royalty owner" means an owner of what is commonly known as the royalty interest 

and shall not include the owner of any overriding royalty or other payment carved out 

of the working interest. 

4 .+{h8. "Stripper well" means a well drilled and completed, or reentered and recompleted as a 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

horizontal well, after June 30, 2013, whose average daily production of oil during any 

preceding consecutive twelve-month period, excluding condensate recovered in 

nonassociated production, per well did not exceed ten barrels per day for wells of a 

depth of six thousand feet [1828.80 meters] or less, fifteen barrels per day for wells of 

a depth of more than six thousand feet [1828.80 meters] but not more than ten 

thousand feet [3048 meters], and thirty barrels per day for wells of a depth of more 

than ten thousand feet [3048 meters] outside the Bakken and Three Forks formations, 

and thirty-five barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than ten thousand feet [3048 

meters] in the Bakken or Three Forks formation . 

14 ~9. "Stripper well property" means wells drilled and completed, or a well reentered and 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

recompleted as a horizontal well, before July 1, 2013, on a "property" whose average 

daily production of oil, excluding condensate recovered in nonassociated production, 

per well did not exceed ten barrels per day for wells of a depth of six thousand feet 

[1828.80 meters] or less, fifteen barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than six 

thousand feet [1828.80 meters] but not more than ten thousand feet [3048 meters], 

and thirty barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than ten thousand feet [3048 

meters] during any preceding consecutive twelve-month period. Wells which did not 

actually yield or produce oil during the qualifying twelve-month period, including 

disposal wells, dry wells, spent wells, and shut-in wells, are not production wells for 

the purpose of determining whether the stripper well property exemption applies. 

25 ~ "Trigger price" means thirty five dollars and fifty cents, as indexed for inflation. By 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

December thirty first of each year, the tax commissioner shall compute an indexed 

trigger price by applying to the current trigger price the rate of change of the producer 

price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the United 

States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics, for the twelve months ending 

June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the trigger 

price for the following calendar year. 
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1 *- "T\vo year inactive well" means any ·.veil certified by the industrial commission that did 

2 not produce oil in more than one month in any consecutive twenty four month period 

3 before being recompleted or otherwise returned to production after July 31, 1995. A 

4 well that has never produced oil , a dry hole, and a plugged and abandoned well are 

5 eligible for status as a t\vo year inactive well. 

6 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

7 amended and reenacted as follows: 

8 57-51.1-02. Imposition of oil extraction tax. 

9 There is hereby imposed an excise tax, to be known as the "oil extraction tax" , upon the 

10 activity in this state of extracting oil from the earth , and every owner, including any royalty 

11 owner, of any part of the oil extracted is deemed for the purposes of this chapter to be engaged 

12 in the activity of extracting that oil. 

13 The rate of tax is s*four and one-half percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 

14 extracted, except that the rate of tax is four percent of the gross value at the ·.veil of the oil 

15 extracted in the following situations: 

16 4'- For oil produced from wells drilled and completed after April 27, 1987, commonly 

17 referred to as new wells, and not otherwise exempt under section 57 51 .1 03; 

18 ~ For oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project that was certified as 

19 qualifying by the industrial commission before July 1, 1991; 

20 ~ For oil that does not qualify as incremental oil but is produced from a secondary or 

21 

22 

tertiary recovery project that is certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after 

June 30, 1991; 

23 4.- For incremental oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project that is 

24 

25 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after June 30, 1991, and which 

production is not other.vise exempt under section 57 51.1 03; or 

26 &.- For oil produced from a well that receives an exemption pursuant to subsection 4 of 

27 section 57 51 .1 03 after June 30, 1993, and \Vhich production is not otherv1ise exempt 

28 under section 57 51.1 03. 

29 However, if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in 

30 any consecutive five month period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all taxable wells is 

31 six and one half percent of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted until the average price 
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1 of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 

2 five month period, in which case the rate of tax reverts to four percent of the gross value at the 

3 well of the oil extracted for any 1.vells subject to a reduced rate under subsections 1 through 5. 

4 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

5 amended and reenacted as follows: 

6 57-51.1-03. Exemptions from oil extraction tax. 

7 The following activities are specifically exempted from the oil extraction tax: 

8 1. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil that is exempt from the gross 

9 production tax imposed by chapter 57-51. 

10 2. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil from a stripper well property or 

11 individual stripper well. 

12 &.- For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well , the initial production of oil from the 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

1.vell is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of fifteen 

months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and completed as a horizontal 

\Veil is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of twenty four 

months. Oil recovered during testing prior to well completion is exempt from the oil 

extraction tax. The exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, after the 

trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barre l of crude oil is less 

than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period. 

22 4.- The production of oil from a qualifying well that ·11as ·.vorked over is exempt from any 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of twelve months, beginning with the 

first day of the third calendar month after the completion of the work over project. The 

exemption provided by this subsection is only effective if the we ll operator establishes 

to the satisfaction of the industrial commission upon completion of the project that the 

cost of the project exceeded sixty five thousand dollars or production is increased at 

least fifty percent during the first two months after completion of the project. A 

qualifying well under this subsection is a well 'Nith an average daily production of no 

more than fifty barrels of oil during the latest six calendar months of continuous 

production. A work over project under this subsection means the continuous 
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employment of a \Vork over rig, including recompletions and reentries. The exemption 

provided by this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of 

crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 

period. Hovlever, the exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes 

effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period . 

&.-~ a. The incremental production from a secondary recovery project which has been 

certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission after July 1, 1991, is 

exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of five years from 

the date the incremental production begins. 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does not use 

carbon dioxide and which has been certified as a qualified project by the 

industrial commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 

period of ten years from the date the incremental production begins. Incremental 

production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide and which 

has been certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission is exempt 

from any taxes imposed under this chapter from the date the incremental 

production begins. 

c. For purposes of this subsection, incremental production is defined in the following 

manner: 

(1) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference between the total 

amount of oil produced from the unit during the secondary recovery project 

and the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil which would have 

been produced from the unit if the secondary recovery project had not been 

commenced. The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 
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(2) 

(3) 

For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

prior to July 1 ,  1 99 1 , and where the industrial commission cannot establ ish 

an accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 

difference between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during a 

new secondary recovery project and the amount of production which would 

be equivalent to the average monthly production from the unit during the 

most recent twelve months of normal production reduced by a production 

decline rate of ten percent for each year. The industrial com mission shall 

determine the average month ly production from the unit during the most 

recent twelve months of normal production and must upon request or upon 

its own motion hold a hearing to make th is determination. For purposes of 

this paragraph, when determ ining the most recent twelve months of normal 

production the industrial commission is not required to use twelve 

consecutive months. In addition , the production decl ine rate of ten percent 

must be applied from the last month in the twelve-month period of time . 

For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

before July 1 ,  1 99 1 , and where the industrial commission can establ ish an 

accurate production decl ine curve, incremental production means the 

difference between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during the 

new secondary recovery project and the total amount of oil that would have 

been produced from the unit if the new secondary recovery project had not 

been commenced. For purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of oi l  

that would have been produced from the unit if the new secondary recovery 

project had not been com menced includes both primary production and 

production that occurred as a result of the secondary recovery project that 

was in existence before July 1 ,  1 99 1 . The industrial commission shall 

determine the amount of oi l  that would have been produced from the unit if 

the new secondary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 
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that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the new secondary recovery project is certified . 

(4) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the d ifference between the total 

amount of oi l  produced from the unit during the tertiary recovery project and 

the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oi l  which would have 

been produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

com menced. The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified . 

(5) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the d ifference between the total 

amount of oi l  produced during the tertiary recovery project and the amount 

of production which wou ld be equivalent to the average monthly production 

from the unit during the most recent twelve months of normal production 

reduced by a production decline rate of ten percent for each year. The 

industrial com mission shal l  determine the average month ly production from 

the unit during the most recent twelve months of normal production and 

m ust upon request or upon its own motion hold a hearing to make this 

determination. For purposes of this paragraph, when determining the most 

recent twelve months of normal production the industrial commission is not 

required to use twelve consecutive months. In addition, the production 

decl ine rate of ten percent must be appl ied from the last month in the 

twelve-month period of time. 

(6) For purposes of determin ing the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project and where the industrial commission can establish an accurate 

production decline curve, incremental production means the d ifference 
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between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during the tertiary 

recovery project and the total amount of oil that would have been produced 

from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced. For 

purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of oil that would have been 

produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

commenced includes both primary production and production that occurred 

as a result of any secondary recovery project. The industrial commission 

shall determine the amount of oil that would have been produced from the 

unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the tertiary recovery project is certified. 

d. The industrial commission shall adopt rules relating to this exemption that must 

include procedures for determining incremental production as defined in 

subdivision c. 

The production of oil from a two year inactive well, as determined by the industrial 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of ten years after 

the date of receipt of the certification. The exemption under this subsection becomes 

ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period. However, the exemption is 

reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 

of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 

period. 

23 +...: The production of oil from a horizontal reentry ·.vell, as determined by the industrial 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of nine months 

after the date the well is completed as a horizontal well. The exemption under this 

subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the 

trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period. Hm.vever, the 

exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period. 
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The initial production of oil from a well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this 

chapter for a period of sixty months if: 

&.- The Viall is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on nontrust lands within the 

boundaries of an Indian reservation; 

&. The \VOii is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held in trust by 

the United States for an Indian tribe or individual Indian; or 

&. The well is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held by an Indian 

tribe if the interest is in existence on August 1, 1997. 

9-A. The first seventy-five thousand barrels or the first four million five hundred thousand 

dollars of gross value at the well, whichever is less, of oil produced during the first 

eighteen months after completion, from a horizontal well drilled and completed after 

April 30, 2009, and before July 1, ~2017, is subject to a reduced tax rate of twefour 

percent of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted under this chapter. A-weU 

eligible for a reduced tax rate under this subsection is eligible for the exemption for 

horizontal wells under subsection 3, if the exemption under subsection 3 is effective 

during all or part of the first twenty four months after completion. The rate reduction 

under th is subsection becomes effective on the first day of the month following a 

month for which the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than fifty-five dollars. 

The rate reduction under this subsection becomes ineffective on the first day of the 

month following a month in which the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds 

seventy dollars. If the rate reduction under this subsection is effective on the date of 

completion of a well, the rate reduction appl ies to production from that well for up to 

eighteen months after completion, subject to the other limitations of this subsection . If 

the rate reduction under this subsection is ineffective on the date of completion of a 

well, the rate reduction under this subsection does not apply to production from that 

well at any time. 

4-0-:4.-5. The first seventy-five thousand barrels of oil produced during the first eighteen months 

after completion, from a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and Three 

Forks formations, and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an established field 

in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the Bakken or Three 

Forks formation, is subject to a reduced tax rate of two percent of the gross value at 
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the well of the oil extracted under this chapter. A well eligible f:or a reduced tax rate 

under this subsection is eligible f:or the exemption under subsection 3, if the exemption 

under subsection 3 is effective during all or part of the first twenty f:our months after 

4 completion. 

5 SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - TERM OF EXEMPTIONS AND RATE 

6 REDUCTIONS. It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the remaining term of 

7 any exemption or rate reduction eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires upon the effective 

8 date of this Act. 

9 SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective June 1, 2015, if on that date 

10 the exemption under subsection 3 of section 57-51.1 -03 is, or would become, effective and, if it 

11 is not, this Act becomes effective on the first day of the first subsequent month the exemption 

12 under subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 would become effective. 
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1 the well of the oil extracted under this chapter. /\well eligible for a reduced tax rate 
r 

2 under this subsection is eligible for the exemption under subsection 3, if the exemption ( 

3 under subsection 3 is effective during all or part of the first t\venty four months after 

4 completion. 

5 SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - TERM OF EXEMPTIONS AND RATE 

6 REDUCTIONS. It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the remaining term of 

7 any exemption or rate reduction eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires uponremains in effect 

8 after the effective date of this Act for production that qualified during the time the exemption or 

9 rate reduction was effective. 

10 SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective June 1, 2015, if on that date 

11 the exemption under subsection 3 of section 57-51.1 -03 is, or would become, effective and, if it 

12 is not, this Act becomes effective on the first day of the first subsequent month the exemption 

13 under subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 would become effective. 

( 

l 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council 

April 21, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 2, line 3, remove the overstrike over ""/\verage price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing" 

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 4 

Page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike over "in the Wall Street Journal, midwest edition" 

Page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike over". When" 

Page 2, remove the overstrike over lines 6 and 7 

Page 2, line 11, after "4.-" insert "~" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "3." with "4." 

Page 2, line 17, replace "4." with "5." 

Page 2, line 23, replace "5." with "6." 

Page 3, line 3, replace "6." with "L" 

Page 4, line 1, replace "L" with "8." 

Page 4, line 4, replace "8." with "9." 

Page 4, line 14, replace "9." with "fil" 

Page 5, line 14, remove the overstrike over ", except that the rate of tax is" 

Page 5, line 14, after "feH.r" insert "six and one-half' 

Page 5, line 14, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the well of the oil" 

Page 5, line 15, remove the overstrike over "extracted" 

Page 5, line 28, after "57 51.1 03" insert "from wells located on trust lands within the 
boundaries of the Fort Berthold Reservation if an agreement entered under chapter 
57-51 .2 provides that production from trust lands is subject to the tax imposed under 
this section" 

Page 5, line 28, remove the overstrike over the period 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "Ho•Never, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oo" 

Page 5, line 29, after "oo" insert "meets or" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "exceeds" 

Page 5, line 29, after "exceeds" insert "seventy dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 
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Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 1-f.> I 4-'l le. 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 4 · 21. /5 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all (. 
taxable 'Neils is" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "six and one half pereent of the gross value at the 
\VOii of the oil extracted" 

Page 12, line 9, after "DATE" insert "- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 12, line 12, after the period insert "If this Act takes effect, it is effective through July 31, 
2017, and after that date is ineffective." 

Renumber accordingly 
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of North Dakota 

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Introduced by 

Representatives Carlson, Belter, Headland 

Senators Cook, Wardner 

(Approved by the Delayed Bills Committee) 

1 A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 38-08-04 and sections 

2 57-51.1-01 , 57-51 .1-02, and 57-51 .1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to oil 

3 extraction tax rates and exemptions; to provide legislative intent; aRG-to provide an effective 

4 date; and to provide an expiration date. 

5 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

6 SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 38-08-04 of the North Dakota Century 

7 Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

8 4. To classify wells as oil or gas wells for purposes material to the interpretation or 

9 enforcement of this chapter, to classify and determine the status and depth of wells 

10 that are stripper well property as defined in subsection 8 of section 57-51 .1-01 , to 

11 certify to the tax commissioner which wells are stripper wells as defined in section 

12 57-51.1-01 and the depth of those wells, to recertify stripper \Nells that are reentered 

13 and recompleted as horizontal '.vells, and to certify to the tax commissioner which 

14 wells involve secondary or tertiary recovery operations OOEiefas defined in section 

15 57-51 .1-01 , and the date of qualification for the reduced rate of oil extraction tax 

16 exemption for secondary and tertiary recovery operations. 

17 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51 .1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

18 amended and reenacted as follows: 

19 57-51 .1-01. Definitions for oil extraction tax. 

20 For the purposes of this chapter: 

21 1. "Average daily production" of a well means the qualified maximum total production of 

22 

23 

24 

oil from the well during a calendar month period divided by the number of calendar 

days in that period , and "qualified maximum total production" of a well means that the 

well must have been maintained at the maximum efficient rate of production as 
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defined and determined by rule adopted by the industrial commission in furtherance of 4- ~ 

its authority under chapter 38-08. 

3 2. "Average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the monthly average of the daily closing 

4 

5 

6 

7 

price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate cushing crude oil, as those prices appear 

in the Wall Street Journal, midwest edition , minus two dollars and fifty cents. VI/hen 

computing the monthly average price, the most recent previous daily closing price 

must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the marlrnt is closed. 

8 &.- "Horizontal reentry well" means a well that was not initially drilled and completed as a 

9 

10 

horizontal well , including any well initially plugged and abandoned as a dry hole, which 

is reentered and recompleted as a horizontal well . 

11 4.- "Horizontal well" means a well with a horizontal displacement of the well bore drilled at 

12 

13 

an angle of at least eighty degrees within the productive formation of at least three 

hundred feet [91.44 meters]. 

14 &.-~ "Oil" means petroleum, crude oil, mineral oil, casinghead gasoline, and all liquid 

15 

16 

hydrocarbons that are recovered from gas on the lease incidental to the production of 

the gas. 

17 eA. "Property" means the right which arises from a lease or fee interest, as a whole or any 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

designated portion thereof, to produce oil. A producer shall treat as a separate 

property each separate and distinct producing reservoir subject to the same right to 

produce crude oil; provided , that such reservoir is recognized by the industrial 

commission as a producing formation that is separate and distinct from , and not in 

communication with, any other producing formation . 

23 -7:-Q,. "Qualifying secondary recovery project" means a project employing water flooding . :re 
24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

be eligible for the tax reduction provided under section 57 51 .1 02, a secondary 

recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the industrial commission and the 

project operator must have achieved for six consecutive months an average 

production level of at least twenty five percent above the level that •.vould have been 

recovered under normal recovery operations. To be eligible for the tax exemption 

provided under section 57-51.1-03 and subsequent thereto the rate reduction provided 

under section 57 51.1 02, a secondary recovery project must be certified as qualifying 
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by the industrial commission and the project operator must have obtained incremental 4 

&6. 

production as defined in subsection eJ of section 57-51 .1-03. 

"Qualifying tertiary recovery project" means a project for enhancing recovery of oil 

which meets the requirements of section 4993(c), Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 

amended through December 31 , 1986, and includes the following methods for 

recovery: 

a. Miscible fluid displacement. 

b. Steam drive injection. 

c. Microemulsion. 

d. In situ combustion . 

e. Polymer augmented water flooding. 

f. Cyclic steam injection. 

g. Alkaline flooding. 

h. Carbonated water flooding. 

i. Immiscible carbon dioxide displacement. 

j. New tertiary recovery methods certified by the industrial commission. 

It does not include water flooding , unless the water flooding is used as an element of 

one of the qualifying tertiary recovery techniques described in this subsection, or 

immiscible natural gas injection. To be eligible for the tax reduction provided under 

section 57 51.1 02, a tertiary recovery project must be certified as qualifying by the 

industrial commission, the project operator must continue to operate the unit as a 

qualifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator must have achieved for at 

least one month a production level of at least fifteen percent above the level that would 

have been recovered under normal recovery operations . To be elig ible for the tax 

exemption provided under section 57-51 .1-03 and subsequent thereto the rate 

reduction provided under section 57 51 .1 02 , a tertiary recovery project must be 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission , the project operator must continue 

to operate the unit as a qual ifying tertiary recovery project, and the project operator 

must have obtained incremental production as defined in subsection eJ of section 

57-51 .1-03. 
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9-:7. "Royalty owner" means an owner of what is commonly known as the royalty interest 

and shall not include the owner of any overriding royalty or other payment carved out 

of the working interest. 

4 4-0:-~ "Stripper well" means a well drilled and completed, or reentered and recompleted as a 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

horizontal well, after June 30, 2013, whose average daily production of oil during any 

preceding consecutive twelve-month period, excluding condensate recovered in 

nonassociated production , per well did not exceed ten barrels per day for wells of a 

depth of six thousand feet [1828.80 meters] or less, fifteen barrels per day for wells of 

a depth of more than six thousand feet [1828.80 meters] but not more than ten 

thousand feet [3048 meters], and thirty barrels per day for wells of a depth of more 

than ten thousand feet [3048 meters] outside the Bakken and Three Forks formations, 

and thirty-five barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than ten thousand feet [3048 

meters] in the Bakken or Three Forks formation. 

14 4+.~ "Stripper well property" means wells drilled and completed, or a well reentered and 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

recompleted as a horizontal well, before July 1, 2013, on a "property" whose average 

daily production of oil , excluding condensate recovered in nonassociated production, 

per well did not exceed ten barrels per day for wells of a depth of six thousand feet 

[1828.80 meters] or less, fifteen barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than six 

thousand feet [1828.80 meters] but not more than ten thousand feet [3048 meters], 

and thirty barrels per day for wells of a depth of more than ten thousand feet [3048 

meters] during any preceding consecutive twelve-month period . Wells which did not 

actually yield or produce oil during the qualifying twelve-month period, including 

disposal wells, dry wells , spent wells , and shut-in wells , are not production wells for 

the purpose of determining whether the stripper well property exemption applies. 

25 ~ "Trigger price" means thirty five dollars and fifty cents, as indexed for inflation. By 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

December thirty first of each year, the tax commissioner shall compute an indexed 

trigger price by applying to the current trigger price the rate of change of the producer 

price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the United 

States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics, for the twelve months ending 

June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the trigger 

price for the follmving calendar year. 
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"Two year inactive well" means any well certified by the industrial commission that did A- -)'. 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

not produce oil in more than one month in any consecutive twenty four month period 

before being recompleted or otherwise returned to production after July 31 , 1995. A 

well that has never produced oil , a dry hole, and a plugged and abandoned well are 

eligible for status as a two year inactive well. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-51.1-02. Imposition of oil extraction tax. 

There is hereby imposed an excise tax, to be known as the "oil extraction tax" , upon the 

activity in this state of extracting oil from the earth , and every owner, including any royalty 

owner, of any part of the oil extracted is deemed for the purposes of this chapter to be engaged 

in the activity of extracting that oil. 

The rate of tax is sixffil!r and one halffive percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 

extracted, except that the rate of tax is four percent of the gross value at the 'NOii of the oil 

extracted in the following situations: 

16 4-:- For oil produced from 'Nells drilled and completed after April 27, 1987, commonly 

17 referred to as new wells , and not otherwise exempt under section 57 51 .1 03 ; 

18 2-:- For oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project that was certified as 

19 qualifying by the industrial commission before July 1, 1991 ; 

20 &.- For oil that does not qualify as incremental oil but is produced from a secondary or 

21 

22 

tertiary recovery project that is certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after 

June 30 , 1991 ; 

23 4- For incremental oil produced from a secondary or tertiary recovery project that is 

24 

25 

certified as qualifying by the industrial commission after June 30, 1991 , and which 

production is not otherv1ise exempt under section 57 51.1 03; or 

26 &.- For oil produced from a well that receives an exemption pursuant to subsection 4 of 

27 section 57 51.1 03 after June 30, 1993, and which production is not otherwise exempt 

28 under section 57 51 .1 03. 

29 However, if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price of ninety dollars 

30 for each month in any consecutive five monththree-month period , then the rate of tax on oil 

31 extracted from all taxable wells is six and one half percent of the gross value at the well of the 
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oil extracted until the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price of ninety 

dollars for each month in any consecutive five monththree-month period , in which case the rate 

of tax reverts to fettffive percent of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted for any wells 

subject to a reduced rate under subsections 1 through 5. By December thirty-first of each year, 

the tax commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 

the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the producer 

price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the United States 

department of labor. bureau of labor statistics. for the twelve months ending June thirtieth of that 

year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the trigger price for the following calendar 

year. 

For purposes of this section. "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the monthly 

average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate cushing crude oil, as 

those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition . When computing the monthly 

average price. the most recent previous daily closing price must be considered the daily closing 

price for the days on which the market is closed . 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-51.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-51.1-03. Exemptions from oil extraction tax. 

The following activities are specifically exempted from the oi l extraction tax: 

20 1. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil that is exempt from the gross 

21 production tax imposed by chapter 57-51 . 

22 2. The activity of extracting from the earth any oil from a stripper well property or 

23 individual stripper well. 

24 3-:- For a 1.uell drilled and completed as a vertical well , the initial production of oil from the 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

well is exempt from any taxes imposed under th is chapter for a period of fifteen 

months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and completed as a horizontal 

well is exempt from any taxes imposed under th is chapter for a period of twenty four 

months. Oil recovered during testing prior to well completion is exempt from the oil 

extraction tax. The exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period . However, the exemption is reinstated if, after the 
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trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less 

than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period . 

3 4.- The production of oil from a qualifying ·.veil that was worked over is exempt from any 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of twelve months, beginning with the 

first day of the third calendar month after the completion of the work over project. The 

exemption provided by this subsection is only effective if the ·.veil operator establishes 

to the satisfaction of the industrial commission upon completion of the project that the 

cost of the project exceeded sixty five thousand dollars or production is increased at 

least fifty percent during the first two months after completion of the project. A 

qualifying well under this subsection is a well with an average daily production of no 

more than fifty barrels of oil during the latest six calendar months of continuous 

production . A work over project under this subsection means the continuous 

employment of a work over rig , including recompletions and reentries. The exemption 

provided by this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of 

crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 

period . HO\vever, the exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes 

effective, the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period. 

19 &.-3. a. The incremental production from a secondary recovery project which has been 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

certified as a qualified project by the industrial commission after July 1, 1991 , is 

exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of five years from 

the date the incremental production begins. 

b. The incremental production from a tertiary recovery project that does not use 

carbon dioxide and which has been certified as a qualified project by the 

industrial commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 

period of ten years from the date the incremental production begins. Incremental 

production from a tertiary recovery project that uses carbon dioxide in a well 

drilled and completed outside the Bakken and Three Forks formations. and ten 

miles [16 .10 kilometers] or more outside an established field in which the 

industrial commission has defined the pool to include the Bakken or Three Forks 

formation and which has been certified as a qualified project by the industrial 
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commission is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a period of ft/'J-.?--

five years from the date the incremental production begins. 

For purposes of this subsection , incremental production is defined in the following 

manner: 

(1) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference between the total 

amount of oil produced from the unit during the secondary recovery project 

and the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil which would have 

been produced from the unit if the secondary recovery project had not been 

commenced . The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 

(2) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and 

with respect to a unit where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

prior to July 1, 1991 , and where the industrial commission cannot establish 

an accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 

difference between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during a 

new secondary recovery project and the amount of production which would 

be equivalent to the average monthly production from the unit during the 

most recent twelve months of normal production reduced by a production 

decline rate of ten percent for each year. The industrial commission shall 

determine the average monthly production from the unit during the most 

recent twelve months of normal production and must upon request or upon 

its own motion hold a hearing to make this determination. For purposes of 

this paragraph, when determining the most recent twelve months of normal 

production the industrial commission is not required to use twelve 

consecutive months. In addition , the production decline rate of ten percent 

must be applied from the last month in the twelve-month period of time. 
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For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision a and ' (3) 

with respect to a unit where a secondary recovery project was in existence 

before July 1, 1991, and where the industrial commission can establish an 

accurate production decline curve, incremental production means the 

difference between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during the 

new secondary recovery project and the total amount of oil that would have 

been produced from the unit if the new secondary recovery project had not 

been commenced . For purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of oil 

that would have been produced from the unit if the new secondary recovery 

project had not been commenced includes both primary production and 

production that occurred as a result of the secondary recovery project that 

was in existence before July 1, 1991 . The industrial commission shall 

determine the amount of oil that would have been produced from the unit if 

the new secondary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the new secondary recovery project is certified . 

( 4) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there has not been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference between the total 

amount of oil produced from the unit during the tertiary recovery project and 

the amount of primary production from the unit. For purposes of this 

paragraph, primary production means the amount of oil which would have 

been produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

commenced . The industrial commission shall determine the amount of 

primary production in a manner which conforms to the practice and 

procedure used by the commission at the time the project is certified. 

(5) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project, incremental production means the difference between the total 

amount of oil produced during the tertiary recovery project and the amount 

of production which would be equivalent to the average monthly production 
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from the unit during the most recent twelve months of normal production 

reduced by a production decline rate of ten percent for each year. The 

industrial commission shall determine the average monthly production from 

the unit during the most recent twelve months of normal production and 

must upon request or upon its own motion hold a hearing to make this 

determination. For purposes of this paragraph, when determining the most 

recent twelve months of normal production the industrial commission is not 

required to use twelve consecutive months. In addition, the production 

decline rate of ten percent must be applied from the last month in the 

twelve-month period of time. 

(6) For purposes of determining the exemption provided for in subdivision b and 

with respect to a unit where there is or has been a secondary recovery 

project and where the industrial commission can establish an accurate 

production decline curve, incremental production means the difference 

between the total amount of oil produced from the unit during the tertiary 

recovery project and the total amount of oil that would have been produced 

from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced . For 

purposes of this paragraph, the total amount of oil that would have been 

produced from the unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been 

commenced includes both primary production and production that occurred 

as a result of any secondary recovery project. The industrial commission 

shall determine the amount of oil that would have been produced from the 

unit if the tertiary recovery project had not been commenced in a manner 

that conforms to the practice and procedure used by the commission at the 

time the tertiary recovery project is certified . 

d. The industrial commission shall adopt rules relating to this exemption that must 

include procedures for determining incremental production as defined in 

subdivision c. 

The production of oil from a two year inactive well , as determined by the industrial 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of ten years after 

the date of receipt of the certification. The exemption under this subsection becomes 
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ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for 

each month in any consecutive five month period . Hmvever, the exemption is 

reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective , the average price of a barrel 

of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month 

period. 

6 +.c The production of oil from a horizontal reentry well , as determined by the industrial 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

commission and certified to the state tax commissioner, for a period of nine months 

after the date the well is completed as a horizontal well. The exemption under this 

subsection becomes ineffective if the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the 

trigger price for each month in any consecutive five month period . However, the 

exemption is reinstated if, after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average 

price of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any 

consecutive five month period. 

14 & The initial production of oil from a well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

chapter for a period of sixty months if: 

&. The well is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on nontrust lands ·within the 

boundaries of an Indian reservation ; 

&.- The well is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held in trust by 

the United States for an Indian tribe or individual Indian; or 

&. The well is drilled and completed before July 1, 2013, on lands held by an Indian 

tribe if the interest is in existence on August 1, 1997. 

22 9-:- The first seventy five thousand barrels or the first four million five hundred thousand 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

dollars of gross value at the well , whichever is less, of oil produced during the first 

eighteen months after completion , from a horizontal well drilled and completed after 

April 30 , 2009, and before July 1, 2015, is subject to a reduced tax rate of two percent 

of the gross value at the well of the oil extracted under this chapter. A well eligible for a 

reduced tax rate under this subsection is eligible for the exemption for horizontal wells 

under subsection 3, if the exemption under subsection 3 is effective during all or part 

of the first twenty four months after completion. The rate reduction under this 

subsection becomes effective on the first day of the month following a month for \Vhich 

the average price of a barrel of crude oil is less than fifty five dollars. The rate 
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reduction under this subsection becomes ineffective on the first day of the month 

following a month in which the average price of a barrel of crude oil exceeds seventy 

dollars. If the rate reduction under this subsection is effective on the date of 

completion of a well , the rate reduction applies to production from that \VOii for up to 

eighteen months after completion, subject to the other limitations of this subsection. If 

the rate reduction under this subsection is ineffective on the date of completion of a 

well , the rate reduction under this subsection does not apply to production from that 

well at any time. 

9 4-0:-4. The first seventy-five thousand barrels of oil produced during the first eighteen months 

10 after completion , from a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and Three 

11 Forks formations , and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an established field 

12 in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the Bakken or Three 

13 Forks formation , is subject to a reduced tax rate of two percent of the gross value at 

14 the well of the oil extracted under this chapter. A well eligible for a reduced tax rate 

15 under this subsection is eligible for the exemption under subsection 3, if the exemption 

16 under subsection 3 is effective during all or part of the first twenty four months after 

17 completion. 

18 SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - TERM OF EXEMPTIONS AND RATE 

19 REDUCTIONS. It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the remaining term of 

20 any exemption or rate reduction eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires uponremains in effect 

21 after the effective date of this Act for production that qualified during the time the exemption or 

22 rate reduction was effective. 

23 SECTION 6. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT FOR 

24 CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement of legislative 

25 confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 57-51 .2-01 do not apply, for 

26 adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the changes in the oil extraction tax under 

27 this Act, and for agreements under section 54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an 

28 existing agreement regarding application of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or 

29 undyed special fuels within the exterior boundaries of the reservation. 

30 SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 interim, the 

31 legislative management shall consider studying state-tribal tax agreements and allocation of 
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1 revenues from centrally assessed property and property subject to payments in lieu of property k 

2 taxes which is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative management shall report its findings 

3 and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 

4 recommendations , to the sixty-fifth legislative assembly. 

5 SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. This /\et becomes effective June 1, 

6 2015, if on that date the exemption under subsection 3 of section 57 51 .1 03 is, or would 

7 become, effective and , if it is not, this /\et becomes effective on the first day of the first 

8 subsequent month the exemption under subsection 3 of section 57 51 .1 03 would become 

9 effeotiveSections 1 through 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events occurring after 

10 December 31, 2015. Section 6 of this Act is effective from July 1, 2015. through December 31, 

11 2016. and is thereafter ineffective. 

Page No. 13 15.1024.05008 



15.1024.05015 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Cook 

April 22, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" with "to provide for an exception; to provide for a 
legislative management study;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert" ; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half" and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "Hov«ever, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oil exceeds the trigger price" 

Page 5, line 29, after the second "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable wells is" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "six" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "a percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 
extracted until the average price" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price" 

Page 6, line 1, after "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for each month in any consecutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period, in •,yhich case the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fel:H:" insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over '\veil of the oil extracted" 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year. the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 
the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the 
producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the 
United States department of labor. bureau of labor statistics. for the twelve months 
ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the 
trigger price for the following calendar year. 

For purposes of this section. "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate 
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cushing crude oil, as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition. tr-· 1..2.· l') 
When computing the monthly average price. the most recent previous daily closing . 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is .( 
closed. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 
period of fifteen months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and 
completed as a horizontal well is exempt from any taxes imposed under 
this chapter for a period of twenty four months. Oil recovered during testing 
prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction tax. The 
exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price 
of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 
consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, 
after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 
of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 
five-month period." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations. and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the 
Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" insert "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 3 of this Act expires December 1, 2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 6. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT 
FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement 
of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 
57-51 .2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the 
changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, and for agreements under section 
54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement regarding application 
of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or undyed special fuels within the exterior 
boundaries of the reservation. 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying state-tribal tax agreements 
and allocation of revenues from centrally assessed property and property subject to 
payments in lieu of property taxes which is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative 
assembly." 
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Page 1 2, l ine 9, after "DATE" insert "- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 1 2, l ine 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1 ,  201 5,  if on that date" 

Page 1 2, remove l ines 1 O and 1 1  

Page 1 2, l ine 1 2, replace "Sections 1 ,  2 ,  3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events 
occurring after December 31 , 201 5. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events 
occurring after November 30, 201 5.  Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1 ,  201 5, 
through December 31 , 201 6,  and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 3 1 5. 1 024.0501 5  



Notes on Fisca l Impact of HB1476 

With Senate amendments: 

• Big trigger i n  effect fo r 6 m o nths ( p rod uction months June t h rough N ovem ber = reve nue 

m o nths Ju ly  t h rough Decem b e r) - Effective rate = 1% for those months 

• New rate of 5% i n  effect for 18 m o nths - Effective rate = 4.8% 

• Wells  q u a l ifyi ng from J u ne - N ove m be r  get big tr igger exe m ption for o n ly those m o nths -

exem ption ends on Dece m be r  1 

• Fisca l i m pact = +$15 m i l l ion 

o FY2016 = +$281 m i l l ion  
• 6 mo nths where effective rate goes from 1% i n  forecast (trigger in effect) to 

4.8% ( new tax rate i n  effect) 

o FY2017 = -$266 m i l l ion 

• 12 months where effective rate goes from 6 . 1% to 4.8% 

o 2015-17 b ienn ium total  reve n ue cha nge from forecast = +$15 m i l l ion  
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Triplett 

April 23, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" with "to provide for an exception; to provide for 
legislative management studies; to provide an appropriation;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half' and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "Ho•.vever, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oil exceeds the trigger price" 

Page 5, line 29, after the second "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable wells is" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "5*" 

Page 5, line 31, remove the overstrike over "a percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 
extracted until the average price" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price" 

Page 6, line 1, after "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for each month in any consecutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period, in ·.vhich case the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fotlf" insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over "well of the oil extracted" 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year, the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 
the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the 
producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the 
United States department of labor. bureau of labor statistics. for the twelve months 
ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the 
trigger price for the following calendar year. 

For purposes of this section . "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate 
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cushing crude oil. as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition . 
When computing the monthly average price, the most recent previous daily closing 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is 
closed. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 
period of fifteen months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and 
completed as a horizontal well is exempt from any taxes imposed under 
this chapter for a period of twenty four months. Oil recovered during testing 
prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction tax. The 
exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price 
of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 
consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, 
after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 
of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 
five-month period." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations, and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the 
Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, replace "4" with "5" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" insert "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires December 1, 2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 6. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT 
FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement 
of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 
57-51.2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the 
changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, and for agreements under section 
54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement regarding application 
of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or undyed special fuels within the exterior 
boundaries of the reservation. 

• 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying state-tribal tax agreements 
and allocation of revenues from centrally assessed property and property subject to 
payments in lieu of property taxes which is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any • 
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legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative 
assembly. 

SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - OIL AND GAS TAX 
INCENTIVES. During the 2015-16 interim, the legislative management shall study the 
current scientific and economic information regarding oil and gas recovery and 
enhanced recovery techniques to determine the desirability and appropriate level of tax 
incentives to serve the interests of the state, political subdivisions, the public, and the 
energy production industry. The legislative management may expend up to $300,000 
from funds appropriated for that purpose to secure consulting services to assist in 
completing the study. The legislative management shall report its recommendations, 
together with any legislation necessary to implement the recommendations, to the 
sixty-fifth legislative assembly. 

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in 
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $300,000, 
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the legislative council for the purpose 
of a study of the current scientific and economic information regarding oil and gas 
recovery and enhanced recovery techniques, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, 
and ending June 30, 2017." 

Page 12, line 9, after "DATE" insert "- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 12, line 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1, 2015, if on that date" 

Page 12, remove lines 10 and 11 

Page 12, line 12, replace "Sections 1, 2, 3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable-events 
occurring after December 31 , 2015. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events 
occurring after November 30, 2015. Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1, 2015, 
through December 31 , 2016, and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.1024.05015 
Title. 

/ (Jl.f ~ 1(, 
Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for f'"..J 
Senator Cook 4-·;..,?. l 7 

April 22, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" with "to provide for an exception; to provide for a 
legislative management study;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half" and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "However, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oil exceeds the trigger price" 

Page 5, line 29, after the second "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30, after "five month " insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period, then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable ·.veils is" 

Page 5, line 31 , remove the overstrike over "5*" 

Page 5, line 31 , remove the overstrike over "a percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 
extracted until the average price" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price" 

Page 6, line 1, after "price" insert "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for each month in any consecutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period , in 'Nhich case the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "fettf" insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over "well of the oil extracted " 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year. the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 
the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the 
producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the 
United States department of labor. bureau of labor statistics . for the twelve months 
ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the 
trigger price for the following calendar year. 

For purposes of this section . "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the 
monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate 
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cushing crude oil, as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition. 
When computing the monthly average price. the most recent previous daily closing 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is 
closed. 

2-...~ . 2.. 

iJ/3(4-7~ 
4-1-~.15 . 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51.1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well, the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 
period of fifteen months, except that oil produced from any 'Nell drilled and 
completed as a horizontal vvell is exempt from any taxes imposed under 
this chapter for a period of tv.'enty four months. Oil recovered during testing 
prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction tax. The 
exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price 
of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 
consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, 
after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average price of a barrel 
of crude oil is less than the trigger price for each month in any consecutive 
five-month period." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations, and ten miles f 16.10 kilometers] or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the 
Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" insert "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 3 of this Act expires December 1, 2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 6. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT 
FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement 
of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 
57-51.2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the 
changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, and for agreements under section 
54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement regarding application 
of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or undyed special fuels within the exterior 
boundaries of the reservation . 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying state-tribal tax agreements 
and allocation of revenues from centrally assessed property and property subject to 
payments in lieu of property taxes which is located on tribal trust lands. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative 
assembly." 
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Page 1 2 , l ine 9, after "DATE" insert "- EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 1 2, l ine 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1 ,  201 5,  if on that date" 

Page 1 2, remove l ines 1 O and 1 1  

Page 1 2 , l ine 1 2 , replace "Sections 1 ,  2 ,  3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events 
occurring after December 31 , 201 5.  Section 4 of th is Act is effective for taxable events 
occurring after November 30, 201 5.  Section 7 of this Act is effective from Ju ly 1 ,  201 5, 
through December 31 , 201 6, and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.1024.05022 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 

April 23, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1476 

Page 1, line 2, after the first comma insert "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "subsection 3 of section 57-51 .1-03" 

Page 1, line 2 after "and" insert "section" 

Page 1, line 3, replace "to provide legislative intent; and" with "to provide for an exception ; to 
provide for a legislative management study;" 

Page 1, line 4, after "date" insert "; and to provide an expiration date" 

Page 5, line 13, remove "four" 

Page 5, line 13, overstrike "and one-half' and insert immediately thereafter "five" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "However, if the average price of a barrel of crude 
oil exceeds the trigger price" and insert immediately there after "of ninety dollars" 

Page 5, line 29, remove the overstrike over "for each month in" 

Page 5, line 30 , remove the overstrike over "any consecutive" 

Page 5, line 30 , after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 5, line 30, remove the overstrike over "period , then the rate of tax on oil extracted from all 
taxable wells is" 

Page 5, line 31 , remove the overstrike over"~" 

Page 5, line 31 , remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the well of the oil 
extracted until the average price" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "of a barrel of crude oil is less than the trigger price" 
and insert immediately thereafter "of ninety dollars" 

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "for each month in any consecutive" 

Page 6, line 2, after "five month" insert "three-month" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "period , in which case the rate of tax reverts to" 

Page 6, line 2, after "folli" insert "five" 

Page 6, line 2, remove the overstrike over "percent of the gross value at the" 

Page 6, line 3, remove the overstrike over "well of the oil extracted" 

Page 6, line 3, after the period insert "By December thirty-first of each year, the tax 
commissioner shall determine an indexed trigger price under this section by applying to 
the current trigger price an adjustment equal to the percentage rate of change of the 
producer price index for industrial commodities as calculated and published by the 
United States department of labor, bureau of labor statistics. for the twelve months 
ending June thirtieth of that year and the indexed trigger price so determined is the 
trigger price for the following calendar year. 
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For purposes of this section. "average price" of a barrel of crude oil means the tfS [.A--11.o 
monthly average of the daily closing price for a barrel of west Texas intermediate ~-;_ ~ .\, ~ 
cushing crude oil, as those prices appear in the Wall Street Journal. midwest edition. Cr 
When computing the monthly average price. the most recent previous daily closing 
price must be considered the daily closing price for the days on which the market is 
closed. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 57-51.1-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. For a well drilled and completed as a vertical well , the initial production of 
oil from the well is exempt from any taxes imposed under this chapter for a 
period of fifteen months, except that oil produced from any well drilled and 
completed as a horizontal •Nell is exempt from any taxes imposed under 
this chapter for a period of twenty four months. Oil recovered during testing 
prior to well completion is exempt from the oil extraction tax. The 
exemption under this subsection becomes ineffective if the average price 
of a barrel of crude oil exceeds the trigger price for each month in any 
consecutive five-month period. However, the exemption is reinstated if, 
after the trigger provision becomes effective, the average prise of a barrel 
of crude oil is less than the trigger prise for eaoh month in any oonseoutive 
five month periodThe reduced rate of tax under subsection 1 of section 
57-51 .1-02 does not apply after November 30. 2015. for oil produced from 
wells drilled and completed after April 27, 1987, commonly referred to as 
new wells. and not otherwise exempt under this section." 

Page 7, line 15, after "dioxide" insert "in a well drilled and completed outside the Bakken and 
Three Forks formations. and ten miles [16.10 kilometers] or more outside an 
established field in which the industrial commission has defined the pool to include the 
Bakken or Three Forks formation" 

Page 7, line 17, after "chapter" insert "for a period of five years" 

Page 12, line 5, remove "LEGISLATIVE INTENT - " 

Page 12, line 6, replace "It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that the" with 
"The" 

Page 12, line 7, replace "4" with "5" 

Page 12, line 7, remove "upon the effective" 

Page 12, line 8, replace "date of this Act" insert "January 1, 2016. The remaining term of the 
horizontal well exemption eliminated in section 4 of this Act expires December 1, 2015" 

Page 12, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 6. WAIVER OF LEGISLATIVE CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENT 
FOR CERTAIN STATE-TRIBAL TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENTS. The requirement 
of legislative confirmation of state-tribal tax collection agreements under section 
57-51 .2-01 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement attributable to the 
changes in the oil extraction tax under this Act, and for agreements under section 
54-40.2-04 do not apply, for adjustment of an existing agreement regarding application 
of tribal tax authority to bulk delivery of dyed or undyed special fue ls within the exterior 
boundaries of the reservation . 
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SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - TRIBAL TAX ISSUES. 

During the 2015-16 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying 
state-tribal tax agreements and allocation of revenues from centrally assessed property 
and property subject to payments in lieu of property taxes which is located on tribal 
trust lands. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, 
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the 
sixty-fifth legislative assembly." 

Page 12, line 9, after "DATE" insert ". EXPIRATION DATE" 

Page 12, line 9, remove "This Act becomes effective June 1, 2015, if on that date" 

Page 12, remove lines 10 and 11 

Page 12, line 12, replace "under subsection 3 of section 57-51.1-03 would become effective" 
with "Sections 1, 2, 3, and 5 of this Act are effective for taxable events occurring after 
December 31, 2015. Section 4 of this Act is effective for taxable events occurring after 
November 30, 2015. Section 7 of this Act is effective from July 1, 2015, through 
December 31, 2016, and is thereafter ineffective" 

Renumber accordingly 
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